
Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
City Council Meeting 

A g e n d a  
Tuesday, March 22, 2022 at 5:30 PM 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

  

OPENING ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on March 8, 2022. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
2. Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62.11-Access Management (Driveway 

Ordinance) – Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance. 
CONSENT AGENDA 
3. Consider Approval of Sponsorship Renewals at the Red Baron Arena & Expo.  
4. Consider approval of the 2022-23 annual Refuse Haulers Licenses. 
5. Wastewater Treatment Facilities Improvement Project – Consider Payment of Invoice 0285412 to 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
6. Consider Approval of a Permit for  Alcoholic Beverages At City-Owned Facilities. 
7. Consider approval of amendments to the Personnel Policy Manual. 
8. Consider Approval Resolution Authorizing Submission of DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant. 
9. Consider approval of the bills/project payments. 
APPROVAL OF ITEMS PULLED FROM CONSENT 
NEW BUSINESS 
10. Comprehensive Plan Update by SRF. 
11. Authorize Staff to Acquire Proposals for YMCA Financial Feasibility and Future Recreation Feasibility 

Study. 
12. Consideration of renewal agreement options with J&M Displays, Inc., for 4th of July fireworks. 
13. Project AP-004: Airport Zoning Update – Consider Resolution Authorizing Execution of Mn/DOT Grant 

Agreement No. 1049819 (S.P. A4201-104). 
14. Consider Resolution Authorizing Execution of Mn/DOT-Aeronautics Grant Agreement No. 1049651 

(S.P. A4201-C3) for Federal Airport Expenses Reimbursement under the American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA). 

15. Consider Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 2022A, and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B. 

16. Request for Interim Use Permit / storage containers in a B-3 General Business District, Shri Gayatri LLC 
1511 East College Drive. 

17. Request for Conditional Use Permit / mini storage in a B-3 General Business District by Menard, Inc. at 
1211 Clarice Avenue. 

18. Consider Levee and Flood Control Property Signage Exhibits and Quote. 
19. Consider Resolution of Support for a RAISE Grant Application for the MnDOT 2025 College Drive 

Reconstruction Project. 
 

Page 1



City Council Meeting March 22, 2022 Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS 
20. Commission/Board Liaison Reports 
21. Councilmember Individual Items 
STAFF REPORTS 
22. City Administrator 
23. Director of Public Works 
24. City Attorney 
INFORMATION ONLY 
25. Information Only 
MEETINGS 
26. Upcoming Meetings 
ADJOURN 
 

Page 2



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on March 8, 2022. 

Background 

Information: 

Enclosed are the minutes from the regular meeting held on March 8, 2022. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

Staff encourages City Council Members to provide any suggested corrections to the 

minutes in writing to City Clerk Kyle Box, prior to the meeting. 

Recommendations: That the minutes from the regular meeting held on March 8, 2022 be approved as 

filed with each member and that the reading of the same be waived. 

 

Page 3Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

M I N U T E S  
Tuesday, March 08, 2022 

 
The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Marshall was held March 8, 2022, at City Hall, 344 
West Main Street. The meeting was called to order at 5:30 P.M. by Mayor Robert Byrnes. In addition to Byrnes 
the following members were in attendance: Craig Schafer, John DeCramer, and James Lozinski. Absent: Steve 
Meister and Russ Labat. Staff present included: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; Dennis Simpson, City 
Attorney; Jason Anderson, Director of Public Works/ City Engineer; E.J. Moberg, Director of Administrative 
Services; Jessie Dehn, Assistant City Engineer; Preston Stensrud, Parks Superintendent and Kyle Box, City Clerk. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited at this time. 
 
There was a general consensus to operate under the amended agenda. 
 
Consider a Resolution Declaring a Vacancy 
The City of Marshall recognizes the passing of former Councilmember Donald L. Edblom and his last day as a 
City Councilmember on February 22, 2022.  Pursuant to City Charter and State Statute the City of Marshall will 
declare the unexpired term of former Councilmember Edblom Ward 1 seat vacant.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer That the Council approves 
the Resolution Declaring a Vacancy on the Marshall City Council.  Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember 
Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on February 22, 2022. 
Motion made by Councilmember DeCramer, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer that the minutes from the 
regular meeting held on February 22 , 2022 as filed with each member and that the reading of the same be 
waived be approved Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, 
Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A. 1) Conduct a Public Hearing 2) Resolution approving property tax 
abatement to finance certain public improvements in the City. 
On February 8, 2022 the City Council Called for a Public Hearing to be held on March 8, 2022. 
 
At its March 8, 2022 meeting, the Marshall City Council is being asked to consider the following resolution in 
anticipation of the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A: 
 
Resolution approving property tax abatement to finance certain public improvements in the City  
 
Property tax abatement to finance certain public improvements in the City  
The City is proposing property tax abatement to aid in financing certain public improvements, including the 
Rose and Addison downtown city parking lots adjacent to W. Lyon Street, all pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Sections 469.1812 through 469.1815, as amended. The City intends to issue one or more series of general 
obligation bonds, a portion of which will be designated as tax abatement bonds, in the aggregate principal 
amount estimated not to exceed $575,500 to pay the costs of the project. The abatement bonds are expected 
to be paid primarily through the collection of abatement revenues. Prior to approval of the granting of a 
property tax abatement, the City is required to hold a public hearing. The City Council has scheduled March 8 
as the date of the public hearing. Following the hearing, the resolution would authorize the City to finance the 

Page 4Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 2 of 13 

 

identified public improvements with property tax abatements through the issuance and sale of general 
obligation tax abatement bonds. 
 
Terri Heaton with Baker Tilly provided the background information on the agenda item.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer to Close the Public Hearing. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The 
motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Councilmember Lozinski asked a clarification on the number of votes needed with a majority of the council or 
a majority of the quorum present. 
 
City Administrator Sharon Hanson commented that per the Charter that four members of the council would  
need to vote yea in order to pass bonding resolutions. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer to Approve Resolution 
Number 22-035, a Resolution Approving Property Tax Abatement to Finance Certain Public Improvements in 
the City. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember 
Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A. 1) Conduct a Public Hearing 2) Consider a Resolution approving a 
five-year street reconstruction plan and the issuance of General Obligation Street Reconstruction Bonds. On 
February 8, 2022 the City Council Called for a Public Hearing to be held on March 8, 2022.  

At its March 8, 2022 meeting, the Marshall City Council is being asked to consider the following resolution in 
anticipation of the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A:  
 
Resolution approving a five-year street reconstruction plan and the issuance of General Obligation Street 
Reconstruction Bonds  
 
Five-Year Street Reconstruction Plan and Issuance of General Obligation Street Reconstruction Bonds  
The City is authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, subdivision 3b, as amended (the “Act”), to 
prepare a plan for street reconstruction or bituminous overlay of streets in the City over the next five years, 
which includes a description of the street reconstruction or overlay to be financed, the estimated costs, and 
any planned reconstruction or overlay of other streets in the City over the next five years. Pursuant to the Act, 
the City may issue general obligation bonds to finance the cost of street reconstruction activities described in 
such plan.  
 
Before the approval of the street reconstruction plan and the issuance of any bonds under the Act, the City is 
required to hold a public hearing on the plan and the issuance of bonds thereunder. The City Council has 
scheduled March 8 as the date of the public hearing. Following the hearing, the resolution would authorize the 
issuance and sale of general obligation street reconstruction bonds pursuant to the Act in the maximum 
principal amount of $400,000 to finance the costs of the Project, as described in the Plan.  
 
Terri Heaton with Baker Tilly provided the background information on the agenda item.  

 
Page 5Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 3 of 13 

 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to Close the Public Hearing  
Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The 
motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Motion made by Councilmember DeCramer, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer to Approve Resolution 
Number 22-036, a Resolution approving a five-year street reconstruction plan and the issuance of General 
Obligation Street Reconstruction Bonds.  Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember 
DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda 
Councilmember Lozinski requested the item number 5, Introduction of Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the 
City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance) be removed from the consent 
agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer to approve the consent 
agenda. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember 
Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Approval of Resolution Number 22-037, a Resolution Calling for a Public Hearing on the Modification of the 
Redevelopment Plan for Redevelopment Project No. 1. 
 
Approval of the bills/project payments 
 
Introduction of Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access 
Management (Driveway Ordinance). 
City staff is proposing to establish a set of driveway regulations that more explicitly describes the 
requirements and limitations for driveways in various land uses. The proposed ordinance would apply to new 
properties or applications for modifying existing driveways. Applications to replace driveways, as they are 
currently, would be exempt from the requirements in the ordinance. 
 
The proposed ordinance describes the requirements for materials and geometrics (size, slope, etc.) for 
residential, commercial, and industrial-zoned properties. The ordinance also identifies an exemption process, 
should a property owner wish to install a driveway that does not conform to the requirements in the proposed 
ordinance. 
 
Staff believes that the proposed ordinance would provide clear direction to property owners regarding 
driveway installations. Limiting driveway width and spacing between driveways can improve safety by helping 
to reduce vehicle/pedestrian interaction area and by reducing and limiting street access/conflict points, help 
ensure good gutter drainage, reduce unnecessary storm water runoff, help ensure compliance with vegetative 
cover ordinance requirements, and help maintain character of a neighborhood. Establishment of driveway 
regulations are typical for many other communities in Minnesota. Staff can review requirements of other 
communities as needed. 
 
This item was presented to the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee at their meeting on January 
25, 2022, with a recommendation from the Committee for approval of the driveway ordinance to the City 
Council. 

Page 6Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 4 of 13 

 

 
This item was presented to the Legislative & Ordinance Committee at their meeting on March 1, 2022. At L&O 
Committee, Councilman Lozinski suggested that the City Council discuss allowing bituminous paving as an 
accepted driveway material in the City right of way. City staff prefers to require concrete in City right of way 
but can make this amendment if the Council desires. After discussion, motion passed with the 
recommendation from the Committee to Council to introduce the Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City 
Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance) and call for public hearing to be held 
March 22, 2022.  
 
Councilmember Lozinski pulled the item from consent to further clarify that this proposed ordinance is limited 
to the city right of way. Member DeCramer added that the Legislative and Ordinance Committee wanted to 
have the discussion with the full council on allowing both concrete and asphalt. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer that the Council introduce 
the Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway 
Ordinance) and call for public hearing to be held March 22, 2022. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember 
Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A, Consider a Resolution authorizing the issuance of General 
Obligation Airport Bonds. 
At its March 8, 2022 meeting, the Marshall City Council is being asked to consider the following resolution in 
anticipation of the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A:  

Resolution authorizing the issuance of General Obligation Airport Bonds  
 
General Obligation Airport Bonds  
The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, as amended, and Minnesota Statutes, Section 
360.036, as amended (collectively, the “Airport Act”), to issue general obligation bonds to finance the costs of 
investigating, surveying, planning, acquiring, establishing, constructing, enlarging, or improving or equipping 
airports and other navigation facilities, and the sites therefor, including structures and other property 
incidental to their operation.  
 
The resolution authorizes the issuance and sale of general obligation bonds, a portion of which will be 
designated as airport bonds in the currently anticipated principal amount of $70,000, pursuant to the Airport 
Act, to provide financing for certain improvements to the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport, including 
apron reconstruction with respect to the WPA hangar area and apron and taxiway sealcoat/crack filling.  

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer to approve Resolution 
Number 22-038, a Resolution authorizing the issuance of General Obligation Airport Bonds.  Voting Yea: 
Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion 
Carried. 4-0 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 5 of 13 

 

Consider approval to prepare and submit a Minnesota DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant 
To increase and enhance outdoor recreation facilities in local and community parks throughout the state. This 
program is established in Minnesota Statutes 85.019. 

 
The Outdoor Recreation Grant Program provides matching grants to local units of government for up to 50% 
of the cost of acquisition, development and/or redevelopment of local parks and recreation areas. Only one 
park may be included in an application and only one application per park.  
 
As part of an ongoing effort to Cultivate the Best in Play, our Parks Department is planning to add additional 
Inclusive Play components to Independence Park (similar to the Legion Field Park project completed in Fall 
2021). Visual images of potential components are attached. If awarded, the project could begin as early as 
November, 2022 and must be completed by June 30, 2024.  
 
Playgrounds are places where children can go to learn, play, and enjoy the outdoors. These areas promote the 
development of physical and cognitive skills while building social relationships. Inclusive Playgrounds break 
down barriers and create an atmosphere where all children can play and grow together in a welcoming 
environment.  
 
Project estimate is $60,000. City match would be 50%. If awarded, revenue is available in the Park Land 
Development Fund for matching funds.  
 
Project has potential to come in at lower cost based on material and/or cash donations.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to approve, prepare and 
submit grant application for Cultivating Best in Play project. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember 
Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Consider a Resolution Reestablishing Voting Precincts, Wards, and Polling Locations. 
Redistricting is the process of redrawing the boundaries of election districts to ensure that the people of each 
district are equally represented.  

Redistricting is done in the United States after the completion of Congressional reapportionment, which 
decides how many seats each state has in the 435 member House of Representatives. Reapportionment 
happens following the Decennial Census.  
 
In Minnesota, the state legislature has constitutional responsibility for redistricting Minnesota's Congressional 
districts, as well as Minnesota Senate and House districts, and Metropolitan Council districts. Local 
governments are responsible for redistricting other election districts:  

 County boards are responsible for redistricting county commissioner districts  

 City councils are responsible for redistricting city wards  

 School boards are responsible for redistricting board member districts  
 
In addition, during the redistricting time period, cities and townships will establish (or reestablish) their 
precinct boundaries as part of the redistricting process, as will counties that have unorganized territory.  
 

Page 8Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 6 of 13 

 

After review of our 2020 Census redistricting data, we believe that the accuracy of the Census Tract 3605, 
which overlaps with our Ward 1 voting district, is undercounted. This tract encompasses SMSU and a large 
amount of rental housing that was unoccupied due to the timing of COVID-19.  
 
Under Section 2.10 of our City Charter, The Council shall, by ordinance, provide for the establishment of 
wards, define, or change their boundaries, and increase or eliminate the number of wards in the City. No 
change, increase, or elimination shall be made within three (3) months prior to any election held in the City 
governmental offices. Within six (6) months following the official certification of the decennial census of the 
United States and the filing of the census list with the City, the Council shall, by ordinance, re-determine ward 
boundaries so as to make said wards as nearly equal in population as practical.  
 
It is staff’s opinion that with the current data provided by the Census Bureau the City of Marshall will not need 
to redistrict its precincts or wards, even with the inaccurate population undercount located in Ward 1.  
 
On Tuesday March 1 staff met with the legislative and Ordinance Committee to present the above information 
and three options for the Legislative and Ordinance Committee to consider for the full council.  
 

 Option 1: Reestablish the City of Marshall Precincts and Wards (No Changes).  

 Option 2: Move 89 people from Ward 3 to Ward 1.  

 Option 3: Move 220 people from Ward 3 to Ward 1. This change will reestablish neighborhoods and 
make the Ward lines between Ward 3 and Ward 1 easier to identify.  

 
Options 2 and 3 were presented to the L&O Committee the results received from the 2020 Census will not 
allow voting districts for Lyon County to keep the same boundaries if the City of Marshall chooses to 
reestablish its currently voting districts.  
 
Staff have had meetings with Lyon County staff to discuss options to minimize the impact of redistricting by 
redrawing precinct and ward lines within Marshall Ward 1 and Ward 3.  
 
At the March 1 Legislative and Ordinance Committee - Motion by Lozinski, Seconded by Meister to 
recommend that the City Council Reestablish the City of Marshall Precincts and Wards and Polling Locations. 
All voted in favor. 3-0  

Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer that the Council approves 
the Resolution Reestablishing Voting Precincts, Wards, and Polling Locations. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 
Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Consider a Resolution Declaring a Special Election. 
The City Council will consider a Resolution to declare a vacancy for Ward 1 seat held by Councilmember 
Edblom.  

If the unexpired term of such Councilmember or Mayor is one hundred eighty (180) days or more, the vacancy 
shall be filled by special election within the area to be represented. The special election shall be ordered by 
the Council within thirty (30) days after vacancy is declared and reasonable public notice of the election shall 
be given according to the City Charter.  
 

Page 9Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 7 of 13 

 

Due to a redistricting year, municipalities are further limited to when a special election can be held and are 
not permitted to hold a special election in April or May of 2022. The next uniform election dates available in 
2022 are August 9, State primary election day or November 8, 2022, General election day.  
 
After staff review and conformation from the Minnesota Secretary of State’s Office it is recommended that 
the Council order the special election for Ward 1 be held in conjunction with the State Primary Election on 
Tuesday, August 9, 2022/ General Election on Tuesday, November 8, 2022.  
 
Because the City will be holding a special election in conjunction with regularly scheduled election the City will 
follow the predetermined scheduled for filling and notices as defined in Minnesota statute.  

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski That the Council approves the 
Resolution Declaring a Special Election to be held on August 9, 2022 in conjunction with the State Primary 
Election. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember 
Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Project ST-023: W. Lyon Street (College to 1st) Reconstruction Project - Consider Resolution Receiving 
Feasibility Report and Calling Hearing on Improvement. 
The proposed project limits include W. Lyon Street (E. College Drive to N. 1st Street). The proposed project 
was originally included in the scope of the Z82 (N. 1st/ Redwood/Marshall) Reconstruction Project constructed 
in 2021. In consideration of the unknown status regarding the potential development of the Block 11 property, 
the block of W. Lyon Street between E. College Drive and N. 1st Street was removed from the scope of the 
project.  
 
This Feasibility Report as authorized by the City Council covers the proposed improvements including scope, 
background/existing conditions, proposed improvements, probable costs, proposed assessments, feasibility, 
and proposed project schedule.  

The proposed improvements as described in the report are necessary, cost-effective, and feasible from an 
engineering standpoint.  
 
The project was presented to the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee at their meeting on January 
25, 2022, with the Committee recommending approval of the project to the City Council.  

The engineer’s estimate for the construction portion of the project is $338,000. The total estimated project 
cost, including 10% allowance for contingencies and 16% for engineering and administrative costs is $432,000. 
All improvements will be assessed according to the current Special Assessment Policy, including but not 
limited to participation from Marshall Municipal Utilities, Wastewater Department, Surface Water 
Management Utility Fund and Ad Valorem. Final approval of the project must include determination of 
funding sources.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer that the Council adopt 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 22-041, which is the Resolution Receiving Feasibility Report and Calling Hearing on 
Improvement for the above-referenced project and setting the public hearing on improvement date for April 
12, 2022. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember 
Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 

Page 10Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 8 of 13 

 

Project AP-003:  Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) and Aircraft Rescue Firefighting Facility (ARFF) - Consider 
Agreement for the Transfer of Airport Federal Entitlement Funds and Authorize Execution and Filing of FAA 
Form 5100-110. 
The Airport receives $150,000 annually in FAA entitlement funding. Those funds may be accumulated for up to 
four years. This caps the availability of federal entitlements at $600,000 unless entitlement transfers are 
utilized. The Airport currently has $600,000 available in 2022, of which $150,000 will expire if not used or 
transferred this year.  

The City of Marshall desires to construct a new Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) and Maintenance Equipment 
Storage Building at the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport. The existing building does not adequately 
accommodate all airport maintenance equipment storage needs. The new facility is planned to be constructed 
on the East Building Area of the airport, as shown on the recently completed Airport Master Plan.  
 
A joint city fire station and ARFF (Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting) facility is ultimately planned to be co-
located on the site with the SRE/Maintenance Building. The facilities would share common use amenities and 
utilities. The joint city fire station and ARFF facility is not planned for final design or construction at this time.  
 
The Project has been identified on the airport CIP for several years. Below is the proposed timeline in the most 
recent airport CIP.  
Project Timeline  
Phase 1 – 2021: Preliminary Design Study and Funding Plan  
Phase 2 – 2022: Design and Site Preparation  
Phase 3 – 2023: Construction  
 
Based on this timeline, the City’s consultant, TKDA, includes the proposal of two $150,000 entitlement 
transfers to ensure that those entitlements do not expire. The first transfer was authorized by the City Council 
at their meeting on March 23, 2021, to TOB (Dodge Center). These entitlement transfers will provide the City 
and TKDA with enough time to prepare the necessary pre-project planning documents to secure state 
aeronautics funding while also helping the City to secure enough FAA entitlement funds to facilitate the 
construction of this improvement in 2023.  
 
This item was presented to the Airport Commission at their meeting on March 1, 2022 with a 
recommendation to Council for approval of the transfer of 150,000 of MML Airport 2022 Federal Entitlement 
Funds to ACQ (Waseca).  

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski that the Council authorize the 
execution of the attached “Agreement between the City of Marshall, Minnesota, and the City of Waseca, 
Minnesota” for the transfer of 150,000 of MML Airport 2022 Federal Entitlement Funds to ACQ (Waseca) in 
use in constructing a multi-unit hangar. Waseca will in turn transfer back to Marshall $150,000 in entitlements 
in 2023 and that the Council authorize the transfer of Airport Federal Entitlement Funds and authorize 
execution and filing of FAA Form 5100-110 for the transfer of 150,000 of MML Airport 2022 Federal 
Entitlement Funds to ACQ (Waseca). Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember 
DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
 
 

Page 11Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 9 of 13 

 

Project ST-009: W. Lyon Street/N. 3rd Street Reconstruction Project - Consider Acceptance of Proposal for 
Consultant Services. 

The above-referenced project is currently identified for 2023 in the City Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The 
project limits include:  

 W. Lyon Street (E. College Drive to N. 5th Street)  

 N. 3rd Street (W. Main Street to W. Redwood Street).  
 
The proposed project includes the complete reconstruction of the street, curb, sidewalk, driveways, 
watermain, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer collection system. The street pavement and utilities are in poor 
condition and City staff believes a reconstruction is necessary.  
 
Brad Meulebroeck has expressed interest in possible changes to the function of N. 3rd Street between W. 
Main Street and W. Lyon Street. After discussion with staff, his request would include Council considering of 
the following:  
 

 Remove the signal light at the intersection of N. 3rd Street (City) and W. Main Street (MnDOT). This 
signal is currently owned and operated by MnDOT, and any changes would need to be approved by 
MnDOT Traffic.  

 In lieu of traffic signal, the addition of an enhanced pedestrian crossing at the intersection of N. 3rd 
Street and W. Main Street, including a pedestrian refuge island and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon 
(RRFB) signage. As this installation would be in MnDOT Right-of-Way, this installation would need to be 
approved by MnDOT Traffic.  

 

 Reconfiguration of N. 3rd Street from the existing two-way travel into a one-way street moving from 
Main Street to Lyon Street.  

 Narrowing of N. 3rd Street to accommodate several additional features including but not limited to 
landscaping, string lighting, artwork, and sitting areas.  

 
Staff has also considered the possibility of including some aesthetic and/or landscaping/hardscaping upgrades 
to the remaining blocks of the downtown project. Some of these upgrades may or may not include planter 
boxes, vegetative strips along the curb and at corners, and tree planting.  
 
With the scheduled timeline of construction in 2023, staff would like the Council to provide authorization to 
continue forward with the aid of an engineering consultant. Aesthetic features would likely require the 
services of a landscape architect to assist with the scoping and design of included features.  
 
At the City Council meeting on February 8, 2022, Council authorized staff to request for proposals for consultant 
services for downtown aesthetic improvements. Consultant assistance with aesthetic options will be critical if 
the downtown business community or City Council want these types of enhancements. City staff would plan to 
work with the Downtown Business Association and Chamber to help us manage input. The request included 
four tasks for the consultant to scope and provide pricing. Task 1 included an Intersection Control Evaluation 
(ICE) study and report of the N. 3rd/W. Main intersection signal. Task 2 was to provide public information 
gathering and scoping of the streetscaping elements of the project. Task 3 included preparing design sheets of 
the streetscaping elements determined through Task 2. Task 4 was an optional task to provide design services 
of the street reconstruction and utility improvement portion of the project. 

Page 12Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 10 of 13 

 

 
City staff met with the DBA at their March 2, 2022 meeting to discuss the project and the current status of the 
project and the possibility of securing a consulting engineer if Council approves. 
 
Three proposals were received on March 3, 2022. Proposals were reviewed at the Public 
Improvement/Transportation Committee meeting on March 8, 2022, by the Committee, and a proposal review 
group consisting of two City staff members, the PI/T Committee, and Brad Gruhot, the Chamber President. The 
Committee recommended award of a contract to Bolton & Menk. Bolton & Menk, while having the lowest cost 
fee proposal of the three, also provided a strong proposal of services. 
 
All costs would be billed against the 2023 construction project.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer that the Council accept the 
proposal of Bolton & Menk for Tasks 1, 2 and 3 at the approximate cost of $67,920 per the recommendation 
of the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 
Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
Commission/Board Liaison Reports 
Byrnes  Mayor Byrnes temporally reassigned the council liaison position for the Public Housing   
  Commission to member DeCramer, Mayor Byrnes assigned himself as the temporary liaison for  
  the Planning Commission and Comprehensive Plan Committee.  
 
Schafer  Airport Commission met and discussed items acted on at this council meeting. 
 
DeCramer  Marshall Municipal Utilities Commission met and reviewed the final pay request for the Water  
  Treatment Plant. That project is now complete. 
  
  Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Commission met and reviewed 2022 Welcome Week event in  
  September, appointed a new co-chair and will hold another World Café Community event on  
  Saturday, April 30. 
 
Lozinski No Report 
 
Councilmember Individual Items 
Councilmember DeCramer reminded the public to be mindful while driving of significant deer population 
along Birch Street. 
 
Councilmember Lozinski commented on the Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities Conference.  
 
Mayor Byrnes discussed his attendance at the Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities Conference and the City’s 
involvement with the CGMC. Byrnes also discussed the Southwest Minnesota Mayors Council and its main 
focus of economic competitiveness with our neighboring states. Byrnes commented that a lobbyist has been 
retained by the group to advance their issues, including a program similar to a South Dakota program for 
tuition forgiveness. Mayor Byrnes also discussed the City’s sales tax extension and that after discussion with 
our legislators that the aquatic center will be the only project proposed on the bills that are introduced in the 
house and senate.  

Page 13Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 11 of 13 

 

There were comments made at a previous meeting by Representative Chris Swedzinski to potentially expand 
the sales tax to distribute out to surrounding communities. 
 
Administrator Hanson asked the Council for their opinions on revenue sharing when it comes to the city’s sales 
tax extension. 
 
Councilmember Schafer commented not in favor of revenue sharing. Member Schafer added that this option 
wasn’t presented to the public when asked for their opinions and support. Schafer commented that business 
outside of Marshall would collect from revenue sharing and would have an advantage over businesses in 
Marshall that would be required to collect the .5% sales tax. Schafer added that he questions the credibility of 
the council if they change the plan at this time. 
 
Councilmember Lozinski commented not in favor of revenue sharing adding that it would be difficult to ask 
Marshall businesses to raise their sales tax to then send funds to communities with businesses that are not 
required to raise their own sales tax. 
 
Councilmember DeCramer commented not in favor of revenue sharing and questioned why this amendment is 
being proposed with the project being both a community and region asset. 
 
Mayor Byrnes added that current legislation is for an extension, not an addition, to the current sales tax. 
Byrnes also commented that there is a request to eliminate the one-year requirement of not collecting the 
.5% sales tax between the existing sales tax and proposed sales tax. 
 
City Administrator 
City Administrator Sharon Hanson commented that her focus has been on the sales tax extension and State of 
City Address. 
 
Director of Public Works 
Director of Public Works/ City Engineer Jason Anderson commented that the City has received a grant for a 
future bike trail from Jewett to Main Street, this project will take place in 2026. The chloride grant agreement 
has been executed by the MPCA and Bolton and Menk, staff will meet with the consultant in the future to 
discuss the use of funds. Director Anderson added that there will likely be an amended to the College Drive 
project to include the Bruce Street intersection. 
 
City Attorney 
City Attorney, Dennis Simpson discussed recent and ongoing items. The Block 11 project continues to move 
forward, and the Council will be asked to take action at a future meeting on TIF. Documents have been 
provided to the Minnesota National Guard for the land transfer located in the industrial Park. Simpson 
provided an update on the Helen Chemical property and that he Minnesota Dept. of Ag has received a work 
plan from an environmental consultant to remain in the voluntary clean up program. Additionally, the North 
7th Street Annexation is continuing to develop and that a conversation has been held with the MRES Attorney. 
Simpson will ask for a Public Improvement and Transportation meeting to convene for additional discussion 
regarding annexation. Lastly, Simpson commented that progress is being made on the nuisance properties 
located along East Main Street. 
 
 

Page 14Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 12 of 13 

 

Conduct a closed session pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 13D.05, subdivision 3(b) to engage in an 
attorney-client privileged discussion with the City’s attorney regarding Broadmoor Valley Mobile Home 
Park. 
At 6:52 P.M., Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer to go into 
closed session. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, 
Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 4-0 
 
At 7:06 P.M., the Council came back into closed session. 
 
Representative Chris Swedzinski joined the meeting to discuss the proposed bill at the legislator for sales tax 
extension. Mayor Byrnes provided a summary from discussion held by the Council earlier in the meeting and 
that the Council is not in support of revenue sharing with this sales tax extension. 
 
Representative Swedzinski provided a background on the tax committee process, and he would have an 
opportunity to amend and update the proposed bill. 
 
Councilmember Schafer asked Representative Swedzinski how he sees the revenue sharing work. 
 
Representative Swedzinski commented that with this revenue sharing multiple communities would be able to 
receive percentage of the dollars collected Marshall through the .5% sales tax. 
 
There was continued discussion from the Council that is would be a tough ask for the Council to ask voters to 
send money collected in the community back out to the surrounding communities. The Council added that this 
ask doesn’t seem to fit with the aquatic center as its viewed as a regional asset. 
 
Additional concerns from the Council are losing support from the voters for changing the terms, allowing 
competing businesses outside of the city to have an advantage of not collecting Marshall sales tax and to then 
send money to those communities. 
 
Representative Swedzinski added that if it truly is a regional project that it should be up to the region to vote 
on the project. The Council wasn’t sure if the legislator allowed that action to be taken and if that applied to a 
sales tax extension or a new sales tax collection. 
 
Swedzinski commented that the proposed amendment includes 10% revenue sharing of the sales tax that is 
collected for communities within approximately 35-mile radius. 
 
Representative Swedzinski and the Council agreed that this topic deserves the conversation and is a unique 
idea. 
 
The City Council strongly feel that it is to late in the process to change the project. 
 
Information Only 
There were no questions on the information items. 
 
Upcoming Meetings 
There were no questions on the upcoming meetings. 

Page 15Item 1.



City Council Meeting March 08, 2022 Minutes 
Page 13 of 13 

 

 
Adjourn 
At 7:23 P.M., Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to adjourn. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski 
 

 
 

      
          Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
     
City Clerk 
 

Page 16Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62.11-Access 
Management (Driveway Ordinance) – Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance. 

Background 

Information: 

City staff is proposing to establish a set of driveway regulations that more explicitly 
describes the requirements and limitations for driveways in various land uses. The 
proposed ordinance would apply to new properties or applications for modifying 
existing driveways. Applications to replace driveways, as they are currently, would be 
exempt from the requirements in the ordinance. 
 
The proposed ordinance describes the requirements for materials and geometrics 
(size, slope, etc.) for residential, commercial, and industrial-zoned properties. The 
ordinance also identifies an exemption process, should a property owner wish to 
install a driveway that does not conform to the requirements in the proposed 
ordinance. 
 
Staff believes that the proposed ordinance would provide clear direction to property 
owners regarding driveway installations. Limiting driveway width and spacing 
between driveways can improve safety by helping to reduce vehicle/pedestrian 
interaction area and by reducing and limiting street access/conflict points, help 
ensure good gutter drainage, reduce unnecessary storm water runoff, help ensure 
compliance with vegetative cover ordinance requirements, and help maintain 
character of a neighborhood. Establishment of driveway regulations are typical for 
many other communities in Minnesota. Staff can review requirements of other 
communities as needed.  
 
This item was presented to the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee at 
their meeting on January 25, 2022, with a recommendation from the Committee for 
approval of the driveway ordinance to the City Council. 
 
This item was presented to the Legislative & Ordinance Committee at their meeting 
on March 1, 2022.  At L&O Committee, Councilman Lozinski suggested that the City 
Council discuss allowing bituminous paving as an accepted driveway material in the 
City right of way. City staff prefers to require concrete in City right of way, but can 
make this amendment if the Council desires.  After discussion, motion passed with 
the recommendation from the Committee to Council to introduce the Ordinance 
Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management 
(Driveway Ordinance) and call for public hearing to be held March 22, 2022. 
 

Fiscal Impact: None. 

Alternative/ Variations: No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendation: Recommendation No. 1 
that the Council close the public hearing on the Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of 
the City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance). 
 
Recommendation No. 2 

Page 17Item 2.



that the Council adopt Ordinance No. 22-002, which is the Ordinance Amending 
Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway 
Ordinance). 
 
Recommendation No. 3 
that the Council adopt Ordinance No. 22-002, which is the Summary Ordinance for 
Publication of the Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing 
Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance). 

 

Page 18Item 2.



ORDINANCE NO. 22-002 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 62 – STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND  
OTHER PUBLIC PLACES 

ESTABLISHING SEC. 62-11 - ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
 
 

The Common Council of the City of Marshall does ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1:  City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62, Sec. 62-11 is hereby added in its entirety as follows:   
 
CHAPTER 62 – STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES 
ARTICLE I. – IN GENERAL 
    Sec. 62-11. – Access Management 
 
(a)  Definitions. 

(1) Driveway 
a. For the purpose of this Section, driveway is that portion of a private drive leading to an off-

street destination such as a garage or parking area and providing access for motor vehicles 
from a public way that lies between the curb or pavement edge of a public street and the 
property line. 

(b)  Review.    
(1) Determinations. 

a. Intent. 
1. It is the intent of this chapter to regulate access of abutting property to and from the public 

streets in order to protect and promote the welfare and safety of the public, the movement 
of traffic on the public streets, and to eliminate unreasonable traffic hazards. 

b. Permit Issuance. 
1. The City Engineer shall issue a permit hereunder when the City Engineer finds: 

i. That the work will be done according to the provisions described herein; 
ii. That the curb cut or proposed driveway will not constitute a traffic hazard or 

unreasonably impair or interfere with vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the demand and 
necessity for street parking spaces, and the means of ingress to and from adjacent 
properties; and 

iii. That the health, welfare and safety of the public will not be unreasonably impaired. 
2. If a permit is denied, the City Engineer shall forthwith notify the applicant and shall set 

forth in such notice the reasons for denying the permit. 
c. Appeals to City Council. 

1. Any person aggrieved by any action taken by the City Engineer in granting or denying a 
permit of any curb cut or driveway may appeal to the City Council by filing in the office of 
the City Clerk a notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof. An appeal shall stay all 
proceedings until the City Council renders action. Such appeal shall initiate an opportunity 
to be heard before the Planning Commission of the Council to which the matter has been 
referred for review and recommendation. Thereafter, the Council may affirm, reverse or 
modify the action of the City Engineer. 

(2) Requirements. 
a. All driveway construction must comply with the requirements of Sections 62-3 and Chapter 

86. 
b. All work on private properties beyond driveways as defined in this Section and applications for 

permits for replacing the existing surfacing of driveway only with no modifications are exempt 
from the requirements of this ordinance. 

c. All applications for permits that include driveway modifications must conform to the 
requirements of this ordinance. 

Page 19Item 2.



d. Driveway permit applications that include either new driveways or modifications to an existing 
driveway must include a plan layout of the proposed work illustrating that the proposed 
driveway will conform to the requirements in this ordinance. 

(3) Exceptions. 
a. A property owner may file for an exception to the regulations described herein. 
b. Exception requests shall be submitted to the Office of the City Engineer in the form of a 

formal letter including additional documentation describing the requested exception(s) 
including but not limited to the following: 
1. Location map; 
2. Ordinance requirement(s) requested for exception; 
3. Detailed description of proposed work outside of requirements of ordinance; and 
4. Contact information of applicant. 

c. Exception requests shall be reviewed by the City Engineer or his/her designee. The Office of 
the City Engineer shall offer a determination within 30 days of receiving a written request for 
exception from the provisions of this ordinance. 

(4) Quantity. 
a. Residential-Zoned Properties 

1. Properties will be granted one (1) curb cut access for driveway for lot frontage to the street 
up to eighty-five (85) feet. Properties with greater than eighty-five (85) feet of lot frontage 
to the street will be granted (2) curb cut accesses for driveways.  

b. Commercial and Industrial-Zoned Properties 
1. All Commercial and Industrial properties will be granted two (2) curb cut accesses per 

parcel for driveway. 
(c) Construction.    

(1) Materials. 
a. Surface Pavement. 

1. All driveways must be surfaced with concrete from the street to the back of the existing 
sidewalk.  

2. If no sidewalk exists, concrete surface shall extend to the back of the City Right-of-Way. 
b. Within the City Right-of-Way, driveways require a minimum of four (4) inches of gravel base 

and six (6) inches of concrete pavement.  
(2) Geometrics. 

a. Residential-Zoned Properties. 
1. Curb cut access for driveways shall not be more than 36 feet in width measured at the full-

width opening, not including required flared sections. 
2. Curb cut access for shared driveways on a multi-family residential property shall not 

measure more than 48 feet in width. 
3. When Intersecting Existing Sidewalks 

i. The width of the new sidewalk shall measure a minimum of five (5) feet unless 
existing surrounding walk is four (4) feet in width, measured perpendicularly to the 
driveway. 

ii. The cross-slope of the new sidewalk shall measure less than a 2% to meet ADA 
requirements. 

iii. A new sidewalk transition panel outside of each end of the driveway shall transition 
required cross-slope to match existing adjacent sidewalk. 

4. Minimum Distances. 
i. In the event of a property owning two or more driveways, the minimum distance of 

separation between the driveways shall be 24 feet. 
ii. The minimum distance of a driveway, not including the required flared section, to 

the side property line shall be five (5) feet. 
iii. The minimum distance of a driveway from an adjacent intersection shall be 25 

feet, measured from the Right-of-Way of the intersecting street. 
b. Commercial-Zoned Properties. 

1. Curb cut access for driveways shall not be more than 36 feet in width measured at the full-
width opening, not including required flared sections. 

Page 20Item 2.



2. When Intersecting Existing Sidewalks 
i. The width of the new sidewalk shall measure a minimum of five (5) feet unless existing 

surrounding walk is four (4) feet in width, measured perpendicularly to the driveway. 
ii. The cross-slope of the new sidewalk shall measure less than a 2% cross-slope to 

meet ADA requirements. 
iii. A new sidewalk transition panel outside of each end of the driveway shall transition 

required cross-slope to match existing adjacent sidewalk. 
3. Minimum Distances. 

i. In the event of a property owning two or more driveways, the minimum distance of 
separation between the driveways shall be 40 feet. 

ii. The minimum distance of a driveway, not including the required flared section, to the 
side lot property line shall be five (5) feet. 

iii. The minimum distance of a driveway from an adjacent intersection will be 40 feet, 
measured from the Right-of-Way of the intersecting street. 

c. Industrial-Zoned Properties. 
1. A site plan will be required that includes proposed curb cut access(es) and width(s) for 

driveways. 
2. The City Engineer shall review that proposed curb cut accesses meet necessary traffic 

safety requirements. 
3. When Intersecting Existing Sidewalks 

i. The width of the new sidewalk shall measure a minimum of five (5) feet unless existing 
surrounding walk is four (4) feet in width, measured perpendicularly to the driveway. 

ii. The cross-slope of the new sidewalk is required to measure less than a 2% cross-
slope to meet ADA requirements. 

iii. A new sidewalk transition panel outside of each end of the driveway will be required to 
transition required cross-slope to match existing adjacent sidewalk. 

4. Minimum Distances. 
i. In the event of a property owning two or more driveways, the minimum distance of 

separation between the driveways will be 40 feet. 
ii. The minimum distance of a driveway, not including the required flared section, to the 

side lot property line will be five (5) feet. 
iii. The minimum distance of a driveway from an adjacent intersection will be 40 feet, 

measured from the Right-of-Way of the intersecting street. 
 
Section 2:  This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage and publication. 
 
Passed and adopted by the Common Council this  22nd    day of  March, 2022. 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL   ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Mayor of the City of Marshall, MN  City Clerk 
 
 
Introduced on:   March 8, 2022        
Final Passage on: March 22, 2022        
Summary Ordinance in the Marshall Independent on:       
 

Page 21Item 2.



SUMMARY ORDINANCE NO. 22-002 
FOR PUBLICATION 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 62 – STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND  

OTHER PUBLIC PLACES 
ESTABLISHING SEC. 62-11 - ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

 
 
On March 22, 2022, the City Council for the City of Marshall, Minnesota (“City”) adopted an 
Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 (Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public Places) (“Ordinance”) of 
the Marshall City Code of Ordinances.  The Ordinance serves the purpose of Amending Chapter 
62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62-11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance). 
 
It is hereby determined that publication of this Title and Summary Ordinance will clearly inform 
the public of the intent and effect of Ordinance No. 22-002.  A copy of the entire Ordinance will 
be posted at the Marshall City Hall. 
 
It is hereby directed that only the above Title and Summary of Ordinance No. 22-002 be published 
conforming to Minnesota Statutes §331A.01 with the following: 
 

NOTICE 
 
Persons interested in reviewing a complete copy of the Ordinance may do so at the office of the 
City Clerk, City Hall, 344 West Main Street, Marshall, Minnesota 56258. 
 
 
Passed and adopted by the Common Council this  22nd   day of  March, 2022. 
 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL    ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________        
Mayor of the City of Marshall, MN   City Clerk 
 
 
Introduced on:  March 8, 2022         
 
Original Ordinance Adopted on: March 22, 2022       
 
Summary Ordinance Adopted on: March 22, 2022       
 
Summary Ordinance in the Marshall Independent on:        
 
 

Page 22Item 2.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval of Sponsorship Renewals at the Red Baron Arena & Expo  

Background 

Information: 

Renewing the sponsorship agreements between D&G, and Bremer and the city of Marshall for 

the Red Baron Arena & Expo  

Fiscal Impact: D&G Sponsorship is $3000 per year for five years. Bremer Sponsorship is $2,000 per year for 

five years.  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended 

Recommendations: To Approve D&G Sponsorship agreement for the Red Baron Arena & Expo. To Approve Bremer 

Sponsorship Agreement for the Red Baron Arena & Expo  

 

Page 23Item 3.



S

Page 24Item 3.



Page 25Item 3.



Page 26Item 3.



Page 27Item 3.



Page 28Item 3.



Page 29Item 3.



Page 30Item 3.



Page 31Item 3.



Page 32Item 3.



Page 33Item 3.



Page 34Item 3.



Page 35Item 3.



Page 36Item 3.



Page 37Item 3.



Page 38Item 3.



Page 39Item 3.



Page 40Item 3.



Page 41Item 3.



Page 42Item 3.



Page 43Item 3.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of the 2022-23 annual Refuse Haulers Licenses. 

Background 

Information: 

Annual Refuse Haulers licenses will expire on March 31, 2022. The applications for a Refuse 

Haulers license are from the following: 

Southwest Sanitation 
West Central Sanitation 
Waste Management 
 

Fiscal Impact: $160 per license 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended 

Recommendations: To approve the 2022-23 Refuse Haulers Licenses 

 

Page 44Item 4.



Sec. 50-24. - Hauler's license required.  

It is unlawful for any person to haul garbage, other refuse, or recyclable materials for hire without a 
license therefor from the city, or to haul garbage or other refuse from his own residence or business 
property other than as excepted in this article. Such licenses shall expire on March 31 of each year. The 
annual fee for a garbage and refuse hauler's license shall be established by resolution of the city council.  

(Code 1976, § 6.31(2), (3); Ord. No. 554 2nd series, 7-5-2006)  

Cross reference— Business licenses, § 22-21 et seq.  

State Law reference— Licensing of solid waste collection, Minn. Stat. § 115A.93. 

Sec. 50-25. - Licensee requirements.  

(a)  Hauler licenses shall be granted only upon the condition that the licensee have tight packer-type 
vehicles for garbage and other refuse and vehicles with leakproof bodies for recyclable materials in 
good condition to prevent loss in transit of liquid or solid cargo; that the vehicle be kept clean and as 
free from offensive odors as possible and not allowed to stand in any street longer than reasonably 
necessary to collect garbage, refuse, or recyclable materials; and that the vehicle is dumped or 
unloaded only at the designated sanitary landfill, or recycling center and strictly in accordance with 
regulations relating thereto.  

(b)  Every vehicle used to collect garbage, refuse, or recyclable shall have the name of the owner or 
operator and the city license number under which it is being operated on the body of the vehicle, or 
on a durable metal or wood plaque which shall be fastened to the body, at all times when the vehicle 
is used for collecting garbage, refuse, or recyclable.  

(c)  All licensed haulers shall provide to the city at the city's request, a list of all names and addresses of 
all their customers within the city.  

(d)  All licensed haulers must have a license to haul garbage within the county.  

(Code 1976, § 6.31(5); Ord. No. 554 2nd series, 7-5-2006; Ord. No. 723 2nd Series, § 1, 8-8-

2017)  

Page 45Item 4.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Facilities Improvement Project – Consider Payment of Invoice 0285412 
to Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Background 

Information: 

Attached are the following for the above-referenced project: 
1) Invoice 0285412 to Bolton & Menk, Inc., of Mankato, Minnesota, in the amount 

of $495.00 
 
As this project is financed with a Public Facilities Authority low interest loan through the State 
of Minnesota, pay applications are required to be placed on the City Council agenda for 
approval. 
 

Fiscal Impact: This project is financed with a Public Facilities Authority low interest loan through the State of 
Minnesota. 
 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendations: that the Council authorize payment of Invoice 0285412 to Bolton & Menk, Inc., of Mankato, 
Minnesota, in the amount of $495.00. 
 

 

Page 46Item 5.



Page 47Item 5.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval of a Permit for  Alcoholic Beverages At City-Owned Facilities 

Background 

Information: 

The City Council is being asked to approve a permit for Marshall Radio and Brau 

Brothers to serve beer at the Red Baron Arena and Expo during the Marshall Home 

Show March 26 – 27, 2022. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended 

Recommendations: To the Permit for Alcoholic Beverages At City-Owned Facilities for the Marshall Home 

Show pending all requirements have been met. 

 

Page 48Item 6.



Page 49Item 6.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of amendments to the Personnel Policy Manual 

Background 

Information: 

Attached for your review and consideration is a redlined (amendments are shown with double-
underlining or strikeouts) copy of Chapter 4 of the Personnel Policy Manual.   
 
The Council Personnel Committee met on February 23, 2022, and unanimously recommended 
approval of the amendments. 
 
Chapter 4 of the Personnel Policies deal with several topics related to the Classification and 
Compensation study report that the Council accepted at the February 22, 2022 meeting.  Both 
technical and new language revisions are recommended.   
 
4.1  Technical amendments are being recommended. The City now utilizes the Decision Band 
Method of job evaluation, the new language removes the former Hay pointing detail and inserts 
the new detail.  Additionally, the word “salary” is amended to “compensation” to alleviate 
employee confusion related to pay on a salary or hourly basis. 
 
4.2  All full-time employees who were grandfathered in on the fire department have now retired 
or resigned from the fire department; therefore this sentence is no longer needed. 
 
4.4  Technical amendments are being recommended.  The word “salary” is amended throughout 
this section and replaced with more appropriate language.   
 
4.5  Staff recommend new language that requires an extension of the probationary period when 
an employee has received approval for a leave of absence during the probationary period.  Staff 
also recommend language that employees in their probationary periods do not have grievance 
rights over discipline or dismissal decisions (this language is already included in the union 
contracts).  Staff also recommend new language, as recommended by the League of Minnesota 
Cities policy template, that provides that employees do not have a vested interest or property 
right to continued City employment following completion of the probationary period.   
 
4.6   The first sentence states that employees are eligible for step increases upon receipt of a 
satisfactory performance evaluation.  In cases of substandard performance, and depending on the 
performance issue to be resolved, the employee is typically placed on a performance 
improvement plan and given a designated amount of time to achieve a satisfactory performance 
level.  The recommended language clarifies that employees are not eligible for a retroactive step 
increase in cases of substandard performance.  If appropriate and approved by the Director and 
City Administrator, an employee may become eligible for a step increase upon achieving a 
satisfactory performance level. 
 
4.7  Technical changes recommended.  The amendments recommended do not reflect a process 
change. 

Page 50Item 7.



 
 
Staff will continue to review the remaining chapters of the policy manual for legal compliance and 
other necessary technical changes.  Future Personnel Committee meetings will be scheduled as 
these are completed and recommendations will be brought to the full Council for consideration. 
 
If approved by the City Council, staff would proceed with updating the cover page (date of 
revision) and table of contents (date of revision). 
 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended.  If the Council recommends further changes, the item may be referred back 

to the Personnel Committee for discussion. 

Recommendatio

ns: 

To approve amendments to the Personnel Policy Manual. 

 

Page 51Item 7.



Page 52Item 7.



Page 53Item 7.



Page 54Item 7.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval Resolution Authorizing Submission of DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant. 

Background 

Information: 

On March 8, 2022, Council approved a proposal for the City to prepare and submit a Minnesota 
DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant. This grant would provide financial assistance to provide 
inclusive play components at Independence Park. The Resolution is required as part of the grant 
application. 

Fiscal Impact: Project estimate is $60,000. City match would be 50% of the project costs. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

N/A 

Recommendations: Approval of the Resolution as presented. 

 

Page 55Item 8.



March 2022

Resolution No. 22-042

 A Resolution Authorizing Submission of DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant

BE IT RESOLVED that City of Marshall act as legal sponsor for the project contained in the 
Outdoor Recreation Grant application to be submitted on 31st of March 2022 and that Widseth 
is hereby authorized to apply to the Department of Natural Resources for funding of this project 

on behalf of City of Marshall.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the applicant has read the Conflict of Interest Policy contained in 

the Outdoor Recreation Grant Program Manual and, upon discovery, certifies it will report to 

the State any actual, potential, or perceived individual or organizational conflicts of interest to 

the application or grant award.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City of Marshall has the legal authority to apply for financial 
assistance, and it has the financial capability to meet the match requirement (if any) and ensure 

adequate construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of the proposed project for its 

design life. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City of Marshall  has not incurred any development costs and has 

not entered into a written purchase agreement to acquire the property described in the Cost 

Breakdown section on this application. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City of Marshall has or will acquire fee title or permanent 
easement over the land described in the site plan included in the application. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, upon approval of its application by the State,  

City of Marshall may enter into an agreement with the State for the above-referenced project, 
and that City of Marshall certifies that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations as 
stated in the grant agreement including dedicating the park property for uses consistent with 

the funding grant program into perpetuity.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that MAYOR ROBERT BYRNES is hereby authorized to 
execute such agreements as necessary to implement the project on behalf of the applicant. 

I CERTIFY THAT the above resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Marshall on 
22nd of MARCH 2022.

SIGNED:  WITNESSED: 

________________________________ _____________________________________ 
(Signature) (Signature)  

_______________________________ _____________________________________ 
(Title) (Date) (Title) (Date)  

Page 56Item 8.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of the bills/project payments 

Background 

Information: 

Staff encourages the City Council Members to contact staff in advance of the meeting regarding 

these items if there are questions. Construction contract questions are encouraged to be 

directed to Director of Public Works, Jason Anderson at 537-6051 or Finance Director, Karla 

Drown at 537-6764 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: The following bills and project payments be authorized for payment. 

 

Page 57Item 9.



3/18/2022 8:08:30 AM Page 1 of 5

Council Check Report
Marshall, MN By Vendor Name

Date Range: 03/11/2022 - 03/22/2022

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP-REG AP

4549 A & B BUSINESS, INC 03/16/2022 9190480.49EFT 0.00

4549 A & B BUSINESS, INC 03/18/2022 91992,174.37EFT 0.00

4739 ABOVE THE FOLD PUBLISHING, LLC 03/15/2022 12089561.00Regular 0.00

5813 ACE HOME & HARDWARE 03/11/2022 9102133.50EFT 0.00

5813 ACE HOME & HARDWARE 03/18/2022 9200210.95EFT 0.00

6128 ACTION CO LLC 03/11/2022 9103745.00EFT 0.00

6128 ACTION CO LLC 03/18/2022 92011,260.00EFT 0.00

0578 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 03/11/2022 910427.14EFT 0.00

0578 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 03/18/2022 9202446.33EFT 0.00

4570 AMAZON 03/15/2022 1208961,032.36Regular 0.00

3761 AMERICAN BOTTLING CO. 03/11/2022 120865188.88Regular 0.00

5837 ANDERSON, JASON 03/11/2022 910580.00EFT 0.00

0658 AP DESIGN 03/11/2022 9106699.52EFT 0.00

0658 AP DESIGN 03/18/2022 920339.95EFT 0.00

0629 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY 03/11/2022 12086618.61Regular 0.00

5447 ARTISAN BEER COMPANY 03/11/2022 9107969.90EFT 0.00

5447 ARTISAN BEER COMPANY 03/18/2022 9204621.05EFT 0.00

6883 AT&T MOBILITY II LLC 03/18/2022 12091038.23Regular 0.00

0648 AUTOMATIC SYSTEMS CO. 03/11/2022 12086726,556.00Regular 0.00

5702 B & H PHOTO & ELECTRONICS CORP 03/18/2022 92057,615.47EFT 0.00

5327 BAUMANN, ADAM 03/11/2022 910830.00EFT 0.00

0688 BELLBOY CORPORATION 03/18/2022 92063,650.12EFT 0.00

0691 BERG-JOHNSON, ASSOCIATES INC. 03/18/2022 1209111,208.38Regular 0.00

0699 BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS 03/11/2022 12086829,505.11Regular 0.00

0699 BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS 03/18/2022 12091227,631.72Regular 0.00

0707 BISBEE PLUMBING AND HEATING INC 03/11/2022 120869406.82Regular 0.00

0724 BOLTON & MENK INC 03/18/2022 92072,345.50EFT 0.00

0018 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 03/11/2022 9109493.14EFT 0.00

0018 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 03/18/2022 920827.10EFT 0.00

6439 BOTHUN, BRIAN 03/18/2022 92099,248.40EFT 0.00

6231 BOX, KYLE 03/11/2022 911030.00EFT 0.00

4457 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE 03/11/2022 1208702,754.00Regular 0.00

4457 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE 03/18/2022 1209132,082.73Regular 0.00

6539 BREMER BANK CC 03/15/2022 120899654.88Regular 0.00

5070 BRODART CO 03/15/2022 1209012,161.13Regular 0.00

3568 BRUNSVOLD, QUENTIN 03/11/2022 911130.00EFT 0.00

0378 BUYSSE, JASON 03/11/2022 911230.00EFT 0.00

0379 BYRNES, ROBERT J 03/11/2022 120872311.99Regular 0.00

0380 CALLENS, DAVID 03/11/2022 911330.00EFT 0.00

6791 CAPITAL ONE 03/11/2022 12087339.96Regular 0.00

6791 CAPITAL ONE 03/11/2022 120874288.64Regular 0.00

6791 CAPITAL ONE 03/15/2022 12090220.24Regular 0.00

6791 CAPITAL ONE 03/18/2022 12091560.92Regular 0.00

0799 CARLOS CREEK WINERY 03/18/2022 120916486.00Regular 0.00

0802 CARLSON & STEWART REFRIG INC 03/11/2022 9114165.07EFT 0.00

0815 CATTOOR OIL COMPANY INC 03/11/2022 91151,088.50EFT 0.00

0815 CATTOOR OIL COMPANY INC 03/18/2022 92102,945.72EFT 0.00

0818 CAUWELS, ROGER 03/11/2022 911630.00EFT 0.00

5351 CENGAGE LEARNING 03/16/2022 919138.92EFT 0.00

0836 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 03/18/2022 921123.98EFT 0.00

0853 CLAREYS SAFETY EQUIPMENT INC 03/11/2022 91176,661.06EFT 0.00

5733 CLARITY TELECOM, LLC 03/16/2022 9192459.06EFT 0.00

5733 CLARITY TELECOM, LLC 03/18/2022 92123,178.10EFT 0.00

0875 COMPUTER MAN INC 03/11/2022 91182,354.75EFT 0.00

Page 58Item 9.



Council Check Report Date Range: 03/11/2022 - 03/22/2022

3/18/2022 8:08:30 AM Page 2 of 5

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

0384 COUDRON, DEAN 03/11/2022 911930.00EFT 0.00

0920 CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF MARSHALL 03/11/2022 12087577.00Regular 0.00

0934 D & G EXCAVATING INC 03/11/2022 91201,020.00EFT 0.00

3819 DACOTAH PAPER CO 03/11/2022 9121400.61EFT 0.00

6537 DEHN, JESSIE 03/11/2022 912270.00EFT 0.00

6472 DEUTZ, LAUREN 03/11/2022 912380.00EFT 0.00

5731 DOLL DISTRIBUTING 03/11/2022 912415,189.20EFT 0.00

5731 DOLL DISTRIBUTING 03/18/2022 921312,979.86EFT 0.00

5917 EQUIPMENT BLADES INC 03/11/2022 1208763,102.54Regular 0.00

1090 FASTENAL COMPANY 03/11/2022 912573.80EFT 0.00

1090 FASTENAL COMPANY 03/18/2022 921467.96EFT 0.00

1126 FLEXIBLE PIPE TOOL COMPANY 03/11/2022 91263,177.70EFT 0.00

1158 GALLS INC 03/11/2022 9127225.44EFT 0.00

6478 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 03/11/2022 912840.50EFT 0.00

1199 GRAHAM TIRE AND AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES 03/18/2022 1209171,101.42Regular 0.00

6269 HANSON, SHARON 03/11/2022 9129254.19EFT 0.00

1256 HAWKINS INC 03/11/2022 91307,097.04EFT 0.00

1256 HAWKINS INC 03/18/2022 92157,100.25EFT 0.00

6483 HEARTLAND SECURITY 03/15/2022 120903646.80Regular 0.00

1271 HENLE PRINTING COMPANY 03/11/2022 9131408.00EFT 0.00

1271 HENLE PRINTING COMPANY 03/16/2022 919322.17EFT 0.00

6953 HISKEN, LESLIE 03/11/2022 120877335.00Regular 0.00

5515 HOFFMANN, RYAN 03/11/2022 913230.00EFT 0.00

1280 HP INC 03/15/2022 1209043,459.24Regular 0.00

1311 HYVEE FOOD STORES INC 03/15/2022 1209056.99Regular 0.00

1311 HYVEE FOOD STORES INC 03/18/2022 120918837.52Regular 0.00

1325 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST #300877 03/18/2022 12091950.00Regular 0.00

6705 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION INC 03/11/2022 9133919.73EFT 0.00

4552 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 03/16/2022 91943,404.61EFT 0.00

1399 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 03/11/2022 91347,735.95EFT 0.00

1399 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 03/18/2022 92169,406.53EFT 0.00

5095 KIBBLE EQUIPMENT 03/11/2022 9135130.69EFT 0.00

0450 KOPITSKI, JASON 03/11/2022 913630.00EFT 0.00

5377 KRUK, CHRISTOPHER 03/11/2022 913730.00EFT 0.00

4140 KRUSE FORD-LINCOLN-MERCURY, INC 03/18/2022 92176.00EFT 0.00

5138 L & A SYSTEMS, LLC 03/11/2022 9138907.72EFT 0.00

3653 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 03/11/2022 9139222.88EFT 0.00

1483 LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA CITIES INS TRUST 03/18/2022 12092087,699.00Regular 0.00

6183 LEE, JERRED 03/11/2022 914030.00EFT 0.00

1507 LOCHER BROTHERS INC 03/11/2022 91411,151.90EFT 0.00

1508 LOCKWOOD MOTORS INC. 03/11/2022 12087872.54Regular 0.00

6072 LUND, CHELSEA 03/15/2022 12090670.00Regular 0.00

6323 LUTHER, ERIC 03/11/2022 914230.00EFT 0.00

1531 LYON COUNTY AUDITOR-TREASURER 03/18/2022 9218556.23EFT 0.00

1545 LYON COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 03/11/2022 914324,537.73EFT 0.00

1548 LYON COUNTY LANDFILL 03/11/2022 914531.50EFT 0.00

1552 LYON COUNTY RECORDER 03/11/2022 914670.15EFT 0.00

1555 LYON LINCOLN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 03/18/2022 12092540.00Regular 0.00

1604 MARSHALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 03/11/2022 91473,723.00EFT 0.00

1604 MARSHALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 03/18/2022 92191,060.00EFT 0.00

1616 MARSHALL CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 03/11/2022 91485,994.28EFT 0.00

1616 MARSHALL CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 03/16/2022 919510.00EFT 0.00

4660 MARSHALL FESTIVALS INC. 03/18/2022 922010,000.00EFT 0.00

6961 MARSHALL GYMNASTICS BOOSTERS 03/18/2022 1209261,000.00Regular 0.00

5320 MARSHALL HS SOFTBALL M CLUB 03/18/2022 120927240.00Regular 0.00

1623 MARSHALL INDEPENDENT, INC 03/11/2022 1208791,238.91Regular 0.00

1623 MARSHALL INDEPENDENT, INC 03/18/2022 120928289.00Regular 0.00

1633 MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 03/11/2022 915092,326.33EFT 0.00

1633 MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 03/16/2022 91962,961.49EFT 0.00

1635 MARSHALL NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS INC 03/11/2022 915311.71EFT 0.00

1635 MARSHALL NORTHWEST PIPE FITTINGS INC 03/18/2022 922175.05EFT 0.00

Page 59Item 9.



Council Check Report Date Range: 03/11/2022 - 03/22/2022

3/18/2022 8:08:30 AM Page 3 of 5

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

3545 MARSHALL RADIO 03/11/2022 91541,950.00EFT 0.00

1652 MARSHALL VOLUNTEER FIRE RELIEF ASSOC 03/18/2022 1209294,000.00Regular 0.00

0460 MARSHALL, JAMES 03/11/2022 914980.00EFT 0.00

6733 MARTI, GEORGE & PAULA 03/18/2022 120930186.00Regular 0.00

1695 MEIER ELECTRIC INC 03/11/2022 9155701.82EFT 0.00

6025 MELLENTHIN, CODY 03/11/2022 915630.00EFT 0.00

4980 MENARDS INC 03/11/2022 1208803,543.09Regular 0.00

4980 MENARDS INC 03/18/2022 120931232.75Regular 0.00

3971 MEULEBROECK, ANDY 03/11/2022 915730.00EFT 0.00

1774 MN DEPT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY FINANCIAL SERVICES OFFICE03/11/2022 12088290.00Regular 0.00

3555 MN DOT 03/11/2022 12088343.62Regular 0.00

1797 MN FIRE SERVICE CERTIFICATION BRD 03/11/2022 120884840.00Regular 0.00

1813 MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY 03/18/2022 12093255.00Regular 0.00

6955 MOBERG, EJ 03/11/2022 9158340.00EFT 0.00

1864 MONTES ELECTRIC INC 03/11/2022 1208852,972.21Regular 0.00

6398 MORRELL MANUFACTURING 03/18/2022 120933796.00Regular 0.00

1945 NORMS GTC 03/11/2022 120886235.47Regular 0.00

1945 NORMS GTC 03/18/2022 12093444.91Regular 0.00

1986 NORTH CENTRAL INTERNATIONAL, INC 03/18/2022 922252.50EFT 0.00

1946 NORTH CENTRAL LABS 03/11/2022 91591,054.16EFT 0.00

5891 ONE OFFICE SOLUTION 03/11/2022 916025.00EFT 0.00

2026 PEPSI COLA BOTTLING OF PIPESTONE MN INC 03/18/2022 922332.00EFT 0.00

2034 PETTY CASH 03/11/2022 120888375.00Regular 0.00

2036 PHILLIPS WINE AND SPIRITS INC 03/11/2022 91618,388.44EFT 0.00

2036 PHILLIPS WINE AND SPIRITS INC 03/18/2022 9224792.06EFT 0.00

2049 PLUNKETTS PEST CONTROL INC 03/11/2022 916239.08EFT 0.00

5938 POTTER, ASHLEY 03/11/2022 12088942.50Regular 0.00

2064 POWERPLAN 03/11/2022 120890821.80Regular 0.00

0477 PRZYBILLA, SCOTT 03/11/2022 916330.00EFT 0.00

6166 PULVER MOTOR SVC, LLC 03/11/2022 9164235.00EFT 0.00

2096 QUARNSTROM & DOERING, PA 03/18/2022 92256,678.00EFT 0.00

4826 RIEKE, BENJAMIN 03/11/2022 916530.00EFT 0.00

0481 ROKEH, JASON 03/11/2022 916630.00EFT 0.00

5867 ROUND LAKE VINEYARDS & WINERY 03/11/2022 9167288.00EFT 0.00

2201 RUNNINGS SUPPLY INC 03/18/2022 922636.14EFT 0.00

5556 SANDGREN, KAYLYNN 03/11/2022 9168279.40EFT 0.00

6957 SANDO, TOM 03/18/2022 9227495.03EFT 0.00

4647 SCHOLASTIC 03/15/2022 120907614.43Regular 0.00

6286 SCHWEGMAN'S CLEANERS, LLP 03/15/2022 12090868.50Regular 0.00

2248 SCOTT'S TREE SERVICE 03/11/2022 916924,350.00EFT 0.00

6251 SHRED RIGHT 03/11/2022 917015.00EFT 0.00

2284 SIRCHIE 03/11/2022 917197.21EFT 0.00

4855 SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF MN 03/11/2022 917210,464.84EFT 0.00

4855 SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF MN 03/18/2022 92289,756.41EFT 0.00

2311 SOUTHWEST GLASS CENTER 03/11/2022 91737.00EFT 0.00

2318 SOUTHWEST SANITATION INC. 03/11/2022 91742,248.49EFT 0.00

2318 SOUTHWEST SANITATION INC. 03/16/2022 919783.42EFT 0.00

5922 SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC. 03/18/2022 92297,892.04EFT 0.00

0491 ST AUBIN, GREGORY 03/11/2022 917530.00EFT 0.00

3808 STELTER, GEOFFREY 03/11/2022 917630.00EFT 0.00

4134 STENSRUD, PRESTON 03/11/2022 917730.00EFT 0.00

2373 STREICHERS 03/11/2022 9178300.00EFT 0.00

6956 SUREONE PROMOTIONS 03/11/2022 1208916,229.63Regular 0.00

6767 SW ABE 03/18/2022 1209351,975.00Regular 0.00

0495 SWANSON, GREGG 03/11/2022 917930.00EFT 0.00

0147 TAHER FOOD SERVICE 03/18/2022 9230131.00EFT 0.00

6137 TEIGS LAWN CARE & LANDSCAPING, LLC 03/18/2022 120936485.00Regular 0.00

2143 THOOFT ENTERPRISES LLC 03/11/2022 91801,652.00EFT 0.00

4423 TREASURED TIMES SCRAPBOOKING AND GIFTS 03/11/2022 12089230.00Regular 0.00

6786 TRUCK CENTER COMPANIES EAST LLC 03/11/2022 918192.89EFT 0.00

6156 TRUE BRANDS 03/11/2022 9182268.18EFT 0.00

Page 60Item 9.



Council Check Report Date Range: 03/11/2022 - 03/22/2022

3/18/2022 8:08:30 AM Page 4 of 5

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

6156 TRUE BRANDS 03/18/2022 9231692.85EFT 0.00

3342 TRUEDSON, SCOTT 03/11/2022 918330.00EFT 0.00

2499 US BANK 03/11/2022 120893500.00Regular 0.00

4610 VALUE LINE PUBLISHING, INC. 03/15/2022 1209091,142.00Regular 0.00

6092 VANDERMILLEN, SCOTT 03/11/2022 918480.00EFT 0.00

0512 VANLEEUWE, SARA J. 03/11/2022 918570.00EFT 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 03/11/2022 918635.01EFT 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 03/16/2022 919859.26EFT 0.00

2538 VIKING COCA COLA BOTTLING COMPANY 03/11/2022 9187355.50EFT 0.00

6950 WATERVILLE FOOD AND ICE, INC. 03/18/2022 9232166.14EFT 0.00

5961 WAYNE'S TRACTOR REPAIR 03/11/2022 120894646.31Regular 0.00

5961 WAYNE'S TRACTOR REPAIR 03/18/2022 12093855.42Regular 0.00

6959 WENDORFF WELDING 03/18/2022 9233312.00EFT 0.00

0518 WENKER, JEFFREY 03/11/2022 918830.00EFT 0.00

5288 WEST CENTRAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC 03/11/2022 9189293.25EFT 0.00

2605 WINE MERCHANTS 03/18/2022 9234421.70EFT 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

62

0

0

0

130

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

192 0.00

Payment

221,798.20

0.00

0.00

0.00

343,634.11

565,432.31

Payable
Count

153

0

0

0

244

397

Page 61Item 9.



Council Check Report Date Range: 03/11/2022 - 03/22/2022

Page 5 of 53/18/2022 8:08:30 AM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

62

0

0

0

130

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

192 0.00

221,798.20

0.00

0.00

0.00

343,634.11

565,432.31

153

0

0

0

244

397

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

999 POOLED CASH FUND 565,432.313/2022

565,432.31

Page 62Item 9.



CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA
PRIOR AND CURRENT  YEARS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

3/22/2022

ORIGINAL CURRENT
PROJECT #: Coding DATE CONTRACTOR: CONTRACT CHANGE CONTRACT 2019 Prior 2020 Prior 2021 Prior 2022 Prior PYMTS THIS RETAINAGE BALANCE:

AMOUNT: ORDERS AMOUNT Payments Payments Payments Payments MEETING:

W13 602-49500-55120 5/28/2019 WWTF Improvement Project Magney Construction, Inc. 14,074,300.00    (26,609.74)         14,047,690.26    4,099,265.87      6,918,924.06      3,029,500.33      -                    -                     
CH1 494-43300-55120 11/12/2019 City Hall Renovation Brennan Companies 5,030,200.00      695,744.00         5,725,944.00      3,039,722.04      2,661,221.93      15,664.80         9,335.23             
Z83 479-43300-55170 2/23/2021 James Ave/Camden Dr Reconstruction Kuechle Underground 849,244.50         849,244.50         779,179.36         41,009.44         29,055.70           
Z88 479-43300-55170 4/13/2021 State Aid Overlay Duininck, Inc 1,924,600.45      31,330.31           1,955,930.76      1,859,801.49      -                    96,129.27           
PK-001 401-45200-55130 8/25/2021 Independence Park Trail Replacement A & C Excavating, LLC 375,659.10         375,659.10         109,320.20         5,753.70           260,585.20         
SWM-007 630-49600-55170 10/12/2021 Independence Park Pond Forebay Expansion Towne & Country Excavating LLC 229,255.50         229,255.50         229,255.50         
AP-005 101-43400-55120 10/12/2021 A/D Building Roof Repair Gag Sheet Metal, Inc. 37,200.00           45,399.00           82,599.00           51,879.00           30,720.00           -                     
ST-002 495-43300-55170 2/8/2022 Bituminous Overlay on Various City Streets Duininck, Inc 560,573.35         560,573.35         560,573.35         
ST-003 480-43300-55170 2/8/2022 1st/Greeley/Williams Reconstruction R & G Construction Co. 1,647,498.69      1,647,498.69      1,647,498.69      
ST-001 101-43300-53425 2/22/2022 Chip Seals Pearson Bros., Inc. 210,581.00         210,581.00         210,581.00         
ST-004 480-43300-55170 2/22/2022 Halbur Road Reconstruction Duininck, Inc 1,142,009.72      1,142,009.72      1,142,009.72      

26,081,122.31 745,863.57 26,826,985.88 4,099,265.87 9,958,646.10 8,490,902.31 0.00 62,427.94 4,185,023.66

Page 63Item 9.



   
      

PERCENT
COMPLETE

100.00%
99.84%
96.58%
95.09%
30.63%
0.00%

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Page 64Item 9.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO 

Subject: Comprehensive Plan Update by SRF 

Background 

Information: 

Project Details 
SRF Consulting was hired in March of 2021 to complete the City’s Comprehensive Plan update.  
A 12-member community task force was created and staff from Economic Development and 
Community Planning are assisting in the process.  
 
SRF Consulting has completed a review and analysis of the city’s current plan and supporting 
documentation. The SRF team was also on site in September to complete a community tour and 
stakeholder interviews with city staff and partners.  
 
SRF has also provided public participation opportunities with a community survey, focus 
groups, and open house. There was 600+ participants in the survey and five focus groups with 
58 participants. The data collected from the public was used to shape the goal and focus areas 
for the plan. 
 
Serving as the lead consultant on the project, Stephanie Falkers will provide a project update 
including an overview of key themes and next steps in the process.  

Fiscal Impact: - 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

- 

Recommendations: - 

 

Page 65Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  1 

COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS 
INTRODUCTION 
The community survey was available online and in-person from mid-December 2021 to February 20, 
2022. A total of 604 responses were collected through the online SurveyMonkey platform or via 
collection of paper copies from various distribution sites around Marshall. The survey asked 26 
questions pertaining to demographics, community character, growth and development, community 
facilities, and what the community hopes to see for the future of Marshall.  

Following the initial analysis of survey results, a number of questions were further analyzed to explore 
how certain population groups responded to a question to understand individual group needs. This 
additional analysis is included with the appropriate questions. The demographic questions were 
optional, with not all respondents providing a response. For example, 91 people (15 percent) did 
identify their age and 124 people (21 percent) did not identify their household income.    

WHO TOOK THE SURVEY? 
Survey respondents could respond to optional demographic questions, providing a summary of who 
took the survey. These questions were optional, and 15 to 20 percent of respondents did not respond 
to these questions.   

Age 
The majority of respondents to the survey were between the ages of 30 and 49 years old. 
Representation of at least 5 percent of respondents was received from each group, outside of the 70 
and over population. While the breakdown of survey responses by age group may not be 
representative of the city’s population in each group, the response of 17.2 percent in the ages of 18 to 
29 aligns well with the city’s 17.7 percent of the population being in the same age group.  

 

8.
0%

17
.2

%

23
.4

%

24
.8

%

15
.4

%

7.
6%

3.
5%

UNDER 18 18-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 70  OR OVER

Page 66Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  2 

Gender 
Approximately 61 percent of respondents identify as female, with 35 percent identifying as male and 4 
percent identifying with another gender or preferring not to answer.  

 

Race 
Survey responses were received for each racial group identified in the survey. “Other” responses 
included Latino, Belgian American, and Chicano.  

 

35%

61%

4%

Male

Female

Other/Prefer not to say

86
.7

%

2.
2% 3.
5%

1.
2%

0.
4% 6.

5%

3.
5%

WH IT E B LACK  OR  
AFR ICAN  

AME R ICAN

AS IAN AME R ICAN  
IN D IAN  OR  

ALASKA  
N AT IVE

N AT IVE  
HAWAI IAN  
OR  OT HE R  

PAC IF IC  
I S LAN D E R

PRE FE R  N OT  
T O  AN SWE R

OT HE R  
( PLE ASE  
SPE C IFY )

Page 67Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  3 

Income 
Each income bracket was represented across survey responses, with a majority of respondents 
identifying a household income of $75,000 to $149,999. Over 20 percent of respondents identified 
an income lower than the City’s median household income of $48,000.   

 

 

Tenure in Marshall 
Many survey respondents have a long tenure as Marshall residents. Over 40 percent have lived in the 
community for 20 or more years, and an additional 23 percent have lived in the community for at least 
ten years. Ten percent of those that responded to this question identified themselves as non-residents 
of the community.  

 

5.
4%

5.
4%

11
.9

% 17
.3

%

18
.8

%

19
.6

%

12
.3

%

9.
2%

9%

16%

23%

42%

9% 1%

Less than 3 years

3 to 9 years

10 to 19 years

20 or more years

I do not live in Marshall, but
work here

I do not live in Marshall, and
only come here occasionally

Page 68Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  4 

Previous Tenure 
A majority of respondents moved from other locations in Southwest Minnesota to Marshall. Other 
migration trends include the Twin Cities Metro and surrounding states.  

 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES 
What is your one favorite thing about Marshall? 

 

The top ten responses (in order of frequency) include:  

Community The sense of community and sense of place.  

Parks The diversity and quality of the parks system.  

People The welcoming, friendly, and diverse people of the community.  

Small Town Small town feel outside of the big city.  

17
.2

%

15
.0

%

29
.5

%

10
.4

%

12
.4

% 15
.4

%

12
.2

%

2.
6%

Page 69Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  5 

Size The right size to support services but also provide desired space.  

Family A great place to raise a family.  

Schools Quality schools for all ages.  

Opportunities Many opportunities that can be taken advantage of.   

Safe Safe environment compared to other locations 

Clean A clean environment.  
 

What is your one least favorite thing about Marshall? 

 

The top ten responses (in order of frequency) include:  

Lack Lack of a variety of sites, activities, resources, etc.  

Shopping Desire for a more diverse range of shopping opportunities 

Things to Do Desire/need for additional things to do. 

Need Desire/need for additional things to do. 

Activities Desire/need for activities for all ages, abilities, interests, etc.  

Places Identification of community spaces that can be secured to meet community 
needs.  

Options Explore diverse and robust input. 

Stores Need for additional retail opportunities. 

Families Need for family friendly events. 

Winter Need for events and activities to be completed in the winter.  
 

 

Page 70Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  6 

What is Marshall’s biggest opportunity over the next 20 years?  
Residents identified business growth, new opportunities, additional shopping, and population growth 
as Marshall’s biggest opportunity over the next 20 years.  

 

 

Common themes or topics identified throughout this question include: 

Businesses Opportunities to grow and diversify the business sector in Marshall 

Grow Opportunities to grow and enhance the community and its resources. 

Opportunities Desire to take action on this plan. 

Shopping Desire for more retail and shopping opportunities.  

Retail Desire for more retail and shopping opportunities.  

Families Family friendly activities, spaces and resources.  

Page 71Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  7 

What issues or opportunities below do you think Marshall needs to prioritize in the 
next 20 years?  
Respondents prioritized year-round recreational opportunities, retail opportunities, and attracting and 
retaining industry when asked “What issues or opportunities below do you think Marshall needs to 
prioritize in the next 20 years?” 

 
0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Protecting the community against natural
disasters (such as flooding, increased storm…

Other (please specify)

Public safety

Maintaining and Improving infrastructure (such
as streets, water, sewer)

Increasing diversity (in both the community and
leadership roles)

Strengthen identity as regional center

Creating a welcoming community

Quality education

Daycare development

Outdoor recreation

Workforce

Affordable Housing

Tourism/Hospitality (for example, providing
overnight accommodations for youth sports…

Enhance entertainment opportunities

Attracting and retaining industry

Retail opportunities

Year-round recreational opportunities (such as
bowling alleys and indoor playgrounds)

Page 72Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  8 

What issues or opportunities below do you think Marshall needs to prioritize in the next 20 years? – By 
Age Group 
The follow table provides the responses to this question by age group. Note: the percentages identified 
in the table reflect the percentage of each age group that selected that response, rather than the percent 
of all who answered the question.  

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Affordable Housing

Attracting and retaining industry

Creating a welcoming community

Daycare development

Enhance entertainment opportunities

Increasing diversity (in both the community and leadership
roles)

Maintaining and Improving infrastructure (such as streets,
water, sewer)

Other (please specify)

Outdoor recreation

Protecting the community against natural disasters (such as
flooding, increased storm events, etc.)

Public safety

Quality education

Retail opportunities

Strengthen identity as regional center

Tourism/Hospitality (for example, providing overnight
accommodations for youth sports tourism, creating RV…

Workforce

Year-round recreational opportunities (such as bowling
alleys and indoor playgrounds)

60 and Over 40 to 59 18 to 39 Under 18

Page 73Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  9 

What issues or opportunities below do you think Marshall needs to prioritize in the next 20 years? – By 
Income Group 
The follow table provides the responses to this question by household income group. Note: the 
percentages identified in the table reflect the percentage of each age group that selected that response, 
rather than the percent of all who answered the question.    

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Affordable Housing

Attracting and retaining industry

Creating a welcoming community

Daycare development

Enhance entertainment opportunities

Increasing diversity (in both the community and
leadership roles)

Maintaining and Improving infrastructure (such as
streets, water, sewer)

Other (please specify)

Outdoor recreation

Protecting the community against natural disasters
(such as flooding, increased storm events, etc.)

Public safety

Quality education

Retail opportunities

Strengthen identity as regional center

Tourism/Hospitality (for example, providing
overnight accommodations for youth sports…

Workforce

Year-round recreational opportunities (such as
bowling alleys and indoor playgrounds)

Over $100,000 $50,000 to $99,999 Less than $50,000

Page 74Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  10 

LAND USE AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 
As we plan for future development, what types of spaces or uses do we need to 
adjust?  
Marshall residents see the need for growth or reduction in various land uses throughout the community 
where responding to the question: “As we plan for future development, what types of spaces or uses do 
we need to adjust?”. Respondents identified the need for much more shopping and entertainment 
venues. The following tables and charts summarize the responses by land use type (e.g., residential, 
commercial, etc.).   

 We need 
much more 

We need  
more 

Stay the 
same 

We need  
less 

We need 
 much less 

Single-family homes 77 284 159 2 3 

Multifamily homes 45 223 218 23 9 

Rental Housing 85 242 175 18 8 

Housing for seniors 58 264 193 3 4 

 
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Single-family homes

Multifamily homes

Rental housing

Housing for seniors

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

Page 75Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  11 

Desired Types of Residential Growth – By Income Group 
Note: the percentages identified in the table reflect the percentage of each age group that selected that 
response, rather than the percent of all who answered the question. 

 

 

 

45%
40% 42%41%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Single-family homes Multifamily homes Rental housing Housing for seniors

Less than $50,000

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

58%

42% 43%
49%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Single-family homes Multifamily homes Rental housing Housing for seniors

$50,000 to $99,999

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

52%
45% 44%

49%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Single-family homes Multifamily homes Rental housing Housing for seniors

Over $100,000

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

Page 76Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  12 

 We need 
much more 

We need  
more 

Stay the 
same 

We need  
less 

We need 
 much less 

Health care facilities (doctor, dentist) 83 220 226 3 2 

Wellness facilities 55 209 260 4 2 

Outdoor recreation (sports, parks, 
trails) 120 213 186 11 6 

 

 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Health care facilities (doctor,
dentist, etc.)

Wellness facilities

Outdoor recreation (sports, parks,
trails)

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

Page 77Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  13 

 We need 
much more 

We need  
more 

Stay the 
same 

We need  
less 

We need 
 much less 

Business services (accountant, etc.) 12 105 391 10 4 

Industrial or manufacturing  82 244 182 13 4 

Office space 11 85 374 45 10 

 
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Business services (accountants,
lawyers, etc.)

Industrial or manufacturing

Office space

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

Page 78Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  14 

 We need 
much more 

We need  
more 

Stay the 
same 

We need  
less 

We need 
 much less 

Restaurants & Bars 98 282 147 7 4 

Hotels and overnight accommodations 79 217 219 13 3 

Indoor sports facilities 115 214 176 19 10 

Entertainment venues 214 250 67 5 1 

Retail Shopping 293 206 43 1 4 

 
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Restaurants and bars

Hotels and overnight
accommodations

Indoor sports facilities

Entertainment Venues

Retail shopping

We need much more

We need more

Stay the same

We need less

We need much less

Page 79Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  15 

Using the provided map for reference, which areas would you like to see 
investment prioritized.  
When asked to prioritize the top three areas Marshall should invest in, residents chose the commercial 
and retail area; Downtown; and East College Drive Commercial Area as the top three.  

 

 
 
 
A: Airport 
B: Industrial and Warehouse Area 
C: Downtown 
D: East College Drive Commercial 
Area 
E: SMSU Campus Area 
F: High School and Recreation 
Development Area 
G: Highway 23 Corridor 
H: Commercial and Retail Area 
I: Southern Residential Area 

83
112

250 240

108
154

129

291

109

24
0

50
100
150
200
250
300
350

Page 80Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  16 

What level of housing density do you prefer to live in and what level of the 
community you current live in.   
Low density refers to mostly single-family homes, while high-density refers to multifamily homes (such 
as apartment buildings). 

On average, most residents currently reside in a lower density residential unit.  When asked what their 
preferred housing density is, residents generally answered an average response of 17.9, representing 
lower density development.  

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
How would you prioritize the need for quality services in finding a place to live 
within Marshall? 
Residents highly value Schools, Fire & EMS Services, and Police Services. 

 Very 
Unimportant Unimportant Neutral Important Very Important 

Roadways 13 5 123 271 107 

Sidewalks and Trails 17 22 118 252 114 

Police Services 24 16 93 218 175 

Fire & EMS Services 18 6 86 222 195 

Public Parking 18 41 204 201 62 

Public Transit 22 81 195 159 63 

Quality Utility Infrastructure 10 7 136 253 116 

Schools 14 9 77 177 252 

Parks 12 23 109 236 145 

Snow removal and other 
weather-related 
maintenance 

14 8 73 245 189 

Page 81Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  17 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Roadways

Sidewalks and Trails

Police Services

Fire & EMS Services

Public Parking

Public Transit

Quality Utility Infrastructure

Schools

Parks

Snow Removal and other Weather-Related
Maintenance

Very unimportant Unimportant Neutral Important Very important

Page 82Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  18 

How would you prioritize the need for quality services in finding a place to live within Marshall? – Per 
Income Group 

 

 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%100%

Roadways
Sidewalks and Trails

Police Services
Fire & EMS Services

Public Parking
Public Transit

Quality Utility Infrastructure
Schools

Parks
Snow Removal and other Weather-Related…

Less than $50,000

Very Unimportant

Unimportant

Neutral

Important

Very Important

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%100%

Roadways
Sidewalks and Trails

Police Services
Fire & EMS Services

Public Parking
Public Transit

Quality Utility Infrastructure
Schools

Parks
Snow Removal and other Weather-Related…

$50,000 to $99,999

Very Unimportant

Unimportant

Neutral

Important

Very Important

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Roadways
Sidewalks and Trails

Police Services
Fire & EMS Services

Public Parking
Public Transit

Quality Utility Infrastructure
Schools

Parks
Snow Removal and other Weather-Related…

Over $100,000

Very Unimportant

Unimportant

Neutral

Important

Very Important

Page 83Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  19 

Thinking of our local transportation system, how would you rate the following 
items? 
Respondents noted that within Marshall’s transportation system, traffic safety, connectivity, and 
availability of voice sideways is currently working very well. Alternatively, public transit could be 
improved.  

 Very Poor Poor Neutral Good Very Good 

Connectivity (Ability to get from Point A to Point B) 4 40 210 221 49 

Efficiency (Ability to get to from A to B quickly) 10 65 216 195 38 

Traffic Safety 8 31 178 254 52 

Street Pavement quality 22 97 180 195 31 

Traffic Signals (Timing and location of stoplights, railroad 
crossings, etc.) 18 78 171 230 31 

Availability of sidewalks and trails 12 51 167 244 51 

Public Transit Availability 17 52 274 142 49 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Connectivity

Efficiency

Traffic Safety

Street Pavement Quality

Traffic Signals

Availability of Sidewalks and Trails

Public Transit Availability

Very Poor Poor Neutral Good Very Good

Page 84Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  20 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
What do you think attracts people to visit or move to Marshall? Select up to 3 
Employment, Education, and Youth Sports are what residents think attracts people to visit or move to 
Marshall.  

 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Page 85Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  21 

What do you think attracts people to visit or move to Marshall? Select up to 3. – By Age Group 
Note: the percentages identified in the table reflect the percentage of each age group that selected that 
response, rather than the percent of all who answered the question. 

 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Youth Sports

Shopping

Restaurants/Bars

Outdoor Recreation

Other (please specify)

Local Services (Healthcare, Hair Salons, Etc.)

Local Cultural Events

Indoor Recreation

Entertainment

Employment

Education

60 and Over 40 to 59 18 to 39 Under 18

Page 86Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  22 

What business, activity, or event exists outside of Marshall that you wish existed 
here? 
Respondents identified various businesses, activities, or events they wished were in Marshall.  Top 
responses included a bowling alley, Target, additional shopping and restaurant opportunities, more 
retail options, concert events, and indoor family activities. Specifically, respondents would like to see 
additional retail and active indoor recreation opportunities. 

How often do you shop outside of Marshall (exclusive of online shopping)? 
Respondents identified they often shop outside Marshall for goods exclusive of online shopping. 
Common themes regarding the reasoning for shopping and spending funds elsewhere included the 
desire for more retail options and stores for all income levels (e.g., boutique, big box, family owned, 
etc.).   

Never Rarely Sometimes Often Always 

3 42 133 256 92 
 

  

Page 87Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  23 

How should Marshall promote a strong local economy? (Select up to 3) 
To promote a strong local economy, residents think Marshall should promote and encourage new 
businesses and neighborhoods.  

 

6.5%

17.3%

25.3%

49.7%

30.5%

33.8%

33.8%

24.8%

41.5%

40.9%

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0%

Other (please specify)

Continue to expand youth sports

Improve workforce development

Promote and encourage new businesses and
neighborhoods

Invest in existing businesses and
neighborhoods

Provide higher-wage employment
opportunities

Distinguish ourselves from Sioux Falls and
other regional centers

Expand opportunities for visitors

Improve business marketing and outreach to
retain businesses, residents, and visitors

Provide more indoor recreation opportunities

Page 88Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  24 

PUBLIC FACILITIES  
How often do you utilize the following public facilities? 
Respondents utilize the Parks and Trails very often, but rarely use the Museum, Library, and Adult 
Community Center.  

 Never Rarely Occasionally Often Very Often 

Library 99 163 144 74 39 

Parks 12 53 168 202 84 

Museum 192 209 87 21 6 

Trails 52 91 158 138 76 

Adult Community Center 342 107 51 11 2 

Aquatic Center 135 124 132 77 50 

Recreational Facilities or Activities  98 120 137 90 72 

 

Over the next 20 years, how should Marshall prioritize improvement to their public 
facilities? (Please rank from 1 being most important to 7 being least important) 
When prioritizing improvements over the next 20 years, residents would like to see improvements made 
to the recreational facilities or activities, the aquatic center, and parks first.  

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
Recreational 

Facilities 
and 

Activities 

Parks Aquatic 
Center Trails Library 

Adult 
Community 

Center 
Museum 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Library

Parks

Museum

Trails

Adult Community Center

Aquatic Center

Recreational Facilities or Activities

Never Rarely Occasionally Often Very Often

Page 89Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  25 

Of your top two priorities listed above, please tell us what changes you would like 
to see. 
Desired improvements to public facilities include improvements to existing facilities, new stores and 
entertainment options, and tourism opportunities.  

 

 

The top responses (in order of frequency) include:  

Parks Maintenance and park enhancements 

Aquatic Center Aquatic center upgrades 

Trails Close gaps, maintain existing structure, identify new needs 

Facilities Continue maintenance and attention through winter months 

Activities Increase activity offerings for all 

Kids/Families Gathering and socializing locations for community members 

Indoor Increase available indoor activities 

  

Page 90Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  26 

CULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL DEVELOPMENT 
Please select your level of agreement with the following statements: 
Respondents had varied levels of agreement with the statements related to cultural and environmental 
development. Generally, respondents agreed or were neutral about the four statements.  

 Strongly 
Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly 

Agree Unsure 

Culture  

Marshall residents are proud of the city’s cultural 
diversity and history 32 86 185 153 32 20 

Marshall celebrates its history  21 68 160 206 36 18 

Marshall celebrates its cultural diversity 55 97 187 124 29 15 

Marshall is inviting to people of all backgrounds 53 74 135 172 67 6 

Environment  

I can connect with Marshall’s natural resources 
through parks, trails, and events 3 26 97 563 118 2 

Marshall’s natural resources are valued and 
protected 11 32 149 239 63 15 

Marshall is prepared for natural disasters (such as 
severe flooding or tornado events) 14 31 158 182 69 54 

 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Marshall residents are proud of the city's
cultural diversity and history

Marshall celebrates its history

Marshall celebrates its cultural diversity

Marshall is inviting to people of all
backgrounds

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree Unsure

Page 91Item 10.



Marshall Comprehensive Plan Survey 

CITY OF MARSHALL  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  27 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%100%

I can connect with Marshall's natural resources
through parks, trails, and events

Marshall's natural resources are valued and
protected

Marshall is prepared for natural disasters (such
as severe flooding or tornado events)

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree Unsure

Page 92Item 10.



Maintain a warm, safe, and welcoming community for all and promote 
pride in the community

Support initiatives and active communication that promote inclusion 
and engage future leaders

Maintain and build relationships and engagement opportunities that 
encourage action

Support a variety of housing options that provides access to all

Support growth and policies that supports Marshall’s sense of place

Create flexibility into policies and regulations to meet the community’s 
needs

Invest in high quality utilities, services and resources and support 
redevelopment opportunities

Build sustainable and resilient infrastructure to support emerging trends 
and needs and prepares the community for change 

Develop and attract a qualified and varied workforce to meet the variety 
of businesses 

Explore opportunities to diversify retail and businesses

Emphasize business expansion and retention by supporting and growing 
businesses 

Build partnerships and spaces to share and celebrate culture, art, and 
history

Maintain and expand the park and trail system that includes year round 
recreation opportunities 

Advertise and promote available facilities and services to the community 
and collaborate on future needs 

LA
ND

 U
SE

CO
M

M
U

NI
TY

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
&

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES

EC
ON

OM
IC

 D
EV

EL
OP

M
EN

T

PU
BL

IC
 F

AC
IL

IT
IE

S

CU
LT

U
RA

L 
AN

D 
EN

VI
RO

NM
EN

TA
L 

FA
CT

OR
S

KEY THEMES

Page 93Item 10.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Authorize Staff to Acquire Proposals for YMCA Financial Feasibility and Future Recreation 

Feasibility Study 

Background 

Information: 

The City of Marshall in January approved a resolution requesting sales tax authorization for an 
aquatic center and an indoor recreation facility. Since that time, current proposed legislation 
does not include an indoor recreation facility due the sentiment that additional information 
would be needed to garner legislature and public support.  
 
Recently the city received a request from the Marshall Area YMCA to study financial viability 
and future recreation needs as a community and YMCA.  
 
Many comparable communities have developed master park plans which includes analyzing 
future recreation needs as part of their plans. Further, in MN and nationwide, YMCAs have 
explored or have existing arrangements with cities. (Attached is a summary sheet of a few 
arrangements—but not inclusive of existing arrangements in the State of MN) 

Fiscal Impact: To Be Determined 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No Action 

Recommendations: Authorize Staff to Acquire Proposals for YMCA Financial Feasibility and Future Recreation 

Feasibility Study 

 

Page 94Item 11.



Page 95Item 11.



2021 Marshall & YMCA – Partnership Discussion 

 

Other Community Partnerships Fact/Summary Sheet 

City  City of Hermantown City of St. Cloud City of Mankato 

YMCA Duluth Area Family YMCA St. Cloud Area Family YMCA Mankato Family YMCA 
City Owned Facility  Essentia Wellness Center Aquatic and Recreational Facility Tourtellotte Pool 

YMCA Role  Ongoing day-to-day operation of the Essentia Wellness Center 
following the completion of construction. Including early 
childcare center as well as other activity conducted on the 
project by the YMCA such as leasing to a coffee shop and 
management of scheduling of the use of the community and 
common areas. Will provide all staffing personnel required to 
properly operate the property.  

Responsible for the management of programs and 
services provided at the facility. The YMCA will oversee 
establishing pricing. 

Agreement to manage and operate the pool during the summer months. 

Contract Term Length  Contract began in 2019 and will terminate prior to December 
31st, 2048. 

Term is for a period of 20 lease years with option of 
extension.  

Initial contract agreement was a 3-year contract term with automatic 
renewal every year. 

Insurance & Liability  YMCA must have comprehensive general liability insurance that 
covers the services performed by the YMCA for the City.  
 
City must have property insurance and commercial general 
liability insurance.  

YMCA shall maintain commercial general liability 
insurance.   
 
City shall maintain “all risk” property insurance.  

Both parties shall carry and maintain full force liability insurance coverage. 

Notice of Cancellation  Either party can cancel the agreement for any reason upon 180 
days written notice to the other party. 

No amendment, modification, or termination of this 
agreement shall be valid unless in writing and duly 
executed by both parties.  

Either party can cancel the agreement for any reason upon 60 days written 
notice to the other party. 

City’s Financial Obligations    The City shall perform capital maintenance and repairs to the 
entire Essentia Wellness Center including the YMCA project area.  

Provide $10 million for the voter approved local option 
sales tax towards construction of the building and other 
necessary improvements.  
 
City is responsible for all maintenance costs of the 
exterior area and building structure as well as 
water/sewer expenses.  

Pay the YMCA for its related pool management and staffing costs. They will 
pay 20% above cost for these services. Cost includes labor rates plus 
benefits. Pay the YMCA the contract amount over three 1/3 payments 
throughout the swim season.  
 
Responsible for all capital improvements and repairs, utility costs, HVAC 
repairs, equipment replacement and pool accessories for a safe operation.  

YMCA Financial Obligations Cost incurred by YMCA related to the start-up of the project not 
to exceed $300,000.00. Responsible for creating an annual 
budget for each calendar year to cover all expected expenses 
and revenue related to the center. 
 
YMCA shall at its own expense, perform routine maintenance 
and repair of the school exclusive use area, YMCA project area, 
and common areas.  

YMCA will provide an estimated $10 million in donations 
from privately driven fundraising campaigns towards 
construction and building improvements.  
 
The YMCA shall pay as rent the sum of $1.00 per lease 
year payable to the City on or before the 1st day of year 
lease year, and any other sums and charges required to 
be paid.  
 
Responsible for paying all operational costs as well as 
regular and routine maintenance.  

Responsible for all costs associated with concessions sales and may collect 
100% of the revenue.  
 
Collects all pool revenues (general public, after hours use, Mantas, Marlins 
swim team, etc.) and deposit daily into the City’s bank account. 

Additions There will be a six-member oversight committee  City will be allowed to have two board members (one 
staff and one elected official) on the YMCA Board of 
Directors. 

 

 

Page 96Item 11.



2021 Marshall & YMCA – Partnership Discussion 

 
 

 

 

Other Community Partnerships Fact/Summary Sheet 

City  City of Worthington City of Worthington City of Worthington  

YMCA Worthington Area YMCA 
 

Worthington Area YMCA 
 

Worthington Area YMCA 
 

City Owned Facility  The Center for Active Living Allow use of softball diamonds and truckster with ball field 
groomer/leveler.  

Outdoor pool facility  

YMCA Role  Responsible for all programming services which may be held at 
the center, YMCA, or elsewhere.  

YMCA promotes, operates, manages and schedules youth 
programs in addition to the creation and distribution of a 
summer recreation brochure.  

YMCA operates the Aquatic Center and outdoor pool facility on behalf 
of the City. City Council will be responsible for setting admission rate 
on an annual basis.  

Contract Term Length  One year agreement with the opportunity for extension  One year agreement   States “long-term agreement”  

Insurance & Liability   Both parties shall maintain occurrence based general liability 
insurance. 

Both parties shall maintain occurrence based general liability 
insurance. 

Both parties shall maintain occurrence based general liability 
insurance. 

Notice of Cancellation  Either party can cancel the agreement for any reason upon 60 
days written notice to the other party. 

N/A Either party can cancel the agreement for any reason upon 60 days 
written notice to the other party. 

City’s Financial Obligations    City pays YMCA $300.00 per month which sum represents a 
management fee. Payment is due the first of each month.  
 
City shall pay for all expenses associated with the center 
including, all maintenance, utilities, janitorial, furniture, repairs 
to the facility; and all program fees, mailing costs, and copying 
costs. 
 

City agrees to pay a management fee of $55,620.00 to the 
YMCA. The management fee shall be paid in twelve equal 
monthly instalments by the end of the month.  
 
City agrees to share in expense of documented cost for any 
new program offerings agreed upon by both parties.  

City shall pay for 100% of the capital expense of the outdoor pool 
facility as well as all maintenance needed.  
 
The YMCA shall provide financials on an annual basis and the City 
agrees to pay for any operational shortfalls on the outdoor pool facility 
operations. 
 
City to pay 50% of aquatic center director position. 

YMCA Financial Obligations The only expense to be borne by the YMCA, subject to 
reimbursement, will be the salary and benefits of the 
coordinator.  

YMCA is the recipient of 100% of the program fees collected 
for each activity promotes as the City’s summer youth 
recreation program. 
 
Agrees to be responsible for 100% of the expenditures 
including: staff salaries, promotional materials and program 
offerings promoted by the YMCA and approved by the city as 
a youth recreation activity.  

YMCA shall pay for all maintenance (noncapital) expenses for the 
indoor pool facility. 
 
YMCA to pay 50% of aquatic center director position.  

Additions   The outdoor pool will be access from a separate entrance from the 
YMCA and will provide restroom and locker room facilities.  

 

 

Page 97Item 11.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Consideration of renewal agreement options with J&M Displays, Inc., for 4th of July fireworks. 

Background 

Information: 

The City of Marshall has a fully executed agreement with J&M Displays, Inc., (previously 
Pyrotechnic Display, Inc.) for fireworks display at Independence Park on July 4, 2022. (Current 
agreement included). 

J&M Displays, Inc., has informed the City that to maintain financial and operational integrity, 
their company will be implementing a 20% price increase, effective January 1st, 2022. 
(Notification letter included). J&M will honor the 2019 agreed upon fee ($11,800.00) for 2022. 
 
The City has traditionally approved three-year agreements for fireworks to secure the most 
cost-effective pricing from a reputable vendor. J&M Displays, Inc., is offering the City two 
options as planning begins for 2023 and beyond. 

Fiscal Impact: A one-year Fireworks Display Agreement (FDA) for 2023 can be secured for $14,160.00 OR a 

Multiple Year Agreement (MYA) for 2023, 2024 and 2025 can be secured for a yet-to-be 

determined amount – both options with J&M Displays, Inc. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

An additional proposal was solicited from Hollywood Pyrotechnics, Inc., (Eagan, Minnesota) for 

2023 at a rate of $1,000 per minute of display. This proposal is presented at a $15,000 

minimum. 

Recommendations: Council provide direction on securing a 4th of July fireworks display vendor for 2023 (and 

beyond if desired). 

 

Page 98Item 12.



Page 99Item 12.



Page 100Item 12.



1Revised 04/27/2020

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this___________day of_____________________, 20______, by and between 
J & M Displays, Inc., an Iowa corporation, having its principal place of business at Yarmouth, Iowa, including its employees, owners, and 
agents, hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, and ______________________________________________, hereinafter referred to as “Buyer”.

Seller shall furnish to Buyer one (1) fireworks display, as per the $______________________program submitted and accepted by the Buyer, 
and which by reference is made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”.  The display is to take place on the evening of ____________________________, 
20______ at approximately ______:______ pm, weather permitting.

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS:

1. Firing of Display (check one of the below options) :

Seller  agrees  to  furnish  all  necessary  fireworks  display  material  and  personnel  for  a  fireworks  display  in accordance 
with the program approved by the parties.  Seller agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal guidelines pertaining to the 
storing and displaying of fireworks.

 Buyer waives the services of Seller’s technician.  Buyer is a municipality or has a valid permit from the Bureau of Alcohol, 
Tobacco, Firearms & Explosives and will be firing the display.

2. Payment.  The Buyer shall pay to the Seller (check one of the below options) :

 the sum of $________________________ as a down payment upon execution of this Agreement. The balance of 
$________________________ shall be due and payable in full within fifteen (15) days after the date of the fireworks 
display.  A service charge of one and one-half percent (1 ½%) per month shall be added to the unpaid balance if the 
account is not paid in full within the fifteen (15) days from the date of the show.  If this account remains unpaid and is turned over 
to a collection agency for non-payment, all fees incurred in collecting the balance will be at the Buyer’s expense. All returned 
checks will be assessed a $30.00 fee.

$__________________________________ in full by ____________________________ (70 days prior to event date). 
The Buyer will receive the 8% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display.

$__________________________________ in full by ____________________________ (30 days prior to event date). 
The Buyer will receive the 5% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display.

3. Postponement/Cancellation.  Displays postponed to an alternate date will be charged an additional 15% of the total contract price
for additional expenses incurred in presenting the display on an alternate date.

In the event the display is cancelled and not re-scheduled, J&M Displays, Inc. shall be entitled to 20% of the contract price for out of
pocket expenses incurred in preparation for the show.

4. Rain Date.  Should inclement weather prevent the firing of the display on the date mentioned herein, the parties agree to a
mutually convenient rain date of  ______________________________ or another date as agreed to by both parties.  Once display set-
up has begun, the determination to cancel the fireworks display because of inclement weather or unsafe weather conditions shall rest
within the sole discretion of the AHJ, Seller, and the lead pyrotechnician.

5. Insurance.  If Seller is firing the show, Seller agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage, in an amount not
less than $10,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display, shall submit to the Buyer, if requested in writing,
a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an additional insured.  In the event of a claim
by Buyer, the applicable deductible shall be paid by the Seller.

The Seller agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and its agents and employees from and against all claims, costs,
judgments, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees that may or shall arise out of any negligent or wrongful act or
omission by the Seller related to the performance of the fireworks by the Buyer.  The Buyer agrees to give the Seller prompt notice of any
claims or demands and to cooperate with the Seller or its successors in interest or assigns, if any, in the defense of any such claims and/
or demands.

FIREWORKS DISPLAY AGREEMENT

8th March 22

City of Marshall, Minnesota

14,160.00
Tuesday, July 4th

23 10 15

■

■
14,160.00

0.00

Page 101Item 12.



2Revised 04/27/2020

6. Buyer agrees to provide:

(a) Sufficient area for the display, including a minimum spectator set back as determined by Seller.

(b) Protection of the display area by roping off or similar facility.

(c) Adequate police protection to prevent spectators from entering display area.

(d) Dry, clean sand, if needed, for firing.

(e) Persons to assist in the inspection and cleanup of fireworks debris in the fallout zone of the shoot site at first light in
the morning following the display for anything that may have been missed at the night search.

(f) Necessary local permits.

7. No representation of affirmation of fact, including but not limited to statement regarding capacity, suitability for use, or performance
of equipment or products shall be, or deemed to be a warranty by the Seller for any purpose, nor give rise to any liability or obligation 
of the Seller whatsoever, except for acts of Seller’s negligence as above stated.

8. It is further understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to mean a partnership.  Both
parties hereto being responsible for their separate and individual debts and obligations, and neither party shall be responsible for
any agreements not stipulated in this Agreement.  The Agreement shall not be construed to have been drafted, authored, or written
by any specific Party.  Rather, the Agreement shall be construed as co-drafted, co-authored, or co-written by the Parties.  Therefore, 
the Agreement shall not be construed against any Party on the claim or basis the Agreement was drafted, written, or authored by
any specific Party.

9. The parties hereto do mutually and severally guarantee terms, conditions, and payments of this Agreement. This document shall be
binding upon the parties, themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

10. Excluded Damages and Limitation of Liability.  Except for claims covered by Seller’s applicable general liability insurance,
notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement:

(a) In no event shall Seller be liable to Buyer or any third party for any loss of use, revenue or profit or for any consequential, 
incidental, indirect, exemplary, special, or punitive damages whether arising out of breach of contract, tort (including
negligence), or otherwise, regardless of whether such damage was forseeable and whether or not such party has been 
advised of the possibility of such damages.

(b) In no event shall Seller’s liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether arising out of or related to breach
of contract, tort (including negligence), or otherwise, exceed the aggregate amount paid or payable to Seller pursuant
to this Agreement.

11. Choice of Law, Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Iowa without regard to conflict-of-law principles, except as otherwise specifically required for the storing and display-
ing of fireworks as provided in paragraph one above.  Notwithstanding, the Parties must bring any legal or equitable action or
proceeding arising under or related to this Agreement exclusively in the Iowa District Court in and for Des Moines County, Iowa.
The Iowa District Court in and for Des Moines County, Iowa shall have exclusive jurisdiction to decide any disputes arising out of
or related to this Agreement.  Each Party knowingly and voluntarily consents to and expressly waives any objection or defense
to personal jurisdiction, improper or inconvenient venue, or inconvenient forum in the Iowa District Court in and for Des Moines
County, Iowa.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:  __________________________________________ BY:  _________________________________________________
        J & M Displays, Inc.
        SELLER BUYER

Please include the DISPLAY INFORMATION FORM with this Agreement so your order is processed accurately.

Scott VanDerMillen/City of Marshall, MN

Page 102Item 12.



This Agreement is made and entered into this _________ day of _________________________, 20____, by and between 
J & M Displays, Inc., an  Iowa  corporation, having its principal place of business in Yarmouth, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as 
Seller, and the _____________________________________, hereinafter referred to as the Buyer. Whereas, the parties agree 
as follows:

1. Seller is in the business of providing fireworks displays. More specifically, Seller is in the business of providing fireworks
for display.

2. Buyer hereby agrees to purchase all of their fireworks exclusively from Seller for the next three years  (20____,  20____,
20____).  In  consideration thereof, Seller hereby agrees to provide bonus product to the Buyer in an amount based on
the total dollars of fireworks purchased by Buyer for a given year. The Seller will have the final choice of bonus product
but said product is to be fireworks of like quality and condition as the fireworks purchased by Buyer from Seller for the
given year. The bonus schedule is as follows:

• 1st year: Bonus product equaling a dollar value of 5% of the total fireworks dollar value purchased by
Buyer (total dollar value is fireworks only and excludes cost of insurance, shoot fee, taxes, etc.);

• 2nd year: Bonus product equaling a dollar value of 10% of the total fireworks dollar value purchased by
Buyer (total dollar value is fireworks only and excludes cost of insurance, shoot fee, taxes, etc.);

• 3rd year: Bonus product equaling a dollar value of 15% of the total fireworks dollar value purchased by
Buyer (total dollar value is fireworks only and excludes cost of insurance, shoot fee, taxes, etc.).

3. In addition to the “bonus product” described above, Buyer will also be entitled for each year of this Agreement to receive 
8% of bonus product of like quality and condition as the fireworks purchased by the Buyer for the given year if Buyer
provides an early order (all paperwork and payment for the fireworks display provided to Seller at least 70 days prior to
display date). In the event that Seller should increase the amount of its bonus product percentage for “early order” for
the years of this exclusive Agreement, Seller agrees to match the increased bonus product percentage for Buyer these
given years.

4. In no way is Buyer obligated to purchase fireworks from Seller for any of the years covered by this Agreement. Rather,
Buyer is only obligated to purchase fireworks from Seller should Buyer opt, at Buyer’s sole discretion, to have a fireworks 
display at its events for the years in question.

5. Extension: The final year of the Multiple Year Agreement the buyer will have the option to extend the Multiple Year
Agreement for an additional three years if both parties mutually agree and a Multiple Year Agreement Extension is
completed and signed.

6. Termination: This Agreement will expire three (3) years from its execution. The Buyer or Seller may terminate this
Agreement within 30 days after their fireworks display date. If Agreement is not terminated within  the 30-day deadline,
this Agreement will be in full force and effect for the following year.

J & M DISPLAYS, INC.

______________________________________________ ______________________________________________
Seller Buyer

______________________________________________ ______________________________________________
Date Date

MULTIPLE YEAR AGREEMENT

Revised 01/08/20

8th March 22

City of Marshall, Minnesota

23 24
25

Page 103Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 1 

Bennie Netzley 
Manager / Display Operator 

 

Hollywood Pyrotechnics, Inc. 
1567 Antler Point 
Eagan, MN  55122 

bennie@hollywoodpyrotechnics.com 
651-454-7976  or  763-218-1638 cell 
1-866-PYRO411 (797-6411) toll-free 

 
 

 
 

Marshall 4th of July 
Fireworks Proposal 

from  
Hollywood Pyrotechnics, Inc. 

 
Hollywood Pyrotechnics is a Minnesota based fireworks company, founded in 2002 with the focus 
of great fireworks products, great service start to finish and every show choreographed and 
electronically fired.  We pride ourselves on great displays with wonderful products – many of which 
we specifically design in our trips to the factories each fall. 
 
Below are typical RFP requests, and our responses.   Some provide options or variations that we 
can work through based on your needs or desires.  Overall though we will seek to guide you 
towards the best display possible for your site and audience viewing angles.   We focus on safety 
first, but pride ourselves on the fantastic show we can present. 
 
 
 
A typical 4th of July display runs $1,000 per minute for an exciting 
display of the intensity and scope that will impress the citizens of 
your city.   We typically quote a price and aim for a ballpark duration 
that we mutually agree upon.  Duration is an estimate as we give 
our lead operators freedom to vary the pace of the display based on 
real-time audience feedback.   
 
 
At this time, we cannot offer a contract for 2022 as we do not have a 
licensed fireworks operator available to do your display, nor do we 
have a CDL licensed driver to transport the fireworks from our 
warehouse to you.  Our hope is that we will be able to groom a new 
Lead Operator and Driver by 2023, but do note that this proposal is 
contingent on adding said individuals to our staff list. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 104Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 2 

Key consideration elements: 
1. Description of the show 

1. Estimated length of time for the display 
A general “rule of thumb” estimate is $1000 per minute of display.  For a 4th of July display, our 
minimum budget is $15,000 as we need to recover the costs of adding a new display to our 
schedule – equipment must be purchased or built, crew trained, etc…  We can accommodate any 
budget at or above the $15,000 minimum, with the typical city display coming in at $20k-$25k. 
 

2. Minimum/maximum height of the display 
Height of the display depends on the sizes of shells used.  NFPA 1123 requires a minimum of 70’ 
per inch diameter shell as a safety zone clear of people, cars, occupied buildings.  Roads that fall 
within a safety zone must be closed ½ hour before the show, and remain closed until the crew 
does a “dud” serch and determines the road to be safe for the general public to enter.  This 
typically takes around 45 minutes, but could be double that if a dud shell is found. 
 

3. Total shell count 
I do not bid on shell count.  Typically where this is asked I just don’t bid.  This is such a fallacy in 
the industry, and is often very wrong.   Worse yet, if it is accurate, and the count is high, it means 
it is very low cost shells, or very small shells being offered, often resulting in a poor quality display.   
Hollywood Pyrotechnics provides high quality shells, which carry a higher cost, but also have more 
effects, brighter colors, and longer duration.  If your primary determining factor is shell count, stop 
reading, and throw this away.  If your goal is a great display, then please look to our story, our 
references and our ability to really WOW your audience.  And not through shell count, but through 
shell quality and choreography usage.  
 

4. Descriptions of the shells used, including size and brand names 
We have been traveling to China, and working with the factories there for a couple decades now.   
We have seen a lot, shared a lot and helped build new brands and new product effects.  The 
brands we use are ones we have spearheaded on import into the USA.  Today 98% of the world’s 
fireworks are manufactured in China, and 90% of that is from one area – Liuyang in Hunan China.  
Doesn’t matter if the shell is a Chinese effect, Japanese effect, Spanish effect, Italian effect or 
even American effect – they are all made there.   We pick a great balance between exceptional 
quality and reasonable cost to select a wide range of effects, paying more for longer duration, 
more diverse and brighter colors and often unique and highly detailed effects.   
 
In a display we use shells from 2.5” through 8” in size, depending on available safety zone.   
Smaller shells are fired in volleys, and larger shells are crowning glory over the walls of effects.  
Additional multi-shot cakes with tube sizes of 1” to 2” are often used to provide fast movement 
(fans), as well as a fast repetitive base effect.   These change the pace of the display and provide 
for some incredible presentation. 
 
We maintain a mix of large and smaller shells, creating a moving 
sequence of effects in the night sky.  If all the effects go into one 
spot in the sky, it gets boring, and it also gets clouded with smoke, 
which mutes the colors. 
 
Our primary brands of shells and cakes include; Red Eagle, 
Celebration, Tang Hua and YiHeLong. All customized and imported 
by Hollywood Pyrotechnics. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 3 

 
 

5. Special features or highlights used in the 
display 

To us the entire display is special…  but as some 
details we provide for some great Red / White and 
Blue segments, as well as great and unique shells.   
Some of the unique shells we offer are Ghost shells 
– the surface of the shell moves across it with color 
change from dark to light to dark, giving a moving 
or rotating appearance.  Quadrant shells – not just a 
half and half color effect, but a set of 4 colors in 
separate quarters of the shell.   It’s a really fun 
looking effect.  Crossettes provide for a break with 
multiple points of light, then each breaking into 4 
separate points of light.  Wind Bell is a long hanging 
and spinning strobe effect, that we usually cap off a 
finale with.   Intense Gold in the Finale – a 
traditionally Spanish effect is an amazing sight to 
see with traces of gold cross crossing through the 
dark night sky in a wide presentation and continuing 
for some time. 
 

6. List unique or creative fireworks your 
company can supply 

Following are just some of the unique and special 
firework effects we provided in 2021 to customers all 
over the upper Midwest – providing jaw dropping 
displays again and again. 
 
2.5in Chain of 10 Shells  - Gold Willow to Variegated 
2.5in Chain of 10 Shells  - Golden Strobe 
2.5in Chain of 10 Shells  - Brocade Crown Kamuro to Variegated 
2.5in Chain of 10 Shells  - TI Salute with One Double Crackle  
3in Chain of 10 Shells  - Variegated Ring w/White Strobe Pistil 
3in Chain of 10 Shells  - Corolla and Red Special Strobe Pistil 
3in Chain of 10 Shells  - Brocade Chrys with Color Strobe Pistil 
3in Chain of 10 Shells  - TI Salute with 1 Double Crackle w/Tail 
4in Chain of 3 Shells  - Variegated Peony to Brocade Ring 
4in Chain of 3 Shells  - Gold Strobe Crossette and Brocade Ring 
4in Chain of 3 Shells  - Brocade Crown to Red Strobe and Red Strobe Pistil 
4in Chain of 3 Shells  - Red Heart 
4in Chain of 6 Shells  - 2x (Red Crossette  Glitter Crossette  Blue Crossette) 
4in Chain of 6 Shells  - TI Salute with One Double Crackle 
4in Chain of 6 Shells  - Purple Crossette w/ Lemon Pistil 
4in Chain of 6 Shells  - Red Ring w/ Variegated Go-Getters 
4in Chain of 6 Shells  - Super Gold Willow (Very Long Duration) 
5in Chain of 3 Shells  - Midnight Snow Ring and Double Color Peony 
5in Chain of 3 Shells  - Brocade Crown Chrys 
5in Chain of 3 Shells  - Smiley Face 
5in Chain of 3 Shells  - White Strobe w/ Red Crossette 
5in Chain of 3 Shells  - Silver Ring with Blue Pistil & Brocade Crown Ring w/ Silver Crackling 
5in Chain of 3 Shells  - Brocade Chrys with Color Strobe Pistil 
Red Peony with Glittering Golden Palm Tree Core 
White Peony with Glittering Golden Palm Tree Core 
Blue Peony with Glittering Golden Palm Tree Core 
Red Ring with White Strobe Core 
White Ring with Red Strobe Core 
Blue Ring with White Strobe Core 
Dark to Red Peony with Silver Kamuro Ring 
Dark to White Peony with Silver Kamuro Ring 
Dark to Blue Peony with Silver Kamuro Ring 

Page 106Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 4 

Silver Glittering Willow with Red Strobe Pistil 
Silver Glittering Willow wirh White Fish Pistil 
Silver Glittering Willow with Blue  Pistil 
Gold Horse Tail to Green Glitter Strobe  
Gold Horse Tail to Red Glitter Strobe  
Gold Horse Tail to Orange Glitter Strobe  
Moving Star Red and Green Variegated  
Moving Star Yellow and Purple Variegated 
Moving Star Red and Blue Variegated 
Crackling Rain with Purple 
Crackling Rain with Blue 
Crackling Rain with Pink 
Tourbillion and Blue Stars 
Tourbillion and Red Stars 
Whistle and Green Stars 
Gold Willow to Purple with Purple Pistil 
Gold Willow to Green with Green Strobe Pistil 
Gold Willow to Red with Red Strobe Pistil 
1/4 Red 1/4 Blue 1/4 Green 1/4 Yellow Peony - Quadrants 
1/4 Pink 1/4 Purple 1/4 Lime Green 1/4 Blue Peony - Quadrants 
1/4 Red Strobe 1/4 Orange Strobe 1/4 Green Strobe 1/4 Silver Strobe Peony - Quadrants 
Red Crossette 
Gold Crossette 
Silver Crossette 
Brocade Crown to Red  
Brocade Crown to White Strobe 
Brocade Crown to Blue 
Red Dark Red  
Red/ White /Blue Wave  
Red to Delayed Crackle  
Silver Crackling Crossette  
Silver Time Rain Crossette  
Red Coconut Tree Crossette w/ Silver Coconut Pistil  
Magenta Peony  
Red & Green Peony  
Cycus Bloom to Color Tips  
Diadem Chrys to Red w/ Blue Pistil  
Brocade Crown Kamuro to Variegated  
Golden Strobe w/Green Pistil  
Special Color Strobe  
Special Green Strobe  
Special Lemon Strobe  
Special Orange Strobe  
Special White Strobe  
Special Red Strobe  
Variegated Strobe  
White Strobe Willow  
Willow to Dark to Multi Color (Red Blue Green Yellow)  
Green Strobe w/Red Go Getter  
Red & Green Go Getter  
Purple Go-Getter  
Color Dahlia w/Silver Flash Pistil  
Purple Dahlia  
Green Ring to Crackle Star w/ Red Pistil  
Dragon Eggs with Palm Core  
Gold Crackle Chrys with Green Pistil  
Silver Crackling Willow w/ Blue Dahlia  
Gold Willow to Variegated  
Brocade Chrys with Color Strobe Pistil  
Brocade Crown to Blue w/Golden Strobe Pistil  
Brocade Crown to Crackling Willow 
Glittering Silver to Red to Blue  
Red to White to Blue Peony  
Blue to Red to White Strobe  
Red Coconut Tree Crossette w/ Silver Coconut Pistil  
Silver Ring with Blue Pistil & Brocade Crown Ring w/ Silver Crackling  
Gold Light Band to White Strobe   
Gold Strobe Peony w/ Blue Pistil  
Red Special Strobe  

Page 107Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 5 

White Strobe w/ Green Go Getter Pistil  
Hundreds Dragons Dance shells  
Whistles and multi-color bees shells  
Eight Flowers Chrysanthemum   
Brocade Crown to Crackling Willow   
Golden Silk Chrysanthemum w/ Red Glitter Pistil  
Super Gold Willow (Very Long Duration)  
Red Chrys with Coconut Pistil  
Gold Wave to Purple Chrysanthemum  
Brocade Chrys With Multi-Color Strobe Pistil  
Silver Wave to Blue  
Silver Wave to Green  
Silver Wave to Red   
Brocade Waterfall / Horsetail with Green falling Leaves  
Brocade Waterfall / Horsetail with Purple falling Leaves  
Brocade Waterfall / Horsetail with Red Falling Leaves 
Glittering Crown Dahlia 
Twilight Glitter to Purple Star with Green Strobe Pistil 
Brocade Crown to Red Star with White Strobe Pistil 
Orange / Violet / Lime Dahlia with White Glitter Pistil 
Red Peony to Blue Peony with White Strobe Pistil 
Red / Blue / Green / Yellow Quadrant Peony 
Pink / Purple / Lime Green / Blue Quadrant Peony 
Red / Blue Falling Leaves 
Half Purple Half Green Peony with Silver Kamuro Ring 
Jelly Fish 
Sunglow Glitter to Purple Star Butterfly 
Color Kaleidoscope (R G Y B P) <Stained Glass> 
Multicolor Strobe Waterfall (red green lemon orange ) 
Crossing Timed Rings (Red Grn Pur) Ghost Shell 
Silver Glitter Crown to Red and Blue 
RWB Stained Glass 
Multi Color Strobe 
Blue Peony w/ Coco and Red Pistil 
Gold Spangle w/ Green Pistil 
1/4 Red Green Purple Yellow Peony W/ Pistil 
Aqua Peony in Pink Circle W/ Brocade Waterfall Pistil 
Blue Cherry Blossom 
Golden Silk Chrysanthemum 
Hundred Bees 
Multi-Color Small Flowers W/ Crackling Balls 
Nishiki Kamuro Niagara Falls 
Nishiki Kamuro Shell 
Red Cherry Blossom 
Gold Glitter with Red Strobe Glittering 
Red/Blue/Green/Yellow Quadrant Peony 
Red Strobe/Orange Strobe/Green Strobe/White Quadrant Strobe 
Brocade ring to pink with sky blue pistil 
Green to Purple Sweeper Ring 
Lemon Ghost Ring  
Golden Willow 
Red Ghost Shell 
Silver Ghost Shell 
Blue Ghost Shell 
Wind Bell 
Gold Brocade Horsetail 
Red and Green Crossette with Tail  
Double Petal w/ Pistil Gold Ti-Willow w/ Aqua Pistil and Purple Inner Pistil  
½  Purple ½  Silver w/ ½ Silver ½ Purple Pistil   
Stained Glass with Gold Strobe Pistil  
Jelly Fish Pattern  
Thousands of  Color Chrysanthemum with Red Crossettes  
Platinum Orido Nishiki w/ Green Pistil   
Multi Color Dahlia w/ Gold Palm Pistil    
Purple Peony to Many Red Flowers      
Giant Golden Silk Chrysanthemum with Rising Red Flowers   
Windbell - Strobe Red 
Windbell - Strobe While 
Brocade Crown to Red Strobe 

Page 108Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 6 

 
 

7. Space requirements 
Minnesota Statues and NFPA 1123 requirement dictate a minimum safety distance of 70 feet per 
inch diameter of shell.  So a 3” shell is 210 feet, 5” is 350 feet and 8” is 560 feet, as some 
examples.   Generally we seek a larger space than this, to accommodate some wind and or other 
factors that may affect safety.  Additionally a wider area will allow us to setup walls of effects that 
create a wider field of view of the audience, increasing the excitement for the show.   Generally we 
look for about 100 feet per inch diameter of shell, and or the ability to shift or move around some 
to accommodate wind.   Other options can be optionally closing some areas, expanding the safety 
zone, should weather call for the need.   
 
 

8. Written description of set-up and take-down procedures, including equipment or 
supplies used 

Hollywood Pyrotechnics uses mortar racks with high quality HDPE mortars in racks that are 
screwed, glued and painted to provide long life and stable operation.   The racks are setup on the 
field and secured into pods.   The fireworks are loaded, wired and checked a pod at a time.  Pods 
can be loaded in the rain/snow, and then covered and secured with plastic to provide exceptional 
weather protection.   We can setup and fire rain or shine.   
 
The field is clear of all personnel during firing, allowing all crew members to act as security and 
monitors for the display.   Once the display is complete a 15 minute ‘cool down’ period is observed 
before entering the field and checking mortars.  During that period the outer regions of the display 
site are checked for any possible duds, working our way inward.   Finally the racks are checked 
and confirmed or cleared to be empty and then teardown of the site begins.  Equipment is put 
away, and then the field is cleaned up including collection of all larger debris in the field.  The area 
is again checked for any remaining live material, and then the team departs.  A crew member 
checks the field again in the morning with daylight to examine for anything that may have been 
missed. 
 

9. Clean-up procedures, including inspection of grounds 
As noted above, cleanup is done the night of the display, with inspection of any remaining live 
material the night of the display as well as the next morning. 
 

10. All Federal and State permits and regulations must be obtained and met. 
We do all our work ‘by the book’.  Copies of some of our federal licenses, permits and operating 
certificates are available for BATFE, DOT, PHMSA and more. 
 

11. Copy of Certificate of Liability Insurance 
We will provide a Certificate of Liability Insurance upon signing of the contract.  All of our displays 
carry a $2 Million limit, which is above and beyond the $1.5 Million policy that Minnesota State Law 
requires. 
 

12. Letters of Reference with contact names and phone numbers from Minnesota cities or 
events that have hired your company within the past two (2) years 

Multiple twin cities events have repeatedly used Hollywood Pyrotechnics year after year.   
Following are some post display comments or notes provided to us, and their contact information. 

• Blaine 4th of July -  
Hi Mira – it was an awesome show!  I heard so many positive comments.  THANK YOU!  Keep us 
on your calendar for next year  
Shari Kunza | Recreation Manager | Blaine Parks and Recreation 
10801 Town Square Drive | Blaine, MN 55449 | 763-717-2723  
skunza@ci.blaine.mn.us  
 
 

Page 109Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 7 

 
 

• St. Louis Park 4th of July 
Mira, 
 
In municipal government, you rarely hear the positive comments from residents.  The email below 
was a great surprise and it isn’t the only positive comment we received regarding your fireworks 
display.  We even had a council member go out of their way to let us know how impressed he was 
with your show.  I have heard from numerous individuals how you had a finale after the 
finale…which was awesome! 
 
I was at a different show in a different community and I was sorely disappointed.  I have found 
myself starting to time entire shows and evaluate to see how sporadic the fireworks are.  You have 
taught me so much about this industry. 
 
Mira, you and your crew do amazing work!  Please pass these comments to Dick and the crew and 
thank them for all the hard work they do to make the St. Louis Park 4th of July event the best it 
can be. 
>>	WOW!!!			It	was	another	spectacular	fireworks	show.			I	live	near	Aquila	Park	and	have	been	
>>	able	to	walk	over	to	the	park	to	enjoy	the	display	for	many	many	years,	and	I	think	that	this		
>>	was	one	of	the	best	you've	put	on.			It	was	exciting	from	beginning	to	end,	with	no	long	pauses		
>>	between	rockets,	and	the	finale	was	especially	wonderful.		Thanks	to	everyone	for	all	their		
>>	hard	work	-	it	was	well	worth	it,	and	is	another	reason	I	love	living	in	this	community.	
Jason T. West, CPRP 
Recreation Superintendent | City of St. Louis Park 
3700 Monterey Dr., St. Louis Park, MN 55416 
Office: 952-924-2554 
www.stlouispark.org 
jwest@stlouispark.org  
 

• Chisago Aug 20th Chi Ki Saga Days 
Was awesome!! Thank you !! 
Doris Zacho 
Chisago Parks and Rec 
dzacho@ci.chisago.mn.us  | Fax: 651-257-0695 | phone: 651-257-4162 
www.ci.chisago.mn.us  
 

• East Bethel July 16th East Bethel Booster Days 
Yes!!!!  I was just going to send you an email! Let's get the agreement going for next year. 
Mark DuCharme 
Fire Chief / Emergency Management Director 
City of East Bethel 
2241  221st Avenue NE 
East Bethel, MN 55011 
763-367-7886 
mark.ducharme@ci.east-bethel.mn.us  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110Item 12.



Hollywood Pyrotechnics – Proposal for Marshall, MN   Page 8 

• Hay Days Sept 10th – largest US Snowmobile swap meet (30,000 attendees) 
I just got a minute to sit down and tell you that I'm so proud of you guys and what a great job you 
did on the fireworks show....  We are the talk of the area.  Everyone loved it, it was amazing   
Thank you.  Thank you.   Keep this weekend open for next year � � �   thank you Meshell 
Meshell Gorsegner 
Planner/Buyer 
 (763) 572-4572 
5280 Main Street NE 
Minneapolis, MN  55421 
mgorsegner@kurt.com 
 

• Black Bear Casino Anniversary – Carlton MN – Aug 19th 
Mira, I wanted to touch base with you before you contacted me. I apologize, I was out of the 
office yesterday.  Your display was AMAZING! I was watching the crowd and there was not a single 
face that was not staring at the sky and a look of awe. It will be talked about for a very long time 
(like last year…they hype from that was still going strong). I loved the final firework and how that 
just hung in the air! Amazing is such an understatement.  You did a fantastic job…pleasure to work 
with you.   Thank you! 
Becky Armstrong 
Marketing Assistant/Black Bear Casino Resort 
E-mail: beckyarmstrong@fdlrez.com   
DIR/ 218.878.2417 
FAX/ 218.878.2419 
 
 
I could list dozens more… but I believe this gives a general idea of our exceptional work, product 
and focus to great fireworks displays! 
 
 
NOTE: 

1. Additional items used in the proposal may include sample of shows through the use of 
video or other information as the pyrotechnic company sees fit to include.  Hollywood Pyrotechnics 
has a YouTube Channel.   You may examine our shows posted there.   The real interesting ones 
however are more of what the audience has videoed and their comments while filming and being 
amazed.  YouTube:   www.YouTube.com/user/HollywoodPyrotech  
 

2. Fireworks are ignited electronically. 
100% of Hollywood Pyrotechnics displays are electrically fired with professional firing equipment 
from PyroMate. 
 

3. Fireworks display is continuous, with minimal gaps between displays. 
We preload mortars 100% and fire for dramatic effect throughout the show. 
 
 
It is our focus to provide the best possible display for Marshall, with a professional display team.   
You can confirm our safety record with the State Fire Marshal.  Know that we go the extra step to 
provide a great display, as our greatest reward is the cheers of the amazed audience. 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
Bennie Netzley 

Page 111Item 12.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project AP-004: Airport Zoning Update – Consider Resolution Authorizing Execution of 
Mn/DOT Grant Agreement No. 1049819 (S.P. A4201-104). 
 

Background 

Information: 

The City received notification from Mn/DOT-Aeronautics that MML has been identified as 
a recipient of a State grant (State participation rate of 70% / 30% local) for the Airport 
Zoning Ordinance Update.   
 
At their meeting on January 11, 2022, the City Council authorized entering into a 
professional services agreement with TKDA for update to the Airport Zoning Ordinance in 
the amount of $49,500. 
 
With authorization of the attached MnDOT Grant Agreement No. 1049819, City and TKDA 
staff may begin work on updating our airport zoning ordinance.  
 

Fiscal Impact: Participation rates of 70% State ($36,050) / 30% local ($15,450).   

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendations: that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 22-043, which is the Resolution of Authorization 
to Execute Mn/DOT Grant Agreement No. 1049819 (S.P. A4201-104) for Airport Improvement 
Excluding Land Acquisition for the Airport Zoning Ordinance Update. 
 

 

Page 112Item 13.



Rev. 1/07 
RESOLUTION No. 22-043

AUTHORIZATION  TO  EXECUTE 
MINNESOTA  DEPARTMENT  OF  TRANSPORTATION 

GRANT  AGREEMENT  FOR  AIRPORT  IMPROVEMENT 
EXCLUDING  LAND  ACQUISITION 

It is resolved by the City of Marshall as follows: 

1. That the state of Minnesota Agreement No. 1049819,

"Grant Agreement for Airport Improvement Excluding Land Acquisition,” for

State Project No. A4201-104 at the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport is

accepted.

2. That the __________________________ and _____________________________  are
(Title) (Title)

authorized to execute this Agreement and any amendments on behalf of the 

City of Marshall. 

CERTIFICATION 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF  ____________________ 

I certify that the above Resolution is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the 

 __________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of the Recipient) 

at an authorized meeting held on the  ______________ day of  ________________________ , 20 

as shown by the minutes of the meeting in my possession. 

Signature:  __________________________________  
(Clerk or Equivalent) 

 ___________________________________________  
CORPORATE  SEAL /OR/ NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:  _____________________  

Page 113Item 13.



   
  MnDOT Contract No. 1049819 

 

1 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

  
 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
STATE AIRPORTS FUND 

GRANT AGREEMENT  
 

This agreement is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Transportation ("State"), and City 
of Marshall, MN ("Grantee").  

RECITALS 
1. Minnesota Statutes Chapter 360 authorizes State to provide financial assistance to eligible airport sponsors for the 

acquisition, construction, improvement, marketing, maintenance, or operation of airports and other air navigation 
facilities. 

2. Grantee owns, operates, controls, or desires to own an airport (“Airport”) in the state system, and Grantee desires 
financial assistance from the State for an airport improvement project (“Project”). 

3. Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this agreement to the 
satisfaction of the State.  Pursuant to Minn.Stat.§16B.98, Subd.1, Grantee agrees to minimize administrative costs as a 
condition of this agreement. 

AGREEMENT TERMS 
1 Term of Agreement, Survival of Terms, and Incorporation of Exhibits 

 Effective Date.  This agreement will be effective on March 1, 2022, or the date the State obtains all required 
signatures under Minn. Stat.§16B.98, Subd. 5, whichever is later. As required by Minn.Stat.§16B.98 Subd. 7, no 
payments will be made to Grantee until this agreement is fully executed.  Grantee must not begin work under this 
agreement until this agreement is fully executed and Grantee has been notified by the State’s Authorized 
Representative to begin the work.   

 Expiration Date.  This agreement will expire on December 31, 2025, or when all obligations have been 
satisfactorily fulfilled, whichever occurs first. 

 Survival of Terms.  All clauses which impose obligations continuing in their nature and which must survive in 
order to give effect to their meaning will survive the expiration or termination of this agreement, including, 
without limitation, the following clauses:  8. Liability; 9. State Audits; 10. Government Data Practices and 
Intellectual Property; 11.  Workers Compensation; 12. Publicity and Endorsement; 13. Governing Law, 
Jurisdiction, and Venue; and 15 Data Disclosure. 

 Plans, Specifications, Descriptions.  Grantee has provided the State with the plans, specifications, and a detailed 
description of the Project SP A4201-104, which are on file with the State’s Office of Aeronautics and are 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference. 

 Exhibits.  Exhibit “A” - City of Marshall’s Grant Request Letter; and Exhibit “B”: Credit Application, are 
attached and incorporated into this Agreement.

 
2 Grantee’s Duties 

 Grantee will complete the Project in accordance with the plans, specifications, and detailed description of the 
Project, which are on file with the State’s Office of Aeronautics.  Any changes to the plans or specifications of the 
Project after the date of this Agreement will be valid only if made by written change order signed by the Grantee 
and the State. Subject to the availability of funds, the State may prepare an amendment to this Agreement to 
reimburse the Grantee for the allowable costs of qualifying change orders. 

 If the Project involves construction, Grantee will designate a registered engineer to oversee the Project work.  If, 
with the State’s approval, the Grantee elects not to have such services performed by a registered engineer, then the 
Grantee will designate another responsible person to oversee such work. 

 Grantee will notify State’s Authorized Representative in advance of any meetings taking place relating to the 
Project. 

 Grantee will comply with all required grants management policies and procedures set forth through 
Minn.Stat.§16B.97, Subd. 4 (a) (1). 

 Asset Monitoring.  If Grantee uses funds obtained by this agreement to acquire a capital asset, the Grantee is 
required to use that asset for a public aeronautical purpose for the normal useful life of the asset.  Grantee may not 
sell or change the purpose of use for the capital asset(s) obtained with grant funds under this agreement without 

Page 114Item 13.

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=16B.98
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=16B.98
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=16B.98
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=16B.97


MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

2 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

the prior written consent of the State and an agreement executed and approved by the same parties who executed 
and approved this agreement, or their successors in office. 

 Airport Operations, Maintenance, and Conveyance.  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 360.305, 
subdivision 4 (d) (1), the Grantee will operate the Airport as a licensed, municipally-owned public airport at all 
times of the year for a period of 20 years from the date the Grantee receives final reimbursement under this 
Agreement.  The Airport must be maintained in a safe, serviceable manner for public aeronautical purposes only.  
Without prior written approval from the State, Grantee will not transfer, convey, encumber, assign, or abandon its 
interest in the airport or in any real or personal property that is purchased or improved with State funds.  If the 
State approves such a transfer or change in use, the Grantee must comply with such conditions and restrictions as 
the State may place on such approval. The obligations imposed by this clause survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
3 Time 

 Grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this agreement.  In the performance of this grant 
agreement, time is of the essence. 

 
4 Cost and Payment 

 Cost Participation.  Costs for the Project will be proportionate and allocated as follows: 
Item Description  Federal Share State Share Grantee Share  

Airport Zoning Ordinance Update           0%      70%         30% 
 

Federal Committed: $0.00 
State:    $ 36,050.00 
Grantee:    $  15,450.00   
 

No funds are committed by the U.S. Government for this Project.  In the event federal reimbursement becomes 
available for the Project, the State will be entitled to recover from such federal funds an amount not to exceed the 
state funds advanced for this Project.  No more than 95% of the amount due under this Agreement will be paid by 
the State until the State determines that the Grantee has complied with all terms of this Agreement and furnished 
all necessary records. 

 Travel Expenses.  No Reimbursement for travel and subsistence expenses are included in this Grant.  
Grantee will not be reimbursed for travel and subsistence expenses incurred outside Minnesota unless it has 
received the State’s prior written approval for out of state travel.  Minnesota will be considered the home state for 
determining whether travel is out of state.  

 Sufficiency of Funds.  Pursuant to Minnesota Rules 8800.2500, the Grantee certifies that (1) it presently has 
available sufficient unencumbered funds to pay its share of the Project; (2) the Project will be completed without 
undue delay; and (3) the Grantee has the legal authority to engage in the Project as proposed. 

 Total Obligation.  The total obligation of the State for all compensation and reimbursements to Grantee under 
this agreement will not exceed $ 36,050.00. 

 Payment 
4.5.1 Invoices.  Grantee will submit invoices for payment by Credit Application; Exhibit “B”, which is attached 

and incorporated into this agreement and can also be found at -
http://www.dot.state.mn.us/aero/airportdevelopment/documents/creditappinteractive.pdf , is the form 
Grantee will use to submit invoices.  The State’s Authorized Representative, as named in this agreement, 
will review each invoice against the approved grant budget and grant expenditures to-date before approving 
payment.  The State will promptly pay Grantee after Grantee presents an itemized paid invoice for the 
services actually performed and the State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services.  
Invoices will be submitted timely and according to the following schedule: 
 Monthly, or as work completion dictates. 

4.5.2 All Invoices Subject to Audit.  All invoices are subject to audit, at State’s discretion. 
4.5.3 State’s Payment Requirements. State will promptly pay all valid obligations under this agreement as 

required by Minnesota Statutes §16A.124. State will make undisputed payments no later than 30 days after 
receiving Grantee’s invoices for services performed. If an invoice is incorrect, defective or otherwise 
improper, State will notify Grantee within ten days of discovering the error. After State receives the 

Page 115Item 13.

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/aero/airportdevelopment/documents/creditappinteractive.pdf


MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

3 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

corrected invoice, State will pay Grantee within 30 days of receipt of such invoice. 
4.5.4 Grantee Payment Requirements.  Grantee must pay all contractors under this agreement promptly.  

Grantee will make undisputed payments no later than 30 days after receiving an invoice.  If an invoice is 
incorrect, defective, or otherwise improper, Grantee will notify the contractor within ten days of discovering 
the error.  After Grantee receives the corrected invoice, Grantee will pay the contractor within 30 days of 
receipt of such invoice. 

4.5.5 Grant Monitoring Visit and Financial Reconciliation.  During the period of performance, the State will 
make at least annual monitoring visits and conduct annual financial reconciliations of Grantee’s 
expenditures. 
4.5.5.1 The State’s Authorized Representative will notify Grantee’s Authorized Representative where and 

when any monitoring visit and financial reconciliation will take place, which State employees 
and/or contractors will participate, and which Grantee staff members should be present.  Grantee 
will be provided notice prior to any monitoring visit or financial reconciliation.   

4.5.5.2 Following a monitoring visit or financial reconciliation, Grantee will take timely and appropriate 
action on all deficiencies identified by State.   

4.5.5.3 At least one monitoring visit and one financial reconciliation must be completed prior to final 
payment being made to Grantee. 

4.5.6 Closeout.  The State will determine, at its sole discretion, whether a closeout audit is required prior to final 
payment approval.  If a closeout audit is required, final payment will be held until the audit has been 
completed.  Monitoring of any capital assets acquired with grant funds will continue following grant 
closeout. 

4.5.7 Closeout Deliverables.  At the close of the Project, the Grantee must provide the following deliverables to 
the State before the final payment due under this Agreement will be released by the State: (1) Electronic 
files of construction plans as a PDF and in a MicroStation compatible format; and (2) Electronic files of as-
builts as a PDF and in a MicroStation compatible format. 

 Contracting and Bidding Requirements.  Prior to publication, Grantee will submit to State all solicitations for 
work to be funded by this Agreement.  Prior to execution, Grantee will submit to State all contracts and 
subcontracts funded by this agreement between Grantee and third parties.  State’s Authorized Representative has 
the sole right to approve, disapprove, or modify any solicitation, contract, or subcontract submitted by Grantee.  
All contracts and subcontracts between Grantee and third parties must contain all applicable provisions of this 
Agreement.  State’s Authorized Representative will respond to a solicitation, contract, or subcontract submitted 
by Grantee within ten business days. 

 
5 Conditions of Payment 

All services provided by Grantee under this agreement must be performed to the State’s satisfaction, as determined at 
the sole discretion of the State’s Authorized Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.  The Grantee will not receive payment for work found by the State to be 
unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, state, or local law.  In addition, Grantee will not receive payment 
for Airport’s failure to pass periodic inspections by a representative of the State’s Office of Aeronautics. 

6 Authorized Representatives 
 The State's Authorized Representatives are: 
Luke Bourassa, South Region Airports Engineer; (luke.bourassa@state.mn.us) (651)508-0448 and/or 
Brian Conklin, Regional Airport Specialist Sr.; (brian.conklin@state.mn.us) (651)252-7658. The State’s 
Authorized Representative has the responsibility to monitor Grantee’s performance and the authority to accept the 
services provided under this agreement.  If the services are satisfactory, the State's Authorized Representative will 
certify acceptance on each invoice submitted for payment.  

 Grantee’s Authorized Representative is: 
Jason Anderson, City Engineer/Public Works Director 
Phone (507) 537-6773 (jason.anderson@ci.marshall.mn.us) 

 City of Marshall 
 344 West Main Street 
 Marshall, MN 56258-1313 

If the Grantee’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this agreement, Grantee will immediately 
notify the State. 

Page 116Item 13.

mailto:luke.bourassa@state.mn.us
mailto:brian.conklin@state.mn.us


MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

4 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

 
7 Assignment Amendments, Waiver, and Grant Agreement Complete 

 Assignment.  The Grantee may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this agreement without 
the prior written consent of the State and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, executed and approved by the 
same parties who executed and approved this agreement, or their successors in office. 

 Amendments.  Any amendments to this agreement must be in writing and will not be effective until it has been 
executed and approved by the same parties who executed and approved the original agreement, or their successors 
in office. 

 Waiver.  If the State fails to enforce any provision of this agreement, that failure does not waive the provision or 
the State’s right to subsequently enforce it. 

 Grant Agreement Complete.  This grant agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between the State 
and Grantee. No other understanding regarding this agreement, whether written or oral, may be used to bind either 
party. 

7.5  Electronic Records and Signatures.  The parties agree to contract by electronic means.  This includes using 
electronic signatures and converting original documents to electronic records. 

 
8 Liability 

In the performance of this agreement, and to the extent permitted by law, Grantee must indemnify, save, and hold the 
State, its agents, and employees harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorney’s fees incurred by 
the State, arising from the performance of this agreement by Grantee or Grantee’s agents or employees.  This clause 
will not be construed to bar any legal remedies Grantee may have for the State's failure to fulfill its obligations under 
this agreement. 

9 State Audits 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd.8, the Grantee’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and 
practices of Grantee, or other party relevant to this grant agreement or transaction, are subject to examination by the 
State and/or the State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this 
agreement, receipt and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all state and program 
retention requirements, whichever is later.  Grantee will take timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies 
identified by an audit. 

10 Government Date Practices and Intellectual Property Rights 
 Government Data Practices.  Grantee and State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices 

Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all data provided by the State under this grant agreement, and as it 
applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by the Grantee under 
this agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. §13.08 apply to the release of the data referred to in this clause 
by either Grantee or the State.  If Grantee receives a request to release the data referred to in this section 10.1, 
Grantee must immediately notify the State.  The State will give Grantee instructions concerning the release of 
the data to the requesting party before the data is released. Grantee’s response to the request shall comply with 
applicable law. 

 Intellectual Property Rights. 
10.2.1 Intellectual Property Rights. State owns all rights, title and interest in all of the intellectual property 

rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks and service marks in the Works and 
Documents created and paid for under this agreement. “Works” means all inventions, improvements, 
discoveries (whether or not patentable), databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, 
photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes and disks conceived, reduced 
to practice, created or originated by Grantee, its employees, agents and subcontractors, either individually 
or jointly with others in the performance of this agreement. Works includes Documents. “Documents” are 
the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, 
designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks or other materials, whether in tangible or 
electronic forms, prepared by Grantee, its employees, agents or subcontractors, in the performance of this 
agreement. The Documents will be the exclusive property of State, and Grantee upon completion or 
cancellation of this agreement must immediately return all such Documents to State. To the extent 
possible, those Works eligible for copyright protection under the United States Copyright Act will be 
deemed to be “works made for hire.” Grantee assigns all right, title and interest it may have in the Works 

Page 117Item 13.

https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=13
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=13.08


MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

5 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

and the Documents to State. Grantee must, at the request of State, execute all papers and perform all other 
acts necessary to transfer or record the State’s ownership interest in the Works and Documents. 

10.2.2 Obligations 
10.2.2.1 Notification. Whenever any invention, improvement or discovery (whether or not patentable) is 

made or conceived for the first time or actually or constructively reduced to practice by Grantee, 
including its employees and subcontractors, in the performance of this agreement, Grantee will 
immediately give State’s Authorized Representative written notice thereof and must promptly 
furnish State’s Authorized Representative with complete information and/or disclosure thereon. 

10.2.2.2 Representation. Grantee must perform all acts, and take all steps necessary to ensure that all 
intellectual property rights in the Works and Documents are the sole property of State and that 
neither Grantee nor its employees, agents or subcontractors retain any interest in and to the Works 
and Documents. Grantee represents and warrants that the Works and Documents do not and will 
not infringe upon any intellectual property rights of other persons or entities. Notwithstanding 
Clause 8, Grantee will indemnify; defend, to the extent permitted by the Attorney General; and 
hold harmless State, at Grantee’s expense, from any action or claim brought against State to the 
extent that it is based on a claim that all or part of the Works or Documents infringe upon the 
intellectual property rights of others. Grantee will be responsible for payment of any and all such 
claims, demands, obligations, liabilities, costs and damages, including but not limited to, attorney 
fees. If such a claim or action arises, or in Grantee’s or State’s opinion is likely to arise, Grantee 
must, at State’s discretion, either procure for State the right or license to use the intellectual 
property rights at issue or replace or modify the allegedly infringing Works or Documents as 
necessary and appropriate to obviate the infringement claim. This remedy of State will be in 
addition to and not exclusive of other remedies provided by law. 
 

11 Workers Compensation 
The Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with Minn. Stat. §176.181, Subd. 2, pertaining to workers’ compensation 
insurance coverage.  The Grantee’s employees and agents will not be considered State employees.  Any claims that 
may arise under the Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by 
any third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of these employees are in no way the State’s 
obligation or responsibility. 

12 Publicity and Endorsement 
 Publicity.  Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this agreement must identify the State as the 

sponsoring agency and must not be released without prior written approval from the State’s Authorized 
Representative.  For purposes of this provision, publicity includes notices, informational pamphlets, press 
releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee individually or 
jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided 
resulting from this grant agreement. All projects primarily funded by state grant appropriation must publicly 
credit the State of Minnesota, including on the Grantee’s website when practicable.  

 Endorsement.  The Grantee must not claim that the State endorses its products or services. 
 
13 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue 

Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this agreement.  Venue for all legal 
proceedings out of this agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate state or federal court with competent 
jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

14 Termination; Suspension 
 Termination by the State. The State may terminate this agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon 

written notice to the Grantee.  Upon termination, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro 
rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

 Termination for Cause.  The State may immediately terminate this grant agreement if the State finds that there 
has been a failure to comply with the provisions of this agreement, that reasonable progress has not been made, 
that fraudulent or wasteful activity has occurred, that Grantee has been convicted of a criminal offense relating 
to a state grant agreement, or that the purposes for which the funds were granted have not been or will not be 
fulfilled. The State may take action to protect the interests of the State of Minnesota, including the refusal to 

Page 118Item 13.

https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=176.181


MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

6 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already disbursed. 
 Termination for Insufficient Funding.  The State may immediately terminate this agreement if: 

14.3.1 It does not obtain funding from the Minnesota Legislature; or 
14.3.2 If funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services covered 

here. Termination must be by written or fax notice to the Grantee. The State is not obligated to pay for 
any services that are provided after notice and effective date of termination. However, the Grantee will 
be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent 
that funds are available. The State will not be assessed any penalty if the agreement is terminated 
because of the decision of the Minnesota Legislature, or other funding source, not to appropriate funds. 
The State will provide the Grantee notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the State’s 
receiving that notice. 

 Suspension.  The State may immediately suspend this agreement in the event of a total or partial government 
shutdown due to the failure to have an approved budget by the legal deadline.  Work performed by the Grantee 
during a period of suspension will be deemed unauthorized and undertaken at risk of non-payment. 

 
15 Data Disclosure 

Under Minn. Stat. § 270C.65, Subd. 3, and other applicable law, Grantee consents to disclosure of its social security 
number, federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to 
the State, to federal and state tax agencies and state personnel involved in the payment of state obligations.  These 
identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federal and state tax laws which could result in action 
requiring the Grantee to file state tax returns and pay delinquent state tax liabilities, if any. 
 

16 Fund Use Prohibited.  The Grantee will not utilize any funds received pursuant to this Agreement to compensate, 
either directly or indirectly, any contractor, corporation, partnership, or business, however organized, which is 
disqualified or debarred from entering into or receiving a State contract.  This restriction applies regardless of whether 
the disqualified or debarred party acts in the capacity of a general contractor, a subcontractor, or as an equipment or 
material supplier.  This restriction does not prevent the Grantee from utilizing these funds to pay any party who might 
be disqualified or debarred after the Grantee’s contract award on this Project.  For a list of disqualified or debarred 
vendors, see www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/debarredreport.asp. 

 
17 Discrimination Prohibited by Minnesota Statutes §181.59.  Grantee will comply with the provisions of Minnesota 

Statutes §181.59 which requires that every contract for or on behalf of the State of Minnesota, or any county, city, 
town, township, school, school district or any other district in the state, for materials, supplies or construction will 
contain provisions by which Contractor agrees: 1) That, in the hiring of common or skilled labor for the performance 
of any work under any contract, or any subcontract, no Contractor, material supplier or vendor, will, by reason of 
race, creed or color, discriminate against the person or persons who are citizens of the United States or resident aliens 
who are qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment relates; 2) That no Contractor, material 
supplier, or vendor, will, in any manner, discriminate against, or intimidate, or prevent the employment of any person 
or persons identified in clause 1 of this section, or on being hired, prevent or conspire to prevent, the person or 
persons from the performance of work under any contract on account of race, creed or color; 3) That a violation of 
this section is a misdemeanor; and 4) That this contract may be canceled or terminated by the state of Minnesota, or 
any county, city, town, township, school, school district or any other person authorized to grant contracts for 
employment, and all money due, or to become due under the contract, may be forfeited for a second or any 
subsequent violation of the terms or conditions of this Agreement. 

 
18 Limitation.  Under this Agreement, the State is only responsible for receiving and disbursing funds.  Nothing in this 

Agreement will be construed to make the State a principal, co-principal, partner, or joint venturer with respect to the 
Project(s) covered herein.  The State may provide technical advice and assistance as requested by the Grantee, 
however, the Grantee will remain responsible for providing direction to its contractors and consultants and for 
administering its contracts with such entities.  The Grantee’s consultants and contractors are not intended to be third 
party beneficiaries of this Agreement. 
 

19 Title VI/Non-discrimination Assurances.  Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable US DOT Standard Title 
VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances contained in DOT Order No. 1050.2A, and in particular Appendices A and E, 
which can be found at: https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=11149035.  

Page 119Item 13.

https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=270C.65
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=11149035


MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

7 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

Grantee will ensure the appendices and solicitation language within the assurances are inserted into contracts as 
required.  State may conduct a review of the Grantee’s compliance with this provision. The Grantee must cooperate 
with State throughout the review process by supplying all requested information and documentation to State, making 
Grantee staff and officials available for meetings as requested, and correcting any areas of non-compliance as 
determined by State. 
 

20 Additional Provisions 
[Intentionally left blank.] 

 

[The remainder of this page has intentionally been left blank.] 

Page 120Item 13.



MnDOT Contract #: 1049819 
 
 

8 
CM State Airports Fund Grant Agreement Template (Rev. 10/30/20) 

 
STATE ENCUMBRANCE VERIFICATION 
Individual certifies that funds have been encumbered as required by 
Minn. Stat. § 16A.15 and § 16C.05. 

Signed:  

Date:  

SWIFT Contract/PO No(s).  

 

GRANTEE 
The Grantee certifies that the appropriate person(s) have executed the grant 
agreement on behalf of the Grantee as required by applicable articles, 
bylaws, resolutions, or ordinances. 

By:  

Title:  

Date:  

 

By:  

Title:  

Date:  

 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
By:  
          (with delegated authority) 
 
Title:  

Date:  
 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT – GRANT UNIT 
 
By:  
 
Date:  
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 
By:  
  
Date:  

 

Page 121Item 13.



------------------------ 344 West Main Street – Marshall, MN  56258 ------------------------ 
ci.marshall.mn.us 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 344 WEST MAIN STREET 
 MARSHALL, MN  56258-1313 
 PHONE:  507-537-6773 
 FAX:  507-537-6830 
January 18, 2022 
 
Mr. Luke Bourassa, PE 
Airport Development Engineer 
MnDOT Office of Aeronautics 
395 John Ireland Boulevard | Mail Stop 410 
St. Paul, MN 55155-1800 
 
Re: Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport / Ryan Field (MML) 
 Airport Zoning Ordinance Update  

SFY 2022 Grant Request 
  
Dear Luke, 
 
The City of Marshall hereby requests a grant agreement for State funding for the Airport Zoning 
Ordinance Update project at the Southwest Minnesota Airport. The total project cost 
is $51,500.00, as shown on the attached Project Cost Breakdown spreadsheet and described 
below. State funding is requested in the amount of $36,050.00 (70% of total project cost).  
 
On January 11, 2022 the City of Marshall authorized TKDA for professional services associated 
with the Airport Zoning Ordinance Update project. Total engineering costs are $49,500.00 for 
base services. Additional services would be required if the Joint Airport Zoning Board opted to 
pursue a custom airport zoning ordinance. We understand MnDOT Aeronautics may then 
amend the State grant to include this work. 
 
We also have included $2,000.00 for administration expenses as part of this request. 
Administrative expenses expected to be incurred during the project include mailings, 
advertising, filing fees and legal review attorney fees.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions concerning this request, please 
contact me at 507-537-6773 or jason.anderson@ci.marshall.mn.us. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 

Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
cc: Marcus Watson, TKDA 
 Julie Carr, MnDOT 
 
Attachments (2) 

Page 122Item 13.

conk1bri
Typewritten Text
SP A4201-104

conk1bri
Typewritten Text
MnDOT Contract # 1049819

conk1bri
Highlight

conk1bri
Highlight



  Rev. 9/02

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  Airport Name  _______________________________

State Project No.  _______________________________   
OFFICE OF AERONAUTICS 
395 John Ireland Blvd
Mail Stop 410 
ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA 55155-1899  Federal Project No. _______________________________

CREDIT APPLICATION Mn/DOT Agreement No. _______________________________

TO THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF AERONAUTICS: 

Itemized statement of cash expenditures for which credit is claimed: 

For period beginning __________________________________, 20____ ; ending __________________________________, 20____. 

Warrant 
Number 

Date 
Issued 

Name or Description Unit Rate Total Time 
or Quantity 

Amount 

Total Expenditures

*FINAL       PARTIAL (CHOOSE ONE)

  NOTE:  PLEASE SEPARATE ENGINEERING COSTS FROM OTHER COSTS. Municipality _________________________________________________ 

By _________________________________________________ 

Title _________________________________________________
*FOR ALL ITEMS INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT 

(Complete Form On Reverse Side) 

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Page 123Item 13.

conk1bri
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"



 
STATE OF _______________________  
 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
____________________________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she is the 
 
_______________________________ of the Municipality of ___________________________________________, in the County  
 
of _____________________________________________, State of Minnesota; that he/she has prepared the foregoing Credit Application, 
 
knows the contents thereof, that the same is a true and accurate record of disbursements made, and that the same is true of his/her own 
 
knowledge; and that this application is made by authority of the municipal council (or board) of said Municipality. 
 
 
 
 
          _______________________________________ 

Signature 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this ___________ day of _______________, 20_____. . 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

NOTARY  PUBLIC 
 
 
My Commission Expires:________________________ 
 
 
 

Minnesota

Page 124Item 13.

conk1bri
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B" (cont.)



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Resolution Authorizing Execution of Mn/DOT-Aeronautics Grant Agreement 
No. 1049651 (S.P. A4201-C3) for Federal Airport Expenses Reimbursement under the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). 

Background 

Information: 

The City of Marshall has received an Airport Rescue Grant (ARG) under the American Rescue Plan 
Act (ARPA). The grant award of $59,000 was announced in June 2021, but City staff has been 
waiting for MnDOT to distribute agency agreements to access the funds The purpose of the grant 
is to reimburse federally-eligible airport expenses. The City will be reimbursed 100% of 
federally-eligible expenses not reimbursed by any other source.  The FAA will be conducting 
oversight and monitoring the ARG funding.   
 
In order to receive reimbursements under the ARPA Program, MnDOT and the City need to 
execute the attached Agency Agreement. The Agency Agreement augments the FAA grant and 
allows the Office of Aeronautics to make payments under the FAA grant per the channeling 
arrangement. 
 
The funds may be used by the airport for costs related to operations, personnel, cleaning, 
sanitization, janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service 
payments.  
 
The federal ARPA funds are not being amended or tied to any other state or federal programs 
and as a result, MnDOT’s role in the ARPA program will be very limited. Any remaining CARES and 
CRRSA funds should be utilized first.  MnDOT will not be making any eligibility determinations.  
 

Fiscal Impact: The City will receive $59,000 in grant funds for reimbursement of federally-eligible airport 
expenses. 
 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendation: that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 22-22-044, which provides for the Resolution 
Authorizing Execution of MnDOT Aeronautics Grant Agreement No. 1049651 for Federal Airport 
Expenses Reimbursement under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). 

 

Page 125Item 14.



Rev. 5/2021 
RESOLUTION No. 22-044

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE 
MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AGENCY AGREEMENT FOR FEDERAL AIRPORT 
EXPENSES REIMBURSEMENT 

It is resolved by the City of Marshall as follows: 

1. That the state of Minnesota Agreement No. 1049651,

"Grant Agreement for Federal Airport Expenses Reimbursement," for

State Project No. A4201-C3 at the Southwest Minnesota Regional Marshall/Ryan

Field is accepted.

2. That the and are ----------- ------------
{Title) {Title) 

authorized to execute this Agreement and any amendments on behalf of the 

City of Marshall. 

STAIB OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF 

CERTIFICATION 

I certify that the above Resolution is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the 

(Name of the Recipient) 

at an authorized meeting held on the ______ day of __________ , 20 __ 

as shown by the minutes of the meeting in my possession. 

Signature: 
(Clerk or Equivalent) 

CORPORATE SEAL /OR/ NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires: ______ _ 

Page 126Item 14.



Page 127Item 14.



Southwest Minnesota Regional Marshall/Ryan Field

$ ,

Page 128Item 14.



Page 129Item 14.



Page 130Item 14.



Page 131Item 14.



Page 132Item 14.



#

"

"

"

#

"

#

#

"

!

op

"

#

#

"

#

o

#

"

"

"

"

#

!

"

"

p

"

p

"

"

o

p

"

#p

"

"

"
p

"

"

"

#

#

"

"

"

"p

"

#

#

"

"

"

#

#

o

#

!

"

o
p

p

"

#

"

p
"

"

#

"

"

"

"

"

"

#

"

#

#

"

"

"

"
o

"

"

"

"

"

!

#

!

"

#

#

"

"

"

"

"

#
#

"

#

"

"

"

#

"
"

#

o

"

"

"

"

"

#

#

"

"

o

"

"

"

!

"

#

#

o

"

"

"

#

"

"

#

"

"

#

p

#

"

"

"

"

"

"

ORR

MSP

ELY

NARY

MORA

COOK

WELLS

TYLER
TRACY

TOWER

REMER

ANOKA

CANBY

WINONA

WINDOM

WAUBUN

WASECA

WARREN

WALKER

WADENA

ROSEAU

PERHAM

OLIVIA

MOTLEY

MORRIS

MILACA
HERMAN

HECTOR

HAWLEY

GRYGLA

DULUTH

BENSON

BAGLEY

BACKUS

AUSTIN

AITKIN

WINSTED

WILLMAR

WHEATON

WASKISH

WARROAD

STEPHEN

STAPLES

STANTON

ST PAUL

SLAYTON

PRESTON

NEW ULM

MURDOCK

CRYSTAL

AIRLAKE

MANKATO

MADISON

LUVERNE JACKSON

HIBBING

HENNING

HALLOCK

GLENCOE

FOSSTONFERTILE

EVELETH

CLOQUET

BUFFALO

BROOTEN

BIGFORK

BEMIDJI

STARBUCK

ST JAMES

ST CLOUD

RUSHFORD

RED WING

OWATONNA

NORTHOME

MOORHEAD

MARSHALL

MAHNOMEN

LE SUEUR

KARLSTAD

HINCKLEY

GLENWOOD

FAIRMONT

DEERWOOD

CLARISSA

BRAINERD

BAUDETTE

APPLETON

LAKE ELMO

RUSH CITY

ROCHESTER

PRINCETON

PIPESTONE

PINECREEK

MC GREGOR

LONGVILLE HILL CITY

FARIBAULT

CROOKSTON

CAMBRIDGE

CALEDONIA

BOWSTRING

BIG FALLS

SLEEPY EYE

SILVER BAY

PINE RIVER

ORTONVILLE

MOOSE LAKE

MONTEVIDEO

MAPLE LAKE

LITTLEFORK

LITCHFIELD LINO LAKES

HUTCHINSON

ELBOW LAKE

CRANE LAKE

CLEAR LAKE

BLUE EARTH

ALEXANDRIA

ALBERT LEAWORTHINGTON

TWO HARBORS

SPRINGFIELD

SAUK CENTRE

PAYNESVILLE

PARK RAPIDS

FOREST LAKE

FLYING CLOUD

LONG PRAIRIE LITTLE FALLS

GRAND RAPIDS

GRAND MARAIS

FERGUS FALLS

DODGE CENTER

BELLE PLAINE

SOUTH ST PAUL

REDWOOD FALLS

GRANITE FALLS

DETROIT LAKES

RED LAKE FALLS

PELICAN RAPIDS

SKY HARBOR SPB

EAST GULL LAKE

ADA/TWIN VALLEY

THIEF RIVER FALLS

DULUTH SKY HARBOR

NORTH COUNTRY SPB

INTERNATIONAL FALLS

DMA ADO Manager: Andy Peek 612-253-4631

0 5025 Miles
4

Legend
DMA Airports
Airport Type

o Commercial Service
# Non-NPIAS
p Seaplane Base
" NPIAS
! Private
p Private Seaplane

FAA Dakota-Minnesota Airport District Office
Minnesota Program Manager Assignments

Program Manager Assignments
Program Manager / Phone

Ben Garrow / 612-253-4640
Jake Martin / 612-253- 4634
Nancy Nistler / 612-253-4638
Nick Pratt / 612-253-4633
Peter Kelly / 612-253-4635
Tracy Schmidt / 612-253-4636

MN Deputy Manager: Lindsay Butler                    612-253-4630
Community Planner: Gina Mitchell                         612-253-4641
Environmental Specialist: Josh Fitzpatrick            612-253-4639
Airports Program Analyst: Vacant                         612-253-4643

Date Printed: 8/24/2020Page 133Item 14.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2022A, and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 

Background 

Information: 

The issuance of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A in the principal aggregate 

amount of $2,920,000 currently includes the following; 

 Improvement Portion: $1,940,000 
o Halbur Road 
o S 1st St/Greeley St/Williams St 

 Airport Portion: $70,000 
o Infrastructure improvements; available state grants in addition of $164,500 

 Abatement Portion: $575,000 
o Rose and Addison parking lots 

 Street Reconstruction Portion: $335,000 
o W Lyon 

 
The issuance of the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B in the principal 

aggregate amount of $1,370,000 to refund 2023 to 2027 maturities on the 2011A and 2011B 

bonds to provide interest cost savings. 

 

The resolution includes language to establish a pricing committee, who can then approve a 

winning bid subject to parameters provided (maximum true interest cost, minimum net savings) 

if interest rate increases become an issue at/near the award date. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: Approve Resolution Providing for the Issuance and Sale of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2022A & General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 

 

Page 134Item 15.



 

 
  

 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

Pre-Sale Summary for Issuance of Bonds 
 

$2,920,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A Bonds”)  
$1,370,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Bonds”)  

and, together, “the Bonds” 

The Council has under consideration the issuance of the Series 2022A Bonds to finance: (i) various improvement 
projects within the City (the “Improvement Portion”); (ii) improvements to the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport 
(the “Airport Portion”); (iii) parking lot improvements (the “Abatement Portion”); (iv) street reconstruction projects 
within the City (the “Street Reconstruction Portion”); and (v) costs of issuance. In addition, the Council has under 
consideration the issuance of the Series 2022B Bonds to refund various outstanding obligations of the City as further 
described herein. This document provides information relative to the proposed issuance.   
KEY EVENTS: The following summary schedule includes the timing of key events that will occur relative 

to the bond issuance: 
 

March 8, 2022 Council held public hearings  
March 22, 2022 Council sets sale date and terms 
Week of April 11, 2022  Rating conference is conducted  
April 26, 2022, 10:00 a.m. Competitive proposals are received 
April 26, 2022, 5:30 p.m. Council considers award of the Bonds 
May 26, 2022 Proceeds are received 
July 1, 2022 Redemption of Prior Bonds 
  

RATINGS: An application will be made to S&P Global Ratings (S&P) for ratings on the Bonds.  The 
City’s general obligation debt is currently rated “AA” by S&P. 

THE MARKET: Performance of the tax-exempt market is often measured by the Bond Buyer’s Index (“BBI”) 
which measures the yield of high-grade municipal bonds in the 20th year for general 
obligation bonds rated Aa2 by Moody’s or AA by S&P (the BBI 20-Bond GO Index) and the 
30th year for revenue bonds rated A1 by Moody’s or A+ by S&P (the BBI 25-Bond Revenue 
Index).  The following chart illustrates these two indices over the past five years:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

St
ud

y N
o.:

 05
39

.18
5_

19
49

03
0 

Da
te:

 M
ar

ch
 17

, 2
02

2 

Page 135Item 15.



  Page 2 

$2,920,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Description of Issue 

BOND SUMMARY: The Series 2022A Bonds are structured as four purposes under various statutory 
authorities. The Series 2022A Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapters 429, 469, and 475; and Sections 469.1812 through 469.1815, and 475.58 
(Subd. 3b). 

The Series 2022A Bonds are a general obligation of the City, secured by its full faith and 
credit and taxing power. In addition, the City will pledge special assessments against 
benefited properties and available tax abatement revenue.  
 
Each purpose is detailed in the sections below. 
 

RISKS/SPECIAL 
CONSIDERATIONS: 

Any projections included herein are estimates at the time this document was prepared 
and are developed based on current conditions in the municipal market. Market conditions 
fluctuate daily and can result in significant changes in yields and prices. Future market 
fluctuations from now until the day of pricing could impact the projected debt service 
required and presented shown below.  
 
Anticipated levy projections for the Improvement and Street Reconstruction Portions are 
based on estimated debt service and assessment income. If either are different than 
projected, the resulting anticipated levy could differ significantly from what is projected in 
these schedules. 
 

SCHEDULES 
ATTACHED: 

Schedules attached for the Series 2022A Bonds include: (i) sources and uses of funds, 
(ii) estimated net debt service for the Series 2022A Bonds as a whole and by purpose, 
and (iii) estimated assessment income for the Improvement and Street Reconstruction 
Portions. 
 

SALE TERMS AND 
MARKETING: 

Variability of Issue Size: A specific provision in the sale terms permits modifications to the 
issue size and/or maturity structure to customize the issue once the price and interest 
rates are set on the day of sale. 

Prepayment Provisions: Series 2022A Bonds maturing on or after February 1, 2031 may 
be prepaid at a price of par plus accrued interest on or after February 1, 2030.  

Bank Qualification: The City does not expect to issue more than $10 million in tax-exempt 
obligations that count against the $10 million limit for this calendar year; therefore, the 
Series 2022A Bonds are designated as bank qualified.  

$1,940,000 Improvement Portion 
Description of Purpose 

PURPOSE: Proceeds of the Improvement Portion will be used to pay capitalized interest, fund a 
portion of the costs of issuance, and finance improvements to the City’s Halbur Road and 
the S 1st St Project. Other available funds in the total amount of $2,162,938, and as 
detailed on the sources and uses of funds, will be used to reduce the borrowing amount 
of the Improvement Portion.  

Page 136Item 15.



  Page 3 

AUTHORITY: Statutory Authority:  The Series 2022A Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapters 429 and 475. 

Statutory Requirements:  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429, at least 20% of 
the City’s share of the estimated cost of the projects must be paid from special 
assessments. The projects being financed by the Improvement Portion meet this 
requirement. 

SECURITY AND 
SOURCE OF 
PAYMENT: 

The Improvement Portion is a general obligation of the City, secured by its full faith and 
credit and taxing power. In addition, the City will pledge special assessments against 
benefited properties for repayment of the Improvement Portion.  

Special assessments in the total principal amount of $972,551 are expected to be filed in 
the fall of 2022 for first collection in 2023. The assessments will be collected over a term 
of ten (10) years with equal annual payments of principal. Interest on the unpaid balance 
will be charged at a rate of 2.0% over the true interest cost (TIC) of the Improvement 
Portion, estimated to be 4.29%. 

The City will levy taxes for repayment of the Improvement Portion to the extent not paid 
by special assessments. The City will make the first levy in 2022 for collection in 2023.  
An amount sufficient to make the February 1, 2023 interest payment on the Improvement 
Portion is included in the issue as capitalized interest. Thereafter, each year’s collection 
of taxes and special assessments will be used to make the August 1 interest payment due 
in the collection year and the February 1 principal and interest payment due the following 
year. 

STRUCTURING 
SUMMARY: 

In consultation with City Staff, the Improvement Portion has been structured with a 
repayment term of ten years around the estimated assessment income to result in a level 
annual levy requirement.   

$70,000 Airport Portion 
Description of Purpose 

PURPOSE: Proceeds of the Airport Portion will be used to finance various infrastructure improvements 
related to the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport, pay capitalized interest, and fund a 
portion of the costs of issuance. Available state grants in the total amount of $164,500 will 
be used to reduce the borrowing amount of the Airport Portion. 
 

AUTHORITY: Statutory Authority:  The Airport Portion is being issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 475; and Sections 360.036 and 360.042. 
 
Statutory Requirements:  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 360.036, the City is 
authorized to issue general obligation debt to finance the costs of constructing, enlarging, 
or improving airports and other navigation facilities without election if the bonds are 
authorized by a resolution of the governing body of the City adopted by a vote of not less 
than 60% of its members. The City Council has approved the issuance of the Airport 
Portion by a vote of at least 60% at its meeting on March 8, 2022. 
 

SECURITY AND 
SOURCE OF 

The Airport Portion is a general obligation of the City, secured by its full faith and credit 
and taxing power. The City will levy taxes for repayment of the Airport Portion and will 
make the first levy in 2022 for collection in 2023. An amount sufficient to make the 

Page 137Item 15.



  Page 4 

PAYMENT: February 1, 2023 interest payment on the Airport Portion is included in the issue as 
capitalized interest. Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes will be used to make the 
August 1 interest payment due in the collection year and the February 1 principal and 
interest payment due the following year. 
 

STRUCTURING 
SUMMARY: 

In consultation with City Staff, the Airport Portion has been structured with a repayment 
term of five (5) years to result in an approximately level annual debt service requirement. 

$575,000 Abatement Portion 
Description of Purpose 

PURPOSE: Proceeds of the Abatement Portion will be used to finance improvements to the Rose and 
Addison parking lots located within the City, pay capitalized interest, and fund a portion 
the costs of issuance.  

AUTHORITY: Statutory Authority:  The Abatement Portion is being issued pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapter 475 and Sections 469.1812 through 1815. 

Statutory Requirements: Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 through 
469.1815, the City must specify the public benefit of the abatement, identify properties 
located within its jurisdiction whose value will equal the proposed amount of abatement 
and the term of the abatement, and further comply with public hearing requirements. A 
public hearing was held on March 8, 2022, at which time the statutory requirement for 
issuing tax abatement bonds was met.  
 
The maximum amount of abatement by the City in any given year cannot exceed the 
greater of 10% of the net tax capacity of the City or $200,000. Based on the City’s 2020/21 
tax capacity of $12,317,601, the greater amount is $1,231,760. The City’s projected 
maximum annual tax abatement for this issue is estimated to be $65,000, within the 
statutory limitation. 
 

SECURITY AND 
SOURCE OF 
PAYMENT: 

The Abatement Portion is a general obligation of the City, secured by its full faith and 
credit and taxing power. In addition, the City will pledge tax abatement revenue derived 
from certain abated parcels for a period of ten years. The tax abatement revenues are 
estimated to be at least equal to the principal due on the Abatement Portion. The City will 
be required to levy ad valorem taxes to pay the interest due on the Abatement Portion if 
there is a shortfall of tax abatement revenue. Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors (Baker Tilly 
MA) has provided the City with the abatement area and properties, and projections of tax 
abatement revenue.  
 
Capitalized interest has been included in the par amount of the Series 2022A Bonds in an 
amount sufficient to make the February 1, 2023 interest payment on the Abatement 
Portion. The City will make its first levy for the Abatement Portion in 2022 for collection in 
2023. Thereafter, each year’s collection of taxes and abatement revenue will be used to 
make the August 1 interest payment due in the collection year and the February 1 principal 
and interest payment due in the following year. 
 

STRUCTURING 
SUMMARY: 

In consultation with City Staff, the Abatement Portion is structured with a repayment term 
of ten (10) years to result in an approximately level annual debt service payments.  

Page 138Item 15.



  Page 5 

$335,000 Street Reconstruction Portion 
Description of Purpose 

PURPOSE: Proceeds of the Street Reconstruction Portion will be used to finance the W. Lyon (College 
to 1st Street) reconstruction project, pay capitalized interest, and fund a portion of the costs 
of issuance. Other contributions available funds in the total amount of $196,648 will be 
used to reduce the amount of the Street Reconstruction Portion. 

AUTHORITY: Statutory Authority:  The Street Reconstruction Portion is being issued pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475 and Section 475.58 (Subd.3b) and the City’s 2022-2026 
Street Reconstruction Plan. 

Statutory Requirements:  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58 (Subd. 3b), the 
City must have a 5-year Street Reconstruction Plan and comply with the associated public 
hearing requirements. The public hearing was held on March 8, 2022. 

SECURITY AND 
SOURCE OF 
PAYMENT: 

The Street Reconstruction Portion will be a general obligation of the City, secured by its 
full faith and credit and taxing power. In addition, the City expects to use special 
assessments collected against benefited properties, which will not be pledged towards 
the repayment of the Street Reconstruction Portion.  
 
Special assessments in the total principal amount of $21,900 are expected to be filed in 
the fall of 2022 for first collection in 2023. The assessments will be collected over a term 
of ten years with approximately equal annual payments of principal. Interest on the unpaid 
balance will be charged at a rate of 2.0% over the true interest cost (TIC) of the Street 
Reconstruction Portion, estimated to be 4.29%.  
 
The Street Reconstruction Portion will require the City to levy taxes to pay 105% of debt 
service; however, the City anticipates special assessments will be applied to reduce the 
required levy as illustrated in the attached schedules. Capitalized interest will be included 
in the principal amount of the Series 2022A Bonds in an amount sufficient to make the 
February 1, 2023 interest payment. The City will make the first levy in 2022 for collection 
in 2023. Each year’s collection of taxes and special assessments will be used to make 
the August 1 interest payment due in the collection year and the February 1 principal and 
interest payment due in the following year. 
 

STRUCTURING 
SUMMARY: 

In consultation with City Staff, the Street Reconstruction Portion is structured over a term 
of ten years around the estimated assessment income to result in an approximately level 
annual tax levy. 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 139Item 15.



  Page 6 

$1,370,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 
Description of Issue 

  

PURPOSE: Proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds, along with available City funds in the amount of 
$176,968.75 will be used to refund the (i) February 1, 2023 through 2027 maturities of the 
City’s General Obligation Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2011A, dated September 15, 2011 
and outstanding in the principal amount of $900,000 (the “Series 2011A Bonds”); and (ii) 
the February 1, 2023 through 2027 maturities of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 2011B, dated September 15, 2011 and outstanding in the principal amount of 
$585,000 (the “Series 2011B Bonds”). Together the 2011A Bonds and the 2011B Bonds 
will be referred to as the Prior Bonds. 

This refunding transaction is being conducted as a current refunding in which the Prior 
Bonds will be redeemed within 90 days of issuance of the Series 2022B Bonds. The 
purpose of the refunding is to provide interest cost savings  

PRIOR BONDS: Proceeds of the Prior Bonds were used as follows: 

2011A Bonds – to finance infrastructure improvements for future economic development 
and related improvements related to the City’s Industrial Park Development; including 
stormwater, water, and sanitary sewer. 

2011B Bonds – to finance six street improvement projects including related utility 
improvements and the purchase of capital equipment. 

AUTHORITY: Statutory Authority: The Series 2022B Bonds are being issued pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapters 444, and 475; and Sections 469.1812 through 469.1815. 

Statutory Requirements: Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 444 and the resolution 
awarding the Series 2022B Bonds, the City will covenant to maintain user rates and 
charges for the Wastewater Treatment Fund and Surface Water Management Fund (the 
“Utility Funds”) in an amounts sufficient to support operations and to pay debt service on 
pledged obligations. The City is required to annually review the budget of the Utilities to 
determine whether current rates and charges are sufficient and to adjust the rates as 
necessary. 
 
Including the Series 2022B Bonds and excluding the Prior Bonds, the City has nine (9) 
obligations outstanding payable from its Utility Funds. The table below shows the 
calculation of net revenues of the Utility Funds available to pay debt service for the fiscal 
year ending December 31, 2020. The maximum annual calendar year debt service 
payment is estimated to be $2,220,299. 
 

Page 140Item 15.



  Page 7 

 
 
Based on the City’s 2020 audited results, the revenues of the Utility Funds are sufficient 
to make the annual debt service payments. 

SCHEDULES 
ATTACHED: 

Schedules attached for the Series 2022B Bonds include: (i) a refunding summary, (ii) a 
debt service comparison for the Series 2022B Bonds, (iii) estimated debt service for the 
Series 2022B Bonds, and (iv) the debt service to maturity and to call schedule. 
 

RISKS/SPECIAL 
CONSIDERATIONS: 

Any projections included herein are estimates at the time this document was prepared 
and are developed based on current conditions in the municipal market. Market conditions 
fluctuate daily and can result in significant changes in yields and prices. Future market 
fluctuations from now until the day of pricing could impact the projected debt service 
savings as reflected in this document and supporting schedules. Baker Tilly will continue 
to monitor the efficiency of this refunding transaction and update the City with any 
significant changes as they may arise. 
 

SALE TERMS AND 
MARKETING: 

Variability of Issue Size: A specific provision in the sale terms permits modifications to the 
issue size and/or maturity structure to customize the issue once the price and interest 
rates are set on the day of sale. 

Prepayment Provisions: The Series 2022B Bonds will not be subject to redemption prior 
to their respective stated maturity dates. 

Bank Qualification:  The City does not expect to issue more than $10 million in tax-exempt 
obligations that count against the $10 million limit for this calendar year; therefore, the 
Series 2022B Bonds are designated as bank qualified.  

SECURITY AND 
SOURCE OF 
PAYMENT: 

The Series 2022B Bonds will be general obligations of the City, secured by its full faith 
and credit and taxing power. The Series 2022B Bonds will be paid with a combination of 
ad valorem tax levies, tax abatement revenues from Country Club Drive Improvements 
and net revenues of its Utility Funds previously pledged to the Prior Bonds.  

The City made their first levy for the Series 2022B Bonds in 2021 for collection in 2022. 
Those collections and other revenues originally pledged to the Prior Bonds will be used 
to make the principal and interest payment due on February 1, 2023. On July 1, 2022, the 
call date of the Prior Bonds, the City will use the proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds to 
redeem the callable maturities of the Prior Bonds. The City will commence making debt 

Page 141Item 15.



  Page 8 

service payments on the Series 2022B Bonds beginning with the February 1, 2023 
principal and interest payment. 

STRUCTURING 
SUMMARY: 

In consultation with City Staff, the Series 2022B Bonds have been structured by original 
purpose and sources of revenue as described under the heading of “Prior Bonds” and to 
provide level annual savings over the same term as the Prior Bonds.  

The portion of the Series 2022B Bonds related to the 2011A Bonds - On July 1, 2022 (the 
call date of the 2011A Bonds), the City will use (i) the proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds 
and (ii) $176,968.75 of available City funds to redeem the $900,000 of outstanding 
principal and $13,320.83 in accrued interest on the 2011A Bonds. The City will be required 
to deposit the $176,968.75 at the time of closing (May 26, 2022).   

The portion of the Series 2022B Bonds related to the 2011B Bonds  On July 1, 2022 (the 
call date of the 2011B Bonds), the City will use the proceeds of the Series 2022B Bonds 
and to redeem the $585,000 of outstanding principal and $9,154.17 in accrued interest on 
the 2011B Bonds.  

Based on current market conditions this refunding transaction is projected to result in 
aggregate future value savings of approximately $47,818 with a net present value savings 
of $37,913, and a net present value benefit to refunded debt service of 2.398%. These 
estimates are net of all costs associated with the refunding. 

 

Post Issuance Compliance 

POST ISSUANCE 
COMPLIANCE: 

The issuance of the Bonds will result in post-issuance compliance responsibilities.  The 
responsibilities are in two primary areas: (i) compliance with federal arbitrage 
requirements and (ii) compliance with secondary disclosure requirements. 

Federal arbitrage requirements include a wide range of implications that have been taken 
into account as this issue has been structured.  Post-issuance compliance responsibilities  

 for this tax-exempt issue include both rebate and yield restriction provisions of the IRS 
Code.  In general terms the arbitrage requirements control the earnings on unexpended 
bond proceeds, including investment earnings, moneys held for debt service payments 
(which are considered to be proceeds under the IRS regulations), and/or reserves.  Under 
certain circumstances any “excess earnings” will need to be paid to the IRS to maintain 
the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  Any interest earnings on gross bond proceeds or 
debt service funds should not be spent until it has been determined based on actual facts 
that they are not “excess earnings” as defined by the IRS Code. 

The arbitrage rules provide for spend-down exceptions for proceeds that are spent within 
either a 6-month, 18-month or, for certain construction issues, a 24-month period each in 
accordance with certain spending criteria. Proceeds that qualify for an exception will be 
exempt from rebate. These exceptions are based on actual expenditures and not based 
on reasonable expectations, and expenditures, including any investment proceeds will  

 have to meet the spending criteria to qualify for the exclusion. The City expects to meet 
the 18-month spending exception for the Series 2022A Bonds. Since the Series 2022B 
Bonds are a current refunding, the proceeds will be used within 90 days to redeem the 

Page 142Item 15.



  Page 9 

Prior Bonds; therefore, the Series 2022B Bonds will meet the 6-month spending 
exception. 

Regardless of whether the issue qualifies for an exemption from the rebate provisions, 
yield restriction provisions will apply to Bond proceeds (including interest earnings) 
unspent after three years and the debt service fund throughout the term of the Bonds. 
These moneys should be monitored until the Bonds are retired.  

Secondary disclosure requirements result from an SEC requirement that underwriters 
provide ongoing disclosure information to investors. To meet this requirement, any 
prospective underwriter will require the City to commit to providing the information needed 
to comply under a continuing disclosure agreement. 

Baker Tilly MA currently provides both arbitrage and continuing disclosure services to the 
City. Baker Tilly MA will work with City staff to include the Bonds under the existing 
respective Agreement for Municipal Advisor Services. 

SUPPLEMENTAL 
INFORMATION AND  
BOND RECORD: 
 

Supplementary information will be available to staff including detailed terms and 
conditions of sale, comprehensive structuring schedules and information to assist in 
meeting post-issuance compliance responsibilities. 

Upon completion of the financing, a bond record will be provided that contains pertinent 
documents and final debt service calculations for the transaction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC is a registered municipal advisor and controlled subsidiary of Baker Tilly US, LLP, an accounting firm.  Baker 
Tilly US, LLP trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are separate and 
independent legal entities.  © 2022 Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC. 

  

Page 143Item 15.



  Page 10 

  

Preliminary

$2,920,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Issue Summary 

Total Issue Sources And Uses 
 Dated 05/26/2022 |  Delivered 05/26/2022

Improvement 
Portion

Airport 
Portion

Abatement 
Portion

Street 
Reconstruc
tion Portion

Issue 
Summary

 
Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds..................................... $1,940,000.00 $70,000.00 $575,000.00 $335,000.00 $2,920,000.00
Wastew ater Cash Contribution...................... 1,254,884.00 - - 97,718.00 1,352,602.00
MMU Cash Contribution................................... 710,601.00 - - 98,930.00 809,531.00
Surfacew ater Cash Contribution.................... 197,453.00 - - - 197,453.00
State Funding Contribution.............................. - 164,500.00 - - 164,500.00
 
Total Sources............................................... $4,102,938.00 $234,500.00 $575,000.00 $531,648.00 $5,444,086.00
 
Uses Of Funds 
Deposit to Project Construction Fund............. $4,017,646.00 $235,000.00 $550,000.00 $518,571.00 $5,321,217.00
Costs of Issuance.......................................... 38,732.90 1,397.59 11,480.10 6,688.41 58,299.00
Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund....... 26,572.29 840.49 7,945.49 4,631.18 39,989.45
Total Underw riter's Discount  (0.800%)......... 15,520.00 560.00 4,600.00 2,680.00 23,360.00
Rounding Amount........................................... 4,466.81 (3,298.08) 974.41 (922.59) 1,220.55
 
Total Uses..................................................... $4,102,938.00 $234,500.00 $575,000.00 $531,648.00 $5,444,086.00

2022A GO Bonds - 3.16.202  |  Issue Summary  |  3/16/2022  |  2:24 PM  

  

Page 144Item 15.



 

 
Page 11 

Preliminary

$2,920,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Issue Summary 

NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S 105% of Total Assessment 
Income

Abatement 
Revenue

Levy 
Required

02/01/2023 - - 39,989.44 39,989.44 (39,989.44) - - - - -
02/01/2024 295,000.00 1.550% 58,760.00 353,760.00 - 353,760.00 371,448.00 145,662.21 55,000.00 170,785.79
02/01/2025 295,000.00 1.650% 54,187.50 349,187.50 - 349,187.50 366,646.88 137,840.86 55,000.00 173,806.02
02/01/2026 295,000.00 1.750% 49,320.00 344,320.00 - 344,320.00 361,536.00 133,574.66 55,000.00 172,961.34
02/01/2027 300,000.00 1.850% 44,157.50 344,157.50 - 344,157.50 361,365.38 129,308.46 55,000.00 177,056.92
02/01/2028 300,000.00 1.950% 38,607.50 338,607.50 - 338,607.50 355,537.88 125,042.26 55,000.00 175,495.62
02/01/2029 280,000.00 2.050% 32,757.50 312,757.50 - 312,757.50 328,395.38 120,776.08 55,000.00 152,619.30
02/01/2030 285,000.00 2.150% 27,017.50 312,017.50 - 312,017.50 327,618.38 116,509.88 60,000.00 151,108.50
02/01/2031 285,000.00 2.300% 20,890.00 305,890.00 - 305,890.00 321,184.50 112,243.70 60,000.00 148,940.80
02/01/2032 290,000.00 2.400% 14,335.00 304,335.00 - 304,335.00 319,551.75 107,977.48 60,000.00 151,574.27
02/01/2033 295,000.00 2.500% 7,375.00 302,375.00 - 302,375.00 317,493.75 103,711.30 65,000.00 148,782.45

Total $2,920,000.00 - $387,396.94 $3,307,396.94 (39,989.44) $3,267,407.50 $3,430,777.88 $1,232,646.89 $575,000.00 $1,623,130.99

 
Dated................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
Delivery Date........................................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
First Coupon Date....................................................................................................................................................................................... 2/01/2023
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars....................................................................................................................................................................................... $17,972.22
Average Life............................................................................................................................................................................................ 6.155 Years
Average Coupon.......................................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1555317%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)................................................................................................................................................................................. 2.2855100%
True Interest Cost (TIC)................................................................................................................................................................................ 2.2892515%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes....................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1476406%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)................................................................................................................................................................................ 2.6494747%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost....................................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1555317%
Weighted Average Maturity............................................................................................................................................................................... 6.155 Years

2022A GO Bonds - 3.16.202  |  Issue Summary  |  3/16/2022  |  2:24 PM  

  

Page 145Item 15.



 

 
 Page 12 

Preliminary

$994,451 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Issue Summary 

ASSESSMENT INCOME 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
12/31/2022 - - - -
12/31/2023 99,445.10 4.290% 46,217.11 145,662.21
12/31/2024 99,445.10 4.290% 38,395.76 137,840.86
12/31/2025 99,445.10 4.290% 34,129.56 133,574.66
12/31/2026 99,445.10 4.290% 29,863.36 129,308.46
12/31/2027 99,445.10 4.290% 25,597.16 125,042.26
12/31/2028 99,445.10 4.290% 21,330.98 120,776.08
12/31/2029 99,445.10 4.290% 17,064.78 116,509.88
12/31/2030 99,445.10 4.290% 12,798.60 112,243.70
12/31/2031 99,445.10 4.290% 8,532.38 107,977.48
12/31/2032 99,445.10 4.290% 4,266.20 103,711.30

Total $994,451.00 - $238,195.89 $1,232,646.89

SIGNIFICANT DATES 
 
Filing Date.................................................................................................................................................................. 12/01/2022
First Payment Date.................................................................................................................................................... 12/31/2023
 

2022A GO Bonds Assessment  |  Issue Summary  |  3/16/2022  |  2:28 PM  

  

Page 146Item 15.



 

 
 Page 13 

Preliminary

$1,940,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Improvement Portion 

NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S 105% of Total Assessment Levy 
Required

02/01/2023 - - 26,572.29 26,572.29 (26,572.29) - - - -
02/01/2024 200,000.00 1.550% 39,045.00 239,045.00 - 239,045.00 250,997.25 142,454.41 108,542.84
02/01/2025 195,000.00 1.650% 35,945.00 230,945.00 - 230,945.00 242,492.25 134,805.30 107,686.95
02/01/2026 195,000.00 1.750% 32,727.50 227,727.50 - 227,727.50 239,113.88 130,633.06 108,480.82
02/01/2027 195,000.00 1.850% 29,315.00 224,315.00 - 224,315.00 235,530.75 126,460.80 109,069.95
02/01/2028 195,000.00 1.950% 25,707.50 220,707.50 - 220,707.50 231,742.88 122,288.56 109,454.32
02/01/2029 190,000.00 2.050% 21,905.00 211,905.00 - 211,905.00 222,500.25 118,116.32 104,383.93
02/01/2030 190,000.00 2.150% 18,010.00 208,010.00 - 208,010.00 218,410.50 113,944.08 104,466.42
02/01/2031 190,000.00 2.300% 13,925.00 203,925.00 - 203,925.00 214,121.25 109,771.84 104,349.41
02/01/2032 195,000.00 2.400% 9,555.00 204,555.00 - 204,555.00 214,782.75 105,599.58 109,183.17
02/01/2033 195,000.00 2.500% 4,875.00 199,875.00 - 199,875.00 209,868.75 101,427.34 108,441.41

Total $1,940,000.00 - $257,582.29 $2,197,582.29 (26,572.29) $2,171,010.00 $2,279,560.50 $1,205,501.29 $1,074,059.21

 
Dated................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
Delivery Date........................................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
First Coupon Date....................................................................................................................................................................................... 2/01/2023
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars....................................................................................................................................................................................... $11,945.28
Average Life............................................................................................................................................................................................ 6.157 Years
Average Coupon.......................................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1563525%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)................................................................................................................................................................................. 2.2862783%
True Interest Cost (TIC)................................................................................................................................................................................ 2.2900408%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes................................................................................................................................................................. 2.1476406%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)................................................................................................................................................................................ 2.6501658%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost....................................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1563525%
Weighted Average Maturity............................................................................................................................................................................. 6.157 Years

2022A GO Bonds - 3.16.202  |  Improvement Portion  |  3/16/2022  |  2:24 PM  

  

Page 147Item 15.



 

 
 Page 14 

 

Preliminary

$972,551 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Improvement Portion

ASSESSMENT INCOME 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
12/31/2022 - - - -
12/31/2023 97,255.10 4.290% 45,199.31 142,454.41
12/31/2024 97,255.10 4.290% 37,550.20 134,805.30
12/31/2025 97,255.10 4.290% 33,377.96 130,633.06
12/31/2026 97,255.10 4.290% 29,205.70 126,460.80
12/31/2027 97,255.10 4.290% 25,033.46 122,288.56
12/31/2028 97,255.10 4.290% 20,861.22 118,116.32
12/31/2029 97,255.10 4.290% 16,688.98 113,944.08
12/31/2030 97,255.10 4.290% 12,516.74 109,771.84
12/31/2031 97,255.10 4.290% 8,344.48 105,599.58
12/31/2032 97,255.10 4.290% 4,172.24 101,427.34

Total $972,551.00 - $232,950.29 $1,205,501.29

SIGNIFICANT DATES 
 
Filing Date.................................................................................................................................................................. 12/01/2022
First Payment Date.................................................................................................................................................... 12/31/2023
 

2022A GO Bonds Assessment  |  Improvement Portion  |  3/16/2022  |  2:28 PM  

  

Page 148Item 15.



 

  Page 15 

 

   

$70,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Airport Portion 

NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New 
D/S

105% of 
Total

Levy 
Required

02/01/2023 - - 840.49 840.49 (840.49) - - -
02/01/2024 10,000.00 1.550% 1,235.00 11,235.00 - 11,235.00 11,796.75 11,796.75
02/01/2025 15,000.00 1.650% 1,080.00 16,080.00 - 16,080.00 16,884.00 16,884.00
02/01/2026 15,000.00 1.750% 832.50 15,832.50 - 15,832.50 16,624.13 16,624.13
02/01/2027 15,000.00 1.850% 570.00 15,570.00 - 15,570.00 16,348.50 16,348.50
02/01/2028 15,000.00 1.950% 292.50 15,292.50 - 15,292.50 16,057.13 16,057.13

Total $70,000.00 - $4,850.49 $74,850.49 (840.49) $74,010.00 $77,710.50 $77,710.50

 
Dated.......................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
Delivery Date.............................................................................................................................................................. 5/26/2022
First Coupon Date....................................................................................................................................................... 2/01/2023
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars...................................................................................................................................................... $267.64
Average Life.............................................................................................................................................................. 3.823 Years
Average Coupon........................................................................................................................................................ 1.8123249%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)................................................................................................................................................ 2.0215620%
True Interest Cost (TIC).............................................................................................................................................. 2.0297286%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes............................................................................................................................ 2.1476406%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)............................................................................................................................................... 2.5870876%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost......................................................................................................................................................... 1.8123249%
Weighted Average Maturity........................................................................................................................................ 3.823 Years

2022A GO Bonds - 3.16.202  |  Airport Portion  |  3/17/2022  |  8:14 AM  

  

Page 149Item 15.



 

  Page 16 

 

  

Preliminary

$575,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Abatement Portion 

NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S 105% of 
Total

Abatement 
Revenue

Levy 
Required

02/01/2023 - - 7,945.49 7,945.49 (7,945.49) - - - -
02/01/2024 55,000.00 1.550% 11,675.00 66,675.00 - 66,675.00 70,008.75 55,000.00 15,008.75
02/01/2025 55,000.00 1.650% 10,822.50 65,822.50 - 65,822.50 69,113.63 55,000.00 14,113.63
02/01/2026 55,000.00 1.750% 9,915.00 64,915.00 - 64,915.00 68,160.75 55,000.00 13,160.75
02/01/2027 55,000.00 1.850% 8,952.50 63,952.50 - 63,952.50 67,150.13 55,000.00 12,150.13
02/01/2028 55,000.00 1.950% 7,935.00 62,935.00 - 62,935.00 66,081.75 55,000.00 11,081.75
02/01/2029 55,000.00 2.050% 6,862.50 61,862.50 - 61,862.50 64,955.63 55,000.00 9,955.63
02/01/2030 60,000.00 2.150% 5,735.00 65,735.00 - 65,735.00 69,021.75 60,000.00 9,021.75
02/01/2031 60,000.00 2.300% 4,445.00 64,445.00 - 64,445.00 67,667.25 60,000.00 7,667.25
02/01/2032 60,000.00 2.400% 3,065.00 63,065.00 - 63,065.00 66,218.25 60,000.00 6,218.25
02/01/2033 65,000.00 2.500% 1,625.00 66,625.00 - 66,625.00 69,956.25 65,000.00 4,956.25

Total $575,000.00 - $78,977.99 $653,977.99 (7,945.49) $646,032.50 $678,334.13 $575,000.00 $103,334.13

 
Dated................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
Delivery Date........................................................................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
First Coupon Date.................................................................................................................................................................................... 2/01/2023
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars.................................................................................................................................................................................... $3,636.32
Average Life............................................................................................................................................................................................ 6.324 Years
Average Coupon...................................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1719210%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)............................................................................................................................................................................. 2.2984226%
True Interest Cost (TIC)............................................................................................................................................................................ 2.3022753%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes.......................................................................................................................................................... 2.1476406%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)............................................................................................................................................................................ 2.6536141%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost...................................................................................................................................................................................... 2.1719210%
Weighted Average Maturity..................................................................................................................................................................... 6.324 Years

2022A GO Bonds - 3.16.202  |  Abatement Portion  |  3/16/2022  |  2:24 PM  

  

Page 150Item 15.



 

  Page 17 

  

Preliminary

$335,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Street Reconstruction Portion 

NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S 105% of 
Total

Assessment 
Income

Levy 
Required

02/01/2023 - - 4,631.18 4,631.18 (4,631.18) - - - -
02/01/2024 30,000.00 1.550% 6,805.00 36,805.00 - 36,805.00 38,645.25 3,207.80 35,437.45
02/01/2025 30,000.00 1.650% 6,340.00 36,340.00 - 36,340.00 38,157.00 3,035.56 35,121.44
02/01/2026 30,000.00 1.750% 5,845.00 35,845.00 - 35,845.00 37,637.25 2,941.60 34,695.65
02/01/2027 35,000.00 1.850% 5,320.00 40,320.00 - 40,320.00 42,336.00 2,847.66 39,488.34
02/01/2028 35,000.00 1.950% 4,672.50 39,672.50 - 39,672.50 41,656.13 2,753.70 38,902.43
02/01/2029 35,000.00 2.050% 3,990.00 38,990.00 - 38,990.00 40,939.50 2,659.76 38,279.74
02/01/2030 35,000.00 2.150% 3,272.50 38,272.50 - 38,272.50 40,186.13 2,565.80 37,620.33
02/01/2031 35,000.00 2.300% 2,520.00 37,520.00 - 37,520.00 39,396.00 2,471.86 36,924.14
02/01/2032 35,000.00 2.400% 1,715.00 36,715.00 - 36,715.00 38,550.75 2,377.90 36,172.85
02/01/2033 35,000.00 2.500% 875.00 35,875.00 - 35,875.00 37,668.75 2,283.96 35,384.79

Total $335,000.00 - $45,986.18 $380,986.18 (4,631.18) $376,355.00 $395,172.75 $27,145.60 $368,027.15

 
Dated.............................................................................................................................................................................................. 5/26/2022
Delivery Date.................................................................................................................................................................................. 5/26/2022
First Coupon Date.......................................................................................................................................................................... 2/01/2023
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars.......................................................................................................................................................................... $2,122.99
Average Life.................................................................................................................................................................................. 6.337 Years
Average Coupon............................................................................................................................................................................ 2.1661084%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)................................................................................................................................................................... 2.2923457%
True Interest Cost (TIC).................................................................................................................................................................. 2.2963616%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes................................................................................................................................................ 2.1476406%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC).................................................................................................................................................................. 2.6466829%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost............................................................................................................................................................................ 2.1661084%
Weighted Average Maturity........................................................................................................................................................... 6.337 Years

2022A GO Bonds - 3.16.202  |  Street Reconstruction Por  |  3/16/2022  |  2:24 PM  

  

Page 151Item 15.



 

  Page 18 

 

Preliminary

$21,900 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Street Reconstruction Portion

ASSESSMENT INCOME 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
12/31/2022 - - - -
12/31/2023 2,190.00 4.290% 1,017.80 3,207.80
12/31/2024 2,190.00 4.290% 845.56 3,035.56
12/31/2025 2,190.00 4.290% 751.60 2,941.60
12/31/2026 2,190.00 4.290% 657.66 2,847.66
12/31/2027 2,190.00 4.290% 563.70 2,753.70
12/31/2028 2,190.00 4.290% 469.76 2,659.76
12/31/2029 2,190.00 4.290% 375.80 2,565.80
12/31/2030 2,190.00 4.290% 281.86 2,471.86
12/31/2031 2,190.00 4.290% 187.90 2,377.90
12/31/2032 2,190.00 4.290% 93.96 2,283.96

Total $21,900.00 - $5,245.60 $27,145.60

SIGNIFICANT DATES 
 
Filing Date....................................................................................................................................................................... 12/01/2022
First Payment Date......................................................................................................................................................... 12/31/2023
 

2022A GO Bonds Assessment  |  Street Reconstruction Por  |  3/16/2022  |  2:28 PM  

  

Page 152Item 15.



 

  Page 19 

  

Preliminary

$1,370,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 
Issue Summary 

Refunding Summary 
 Dated 05/26/2022 |  Delivered 05/26/2022

Current 
Refunding of 

2011A - 
Wastewater 

Fund

Current 
Refunding of 

2011A - 
Surface 

Water Fund

Current 
Refunding of 

2011A - Tax 
Increment

Current 
Refunding of 
2011B - Levy

Current 
Refunding of 

2011B - 
Abatement

Current 
Refunding of 

2011B - 
Wastewater 

Treatment

Current 
Refunding of 

2011B - 
Surface 

Water Mgmt
Issue 

Summary
 
Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds.......................................................... $390,000.00 $370,000.00 - $85,000.00 $310,000.00 $80,000.00 $135,000.00 $1,370,000.00
Planned Issuer Equity contribution...................................... - - 176,968.75 - - - - 176,968.75
 
Total Sources................................................................... $390,000.00 $370,000.00 $176,968.75 $85,000.00 $310,000.00 $80,000.00 $135,000.00 $1,546,968.75
 
Uses Of Funds 
Deposit to Current Refunding Fund..................................... 375,787.50 360,564.58 176,968.75 86,335.42 299,618.75 76,168.75 132,031.25 1,507,475.00
Costs of Issuance............................................................... 7,109.95 6,745.35 - 1,549.60 5,651.51 1,458.46 2,461.13 24,976.00
Total Underw riter's Discount  (0.800%)............................. 3,120.00 2,960.00 - 680.00 2,480.00 640.00 1,080.00 10,960.00
Rounding Amount................................................................ 3,982.55 (269.93) - (3,565.02) 2,249.74 1,732.79 (572.38) 3,557.75
 
Total Uses......................................................................... $390,000.00 $370,000.00 $176,968.75 $85,000.00 $310,000.00 $80,000.00 $135,000.00 $1,546,968.75
 
 
Flow of Funds Detail 
 
State and Local Government Series (SLGS) rates for.......
Date of OMP Candidates.....................................................
 
Primary Purpose Fund Solution Method.............................. Gross Funded Gross Funded Gross Funded Gross Funded Gross Funded Gross Funded Gross Funded Gross Funded
Total Cost of Investments................................................... $375,787.50 $360,564.58 $176,968.75 $86,335.42 $299,618.75 $76,168.75 $132,031.25 $1,507,475.00
Total Draw s........................................................................ $375,787.50 $360,564.58 $176,968.75 $86,335.42 $299,618.75 $76,168.75 $132,031.25 $1,507,475.00
 
 
Issues Refunded And Call Dates 
 
2011A GO TIF Bonds - PS.................................................. 7/01/2022
2011A GO TIF Bonds - PS.................................................. 7/01/2022
2011A GO TIF Bonds - PS.................................................. 7/01/2022
2011B GO Bonds - PS........................................................ 7/01/2022
2011B GO Bonds - PS........................................................ 7/01/2022
2011B GO Bonds - PS........................................................ 7/01/2022
2011B GO Bonds - PS........................................................ 7/01/2022
 
 
PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Net PV Cashflow  Savings @  1.706%(Bond Yield)........... 6,301.76 10,286.79 177,678.63 6,316.44 6,090.72 318.61 4,330.65 211,323.60
Total Cash contribution....................................................... - - (176,968.75) - - - - (176,968.75)
Contingency or Rounding Amount...................................... 3,982.55 (269.93) - (3,565.02) 2,249.74 1,732.79 (572.38) 3,557.75
Net Present Value Benefit................................................... $10,284.31 $10,016.86 $709.88 $2,751.42 $8,340.46 $2,051.40 $3,758.27 $37,912.60
 
Net PV Benefit / Refunded Principal.................................... 2.780% 2.822% 0.406% 3.237% 2.827% 2.735% 2.891% 2.553%
Net PV Benefit / Refunding Principal................................... 2.637% 2.707% - 3.237% 2.690% 2.564% 2.784% 2.767%
Average Annual Cash Flow  Savings................................. 1,517.01 2,319.55 2,756.25 1,539.17 1,457.27 320.82 1,146.95 44,245.77
Total New  Net D/S............................................................... 406,904.95 386,157.27 176,968.75 87,909.13 323,398.63 82,200.92 139,940.23 1,603,479.88
Total Prior D/S..................................................................... 414,490.00 397,755.00 179,725.00 95,605.00 330,685.00 83,805.00 145,675.00 1,647,740.00
Total Cashflow  Savings...................................................... 7,585.05 11,597.73 2,756.25 7,695.87 7,286.37 1,604.08 5,734.77 44,260.12
 
Bond Statistics 
 
Average Life....................................................................... 2.527 Years 2.545 Years - 2.033 Years 2.519 Years 1.681 Years 2.162 Years 2.414 Years
Average Coupon................................................................. 1.7155129% 1.7155633% - 1.6830644% 1.7156346% 1.6370479% 1.6925842% 1.7086471%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)........................................................ 2.0321302% 2.0298532% - 2.0764754% 2.0331876% 2.1130810% 2.0626056% 2.0400291%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes..................................... 1.7063792% 1.7063792% 1.7063792% 1.7063792% 1.7063792% 1.7063792% 1.7063792% 1.7063792%
True Interest Cost (TIC)....................................................... 2.0422154% 2.0398674% - 2.0881712% 2.0433047% 2.1257750% 2.0737589% 2.0504107%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)....................................................... 2.8073268% 2.7991955% - 3.0399060% 2.8107621% 3.2750218% 2.9685513% 2.8513145%
2022 GO Ref Bonds - 11A 1  |  Issue Summary  |  3/17/2022  |  10:13 AM  

  

Page 153Item 15.



 

  Page 20 

  

Preliminary

$1,370,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 
Issue Summary 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I
08/01/2022 - - - -
02/01/2023 425,000.00 1.375% 14,918.63 439,918.63
08/01/2023 - - 8,038.75 8,038.75
02/01/2024 235,000.00 1.550% 8,038.75 243,038.75
08/01/2024 - - 6,217.50 6,217.50
02/01/2025 230,000.00 1.650% 6,217.50 236,217.50
08/01/2025 - - 4,320.00 4,320.00
02/01/2026 240,000.00 1.750% 4,320.00 244,320.00
08/01/2026 - - 2,220.00 2,220.00
02/01/2027 240,000.00 1.850% 2,220.00 242,220.00

Total $1,370,000.00 - $56,511.13 $1,426,511.13

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars..................................................................................................................................................... $3,307.36
Average Life............................................................................................................................................................. 2.414 Years
Average Coupon....................................................................................................................................................... 1.7086471%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC)............................................................................................................................................... 2.0400291%
True Interest Cost (TIC)............................................................................................................................................. 2.0504107%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes........................................................................................................................... 1.7063792%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC).............................................................................................................................................. 2.8513145%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost........................................................................................................................................................ 1.7086471%
Weighted Average Maturity....................................................................................................................................... 2.414 Years

2022 GO Ref Bonds - 11A 1  |  Issue Summary  |  3/17/2022  |  10:13 AM  

  

Page 154Item 15.



 

  Page 21 

  

Preliminary

$1,370,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 
Issue Summary 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings
02/01/2023 439,918.63 439,918.63 473,940.00 34,021.37
02/01/2024 251,077.50 251,077.50 292,600.00 41,522.50
02/01/2025 242,435.00 242,435.00 292,600.00 50,165.00
02/01/2026 248,640.00 248,640.00 292,200.00 43,560.00
02/01/2027 244,440.00 244,440.00 296,400.00 51,960.00

Total $1,426,511.13 $1,426,511.13 $1,647,740.00 $221,228.87

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 
 
Net FV Cashflow  Savings......................................................................................................................................... 221,228.87
Gross PV Debt Service Savings................................................................................................................................ 211,323.60
 
Net PV Cashflow  Savings @  1.706%(Bond Yield).................................................................................................. 211,323.60
 
Total Cash contribution.............................................................................................................................................. (176,968.75)
Contingency or Rounding Amount............................................................................................................................. 3,557.75
Net Future Value Benefit............................................................................................................................................ $47,817.87
Net Present Value Benefit.......................................................................................................................................... $37,912.60
 
Net PV Benefit / $1,581,323.60 PV Refunded Debt Service...................................................................................... 2.398%
Net PV Benefit /  $1,485,000 Refunded Principal....................................................................................................... 2.553%
Net PV Benefit /  $1,370,000 Refunding Principal...................................................................................................... 2.767%
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date................................................................................................................................................ 5/26/2022
Refunding Delivery Date............................................................................................................................................ 5/26/2022

2022 GO Ref Bonds - 11A 1  |  Issue Summary  |  3/17/2022  |  10:13 AM  

  

Page 155Item 15.



 

  Page 22 

 
 

 

Preliminary

$1,370,000 
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B 
Issue Summary 

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call 

Date Refunded 
Bonds

Interest to 
Call

D/S To Call Principal Interest Refunded 
D/S

05/26/2022 - - - - - -
07/01/2022 1,485,000.00 22,475.00 1,507,475.00 - - -
08/01/2022 - - - - 26,970.00 26,970.00
02/01/2023 - - - 420,000.00 26,970.00 446,970.00
08/01/2023 - - - - 21,300.00 21,300.00
02/01/2024 - - - 250,000.00 21,300.00 271,300.00
08/01/2024 - - - - 16,300.00 16,300.00
02/01/2025 - - - 260,000.00 16,300.00 276,300.00
08/01/2025 - - - - 11,100.00 11,100.00
02/01/2026 - - - 270,000.00 11,100.00 281,100.00
08/01/2026 - - - - 5,700.00 5,700.00
02/01/2027 - - - 285,000.00 5,700.00 290,700.00

Total $1,485,000.00 $22,475.00 $1,507,475.00 $1,485,000.00 $162,740.00 $1,647,740.00

Yield Statistics 
 
Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation................................................................................................ 5/26/2022
Average Life............................................................................................................................................................. 2.512 Years
Average Coupon...................................................................................................................................................... 3.9003965%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis)................................................................................................................... 2.512 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis)................................................................................................... 2.568 Years
 
Refunding Bond Information 
 
Refunding Dated Date............................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022
Refunding Delivery Date........................................................................................................................................... 5/26/2022

2022 GO Ref Bonds - 11A 1  |  Issue Summary  |  3/17/2022  |  10:13 AM  

  

Page 156Item 15.



 

  Page 23 

 

Preliminary Preliminary Preliminary Preliminary
Calendar 

Year
General 

Obligation 
Bonds, Series 

2012A 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2014C 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2015B 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2015B 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2016B 

General 
Obligation Utility 

Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2016D 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2018A 

General Obligation 
Wastewater 

Revenue Note, 
Series 2019A 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds, Series 
2020B 

General 
Obligation 
Refunding 

Bonds, Series 
2022A 

General 
Obligation 
Refunding 

Bonds, Series 
2022A 

General 
Obligation 
Refunding 

Bonds, Series 
2022A 

General 
Obligation 
Refunding 

Bonds, Series 
2022A 

TOTAL

Wastewater 
Fund 

Utility Bonds Z38 - S 2nd 
Recon - Utility 

Bonds 

Z37 - E 
Redwood St. - 
Utility Bonds

Utility Portion Crossover 
Refunding of 
Series 2006B 

Utility 
Revenue 

Bonds 

Minnesota Public 
Facilities Authority 

Clean Water 
Revolving Fund 

Surface Water 
Utility Bonds 

Current 
Refunding of 

2011A - 
Wastewater 

Fund 

Current 
Refunding of 

2011A - Surface 
Water Fund 

Current 
Refunding of 

2011B - 
Wastewater 
Treatment 

Current 
Refunding of 

2011B - Surface 
Water Mgmt 

2023 137,642.50 163,950.00 43,400.00 81,000.00 185,700.00 407,250.00 16,200.00 878,710.15 95,600.00 84,338.54 74,125.87 20,881.32 31,500.63 2,220,299.01
2024 140,242.50 164,450.00 46,800.00 78,000.00 187,200.00 411,300.00 15,600.00 878,290.15 94,000.00 80,275.00 80,100.00 16,020.00 26,792.50 2,219,070.15
2025 137,617.50 164,800.00 - - 183,600.00 408,700.00 - 878,800.15 92,400.00 84,112.50 78,937.50 15,787.50 26,405.00 2,071,160.15
2026 139,867.50 - - - - 411,000.00 - 878,230.15 95,800.00 77,792.50 77,700.00 15,540.00 25,992.50 1,721,922.65
2027 141,877.50 - - - - 413,100.00 - 878,590.15 94,100.00 81,480.00 76,387.50 15,277.50 30,555.00 1,731,367.65
2028 143,570.00 - - - - - - 878,870.15 97,400.00 - - - - 1,119,840.15
2029 - - - - - - - 878,070.15 95,600.00 - - - - 973,670.15
2030 - - - - - - - 878,200.15 93,800.00 - - - - 972,000.15
2031 - - - - - - - 878,250.15 102,000.00 - - - - 980,250.15
2032 - - - - - - - 878,220.15 - - - - - 878,220.15
2033 - - - - - - - 878,110.15 - - - - - 878,110.15
2034 - - - - - - - 878,920.15 - - - - - 878,920.15
2035 - - - - - - - 878,640.15 - - - - - 878,640.15
2036 - - - - - - - 878,280.15 - - - - - 878,280.15
2037 - - - - - - - 878,840.15 - - - - - 878,840.15
2038 - - - - - - - 878,310.15 - - - - - 878,310.15
2039 - - - - - - - 878,715.15 - - - - - 878,715.15

- $840,817.50 $493,200.00 $90,200.00 $159,000.00 $556,500.00 $2,051,350.00 $31,800.00 $14,934,047.55 $860,700.00 $407,998.54 $387,250.87 $83,506.32 $141,245.63 $21,037,616.41

MADS 2,220,299.01
 
 

      
 

Aggregate Calendar Year Debt Service at 100%

General Obligation Debt Paid from Utility Funds
City of Marshall, Minnesota 

Page 157Item 15.



 

 
 Page 24 

 

Page 158Item 15.



 

3 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22- 045 

 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE 

OF THE CITY’S GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 

SERIES 2022A, IN THE PROPOSED AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT OF $2,920,000 AND GENERAL OBLIGATION 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2022B, IN THE PROPOSED 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,370,000; AND 

ESTABLISHING A PRICING COMMITTEE UNDER CERTAIN 

CIRCUMSTANCES  

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Marshall, Minnesota (the 

“City”), in regular meeting assembled: 

 

1. Street Reconstruction Bonds. 

 

(a) Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, as amended (“Chapter 475”), 

specifically Section 475.58, subdivision 3b (collectively, the “Street Reconstruction Act”), the 

City is authorized to issue general obligation bonds to finance street reconstruction and 

bituminous overlays, which may include: (i) utility replacement and relocation and other 

activities incidental to the street reconstruction; (ii) the addition or reconstruction of turn lanes, 

bicycle lanes, sidewalks, paths, and other improvements having a substantial public safety 

function; (iii) realignments and other modifications to intersect with state and county roads; and 

(iv) the local share of state and county road projects, but does not include, except in the case of (i) 

turn lanes, bicycles lanes, sidewalks, paths, or other safety improvements; (ii) realignments; (iii) 

intersection modifications; and (iv) the local share of state or county road projects, the portion of 

project costs allocable to widening a street or adding curbs and gutters where none previously 

existed.  

 

(b) As a condition to the issuance of general obligation street reconstruction bonds, 

the City must adopt a street reconstruction or overlay plan that describes the street reconstruction 

or overlay to be financed, the estimated costs, and any planned reconstruction or overlay of other 

streets in the municipality over the next five years, and such plan and issuance of the street 

reconstruction bonds must be approved by a vote of a two-thirds majority of the members of the 

governing body following a public hearing for which notice has been published in the official 

newspaper at least ten (10) days but not more than twenty-eight (28) days prior to the hearing. 

 

(c) By resolution of the Council of the City, adopted on February 8, 2022, the 

Council authorized a public hearing to be conducted on March 8, 2022, with respect to a five-year 

street reconstruction plan (the “Street Reconstruction Plan”) prepared in compliance with the 

Street Reconstruction Act, and the proposed issuance of general obligation bonds (the “Street 

Reconstruction Bonds”) to finance certain street reconstruction described in the Street 

Reconstruction Plan, including the project designated by the City as the West Lyon Street (from 

College to 1st Street) Reconstruction Project (the “Street Reconstruction”).  The City Clerk was 

authorized and directed to cause a notice of public hearing to be published in the official 

newspaper of the City once at least ten (10) days but not more than twenty-eight (28) days before 

the date of the public hearing. 

 

(d) A notice of public hearing with respect to the Street Reconstruction Plan and the 

Page 159Item 15.



 

4 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

proposed issuance of the Street Reconstruction Bonds to finance the Street Reconstruction was 

published on February 22, 2022, in The Independent, the official newspaper of the City in 

accordance with the Street Reconstruction Act. 

 

(e) On March 8, 2022, the Council of the City conducted a public hearing on the 

proposals that the City adopt the Street Reconstruction Plan and issue the Street Reconstruction 

Bonds to finance the Street Reconstruction, all under the Street Reconstruction Act.  Following 

the public hearing, the Council adopted a resolution approving the Street Reconstruction Plan and 

the issuance of the Street Reconstruction Bonds by a vote of at least two-thirds majority of the 

members of the Council.   

 

(f) The City proposes to issue the Street Reconstruction Bonds in the proposed 

aggregate principal amount of $335,000 to finance the Street Reconstruction and the costs of 

issuing the Street Reconstruction Bonds, subject to the contingency described in subsection (g) 

below.  The principal of and interest on the Street Reconstruction Bonds will be paid from 

revenues derived from the imposition of ad valorem property taxes. 

 

(g) If a petition requesting a vote on the issuance of the Street Reconstruction Bonds, 

signed by voters equal to five percent (5%) of the votes cast in the last municipal general election, 

is filed with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after the date of the public hearing, the City 

may issue the Street Reconstruction Bonds only after obtaining approval of a majority of voters 

voting on the question at an election.  The authorization to issue the Street Reconstruction Bonds 

is subject to expiration of the 30-day period without the City’s receipt of a qualified petition 

under the Street Reconstruction Act, or if a qualified petition is filed, upon the approving vote of 

a majority of the voters voting on the question of issuance of the Street Reconstruction Bonds. 

 

2. Abatement Bonds. 

 

(a) The City has determined to finance certain public improvements, including to the 

Rose and Addison city parking lots adjacent to West Lyon Street in the City (the “Infrastructure 

Improvements”). 

 

(b) Under Chapter 475 and Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 through 

469.1815, as amended (collectively, the “Abatement Act”), the City is authorized to grant a 

property tax abatement on specified parcels in order to accomplish certain public purposes, 

including the provision or construction of public infrastructure such as the Infrastructure 

Improvements. 

 

(c) Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Council on March 8, 2022 (the 

“Abatement Resolution”), following a duly noticed public hearing, the Council approved a 

property tax abatement (the “Abatements”) for certain property in the City (the “Abatement 

Parcels”) over a period of ten (10) years, in an amount not to exceed $575,000. 

 

(d) In the Abatement Resolution, the City found and determined that the 

Infrastructure Improvements benefit the Abatement Parcels, and that the maximum principal 

amount of bonds to be secured by Abatements (the “Abatement Bonds”) does not exceed the 

estimated sum of Abatements from the Abatement Parcels for the term authorized under the 

Abatement Resolution. 

 

Page 160Item 15.



 

5 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

(e) The City has determined to issue the Abatement Bonds in the proposed aggregate 

principal amount of $575,000, pursuant to the Abatement Act, to provide financing for the 

Infrastructure Improvements. 

 

3. Improvement Bonds. 

 

(a) The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429, as amended, and 

Chapter 475 (collectively, the “Improvement Act”), to issue general obligation bonds in an 

amount deemed necessary to defray in whole or in part the expense incurred and estimated to be 

incurred in making improvements authorized by the Improvement Act, including the 

construction, reconstruction, improvement, and maintenance of streets, gutters, curb, and 

sidewalks and the construction, reconstruction, extension, and maintenance of storm and sanitary 

sewers and systems. 

 

(b) Certain assessable public improvements within the City, including the projects 

designated by the City as the Halbur Road Reconstruction Project and the South 1st Street 

Reconstruction Project (the “Assessable Improvements”), have been made, duly ordered, or 

contracts let pursuant to the provisions of the Improvement Act. 

 

(c) The Council finds it necessary and expedient to the sound financial management 

of the affairs of the City to issue general obligation improvement bonds in the proposed aggregate 

principal amount of $1,940,000 (the “Improvement Bonds”), pursuant to the Improvement Act, to 

provide financing for the Assessable Improvements.  The Improvement Bonds will be payable in 

part from special assessments imposed on properties in the City specially benefited by the 

improvements made with the proceeds of the Improvements Bonds. 

  

4. Airport Bonds. 

 

(a) The City is authorized by Chapter 475 and Minnesota Statutes, Section 360.036, 

as amended (collectively, the “Airport Act”), to issue general obligation bonds to finance the 

costs of investigating, surveying, planning, acquiring, establishing, constructing, enlarging, or 

improving or equipping airports and other navigation facilities, and the sites therefor, including 

structures and other property incidental to their operation.  

 

(b) No election is required to authorize the issuance of the bonds under the Airport 

Act if: 

 

I. the bonds are authorized by a resolution of the Council, adopted by a 

vote of not less than 60 percent (60%) of its members; or 

 

II. the bonds are being issued for the purpose of financing the costs of 

constructing, enlarging, or improving airports and other air navigation facilities; and 

 

1. the Council estimates that passenger facility charges and other 

revenues pledged to the payment thereof will be at least twenty percent (20%) of 

the debt service payable on the bonds in any year; 

 

2. the project will be funded in part by a state grant or federal grant 

for airport development; and 

 

Page 161Item 15.



 

6 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

3. the principal amount of the bonds proposed to be issued does not 

exceed 25 percent (25%) of the amount of the state and federal grants. 

 

(c) Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Council on March 8, 2022 by a vote of 

not less than 60 percent (60%) of its members, the Council found that it is necessary and 

expedient to the sound financial management of the affairs of the City to issue one or more series 

of general obligation bonds, a portion of which will be designated as airport bonds in the proposed 

aggregate principal amount of $70,000 (the “Airport Bonds”), pursuant to the Airport Act, to 

provide financing for certain improvements to the Southwest Minnesota Regional Airport (the 

“Airport”), including apron reconstruction with respect to the WPA hangar area and apron and 

taxiway sealcoat/crack filling (the “Airport Improvements”).  The principal of and interest on the 

Airport Bonds will be paid from revenues derived from the imposition of ad valorem property 

taxes.  The Airport Bonds may also be payable in part from net revenues obtained from the 

ownership, control, and operation of the Airport, including passenger facility charges and other 

revenues. 

 

5. Refunding Bonds. 

 

(a) The City is authorized by Chapter 475 and Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.67, 

subdivision 3 (collectively, the “Refunding Act”) to issue and sell its general obligation bonds to 

refund obligations and the interest thereon before the due date of the obligations, if consistent 

with covenants made with the holders thereof, when determined by the Council to be necessary or 

desirable for the reduction of debt service cost to the City or for the extension or adjustment of 

maturities in relation to the resources available for their payment. 

 

(b) It is necessary and desirable for the reduction of debt service costs to the City to 

issue its general obligation refunding bonds in the proposed aggregate principal amount of 

$1,370,000 (the “Refunding Bonds”), to current refund certain outstanding general obligation 

bonds of the City, including the Prior Bonds (as defined below), and to pay the costs of issuing 

the Refunding Bonds. 

 

(c) The outstanding general obligation bonds of the City currently anticipated to be 

refunded consist of the (i) February 1, 2023 through 2027 maturities of the City’s General 

Obligation Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2011A, dated September 15, 2011, and outstanding in 

the principal amount of $900,000 (the “Series 2011A Bonds”); and (ii) the February 1, 2023 

through 2027 maturities of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011B, dated September 

15, 2011, and outstanding in the principal amount of $585,000 (the “Series 2011B Bonds,” and 

together with the Series 2011B Bonds, the “Prior Bonds”). 

 

(d) The Series 2011A Bonds were issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 

Chapter 469.174-469.179, as amended (the “Tax Increment Act”), and Minnesota Statutes, 

Chapter 444, as amended (the “Utilities Act”), to finance various infrastructure improvements in 

the City’s Industrial Park development (the “2011A Projects”).  The Series 2011B Bonds were 

issued pursuant to the Improvement Act, the Utilities Act, and the Abatement Act to finance 

various street improvement projects and related utility improvements (the “2011B Projects”).   

 

6. Sale of Bonds.   

 

(a) It is necessary and expedient to the sound financial management of the affairs of 

the City to issue its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A (the “Series 2022A Bonds”), in the 

proposed aggregate principal amount of $2,920,000, pursuant to the Street Reconstruction Act, 

Page 162Item 15.



 

7 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

the Abatement Act, the Improvement Act and the Airport Act to provide financing for the Street 

Reconstruction, the Infrastructure Improvements, the Assessable Improvements, and the Airport 

Improvements.  The Series 2022A Bonds will be issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with 

the Terms of Proposal substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT A (the “Series A 

Terms of Proposal”). 

 

(b) The Council hereby finds that it may be necessary and expedient to the sound 

financial management of the affairs of the City to issue its Refunding Bonds, to be designated 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B (the “Series 2022B Bonds” and together with 

the Series 2022A Bonds, the “Bonds”), in the proposed aggregate principal amount of 

$1,370,000, pursuant to the Refunding Act, the Tax Increment Act, the Improvement Act, the 

Utilities Act, and the Abatement Act to refund the Prior Bonds and thereby refinance the 2011A 

Project and 2011B Project.  To the extent the City later determines to issue the Series 2022B 

Bonds, the Series 2022B Bonds will be issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with the Terms 

of Proposal substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the “Series B Terms of 

Proposal”). 

 

(c) The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.60, subdivision 2(9) of 

to negotiate the sale of the Bonds, it being determined that the City has retained an independent 

municipal advisor in connection with such sale.   

 

7. Authority of Municipal Advisor.  Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC (the “Municipal 

Advisor”) is authorized and directed to negotiate the Series 2022A Bonds in accordance with the Series A 

Terms of Proposal and the Series B Terms of Proposal.  The Council will meet at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, 

April 26, 2022, or on such other date as the City Administrator determines, to consider proposals on the 

Series 2022A Bonds and, to the extent the City determines to proceed with the issuance of the Series 

2022B Bonds, the Series 2022B Bonds, and take any other appropriate action with respect to such Bonds. 

 

8. Pricing Committee.   

 

(a) If, upon advice of the Municipal Advisor, the date for consideration of the 

proposals on the Bonds should occur on a date other than the date specified in Section 7 of this 

resolution due to market volatility, the Council hereby establishes a pricing committee with 

respect to the Bonds, comprised of the Mayor, the City Administrator, and the Director of 

Administrative Services (the “Pricing Committee”).  The Pricing Committee is authorized and 

directed, with the advice of the Municipal Advisor, to review proposals for the sale of the Bonds 

and award the sale of the Bonds to one or more prospective purchasers (each, a “Purchaser”), 

with a proposal conforming to the Series A Terms of Proposal and the Series B Terms of 

Proposal, subject to the following parameters:   

 

i. With respect to the Series 2022A Bonds: (i) the principal amount, net of any 

reoffering premium and reoffering discount, shall not exceed $3,000,000; and (ii) 

the true interest cost shall not exceed 4.00%; and  

 

ii. With respect to the Series 2022B Bonds: (i) the principal amount, net of any 

reoffering premium and reoffering discount, shall not exceed $1,400,000; and (ii) 

the Series 2022B Bonds shall achieve debt service savings over the life of the 

Series 2022B Bonds in the amount of at least $20,000.     

 

Page 163Item 15.



 

8 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

(b) The City hereby approves the sale of the Series 2022A Bonds and the Series 

2022B Bonds to the Purchaser(s) selected by the Pricing Committee at the prices, principal 

amounts, and rates to be determined by the Pricing Committee in accordance with this Section 8.   

 

(c) The Council will meet at 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 26, 2022, or on such other 

date as the City Administrator determines, after acceptance by the Pricing Committee of the 

proposal of each Purchaser, to ratify such acceptance and take any other appropriate action with 

respect to the Bonds; provided that ratification by the Council of the sale of the Series 2022A 

Bonds, and if applicable, the Series 2022B, shall occur not later than 90 days of the date of 

adoption of this resolution. 

 

9. Authority of Bond Counsel.  The law firm of Kennedy & Graven, Chartered, as bond 

counsel for the City, is authorized to act as bond counsel and to assist in the preparation and review of 

necessary documents, certificates and instruments relating to the Bonds.  The officers, employees and 

agents of the City are hereby authorized to assist Kennedy & Graven, Chartered, in the preparation of 

such documents, certificates, and instruments. 

 

10. Covenants.  In the resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds the Council will set forth the 

covenants and undertakings required by the Street Reconstruction Act, the Abatement Act, the 

Improvement Act and the Airport Act, the Refunding Act, the Tax Increment Act, and the Utilities Act, as 

applicable. 

 

11. Official Statement.  In connection with the sale of the Bonds, the officers or employees of 

the City are authorized and directed to cooperate with the Municipal Advisor and participate in the 

preparation of an official statement for the Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the City upon 

its completion. 

 

Passed and adopted this March 22, 2022. 

 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

 

  

Robert J. Byrnes 

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

  

Kyle Box 

City Clerk 

Page 164Item 15.



 

A-1 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Series A Terms of Proposal 

Page 165Item 15.



 

A-2 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 166Item 15.



 

A-3 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 167Item 15.



 

A-4 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 168Item 15.



 

A-5 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 169Item 15.



 

B-1 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Series B Terms of Proposal 

 

Page 170Item 15.



 

B-2 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 171Item 15.



 

B-3 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 172Item 15.



 

B-4 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 173Item 15.



 

B-5 
MA175-127-777438.v3 Page 174Item 15.



 

B-6 
MA175-127-777438.v3 

 

Page 175Item 15.



 

MA175-127-777438.v3 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

 ) 

COUNTY OF LYON ) SS 

 ) 

CITY OF MARSHALL ) 

 

 

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Marshall, 

Minnesota (the “City”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the attached and foregoing extract 

of minutes with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a full, true and complete 

transcript of the minutes of a meeting of the City Council of the City, duly called and held on March 22, 

2022, insofar as such minutes relate to the issuance and sale of the City’s General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2022A, in the proposed aggregate principal amount of $2,920,000 and General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2022B, in the proposed aggregate principal amount of $1,370,000. 

WITNESS my hand this ____ day of __________, 2022. 

 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

 

 

 

  

Kyle Box 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 176Item 15.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Request for Interim Use Permit / storage containers in a B-3 General Business District 
Shri Gayatri LLC 1511 East College Drive 

Background 

Information: 

This is the request by the Owner for an Interim Use Permit for a shipping container placement in 
a B-3 General business district. Last spring the City has amended its Ordinance governing 
placement of shipping containers and semi-trailers on properties within the City. The revised 
Ordinance now allows placing a limited number of containers in a general business district by an 
interim use permit. The above-listed conditions include a reference (condition 4) to a particular 
Ordinance section that itemizes specific conditions for container placement. This section is 
attached to make sure that only its current version is applicable and compliance with future 
amendments, if any, to this section will not be required. 
 
Interim use permit regulations are found in Sec. 86-46 and the standard for approval are in Sec. 
86-49. 
 
At the Planning Commission meeting on March 9, 2022, after a public hearing, a motion was 
made by Muchlinski, seconded by Deutz, to recommend approval as recommended by city staff 
to City Council.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. 

Fiscal Impact: None known. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

Deny the request. 

Recommendations: Planning Commission recommends that the Council approve the request by Shri Gayatri LLC for 
an Interim Use Permit to have a storage container on the premises at 1511 East College Drive 
with the following conditions: 

1. That the regulations, standards and requirements as set forth in the City Code and as 
pertains to the class of district in which such premises are located shall be conformed 
with. 

2. That the City reserves the right to revoke the Conditional Use Permit in the event that 
any person has breached the conditions contained in this permit provided first, that the 
City serve the person with written notice specifying items of any default and allow the 
applicant a reasonable amount of time in which to repair such default. 

3. That this permit expires when the property changes ownership. 
4. That this container meets all conditions of Sec. 86-248(f) dated 04-27-2021 (as attached) 

by June 30, 2022, including a fence 

 

Page 177Item 16.



Page 178Item 16.



Page 179Item 16.



Page 180Item 16.



Page 181Item 16.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Request for Conditional Use Permit / mini storage in a B-3 General Business District by Menard, 
Inc. at 1211 Clarice Avenue 

Background 

Information: 

This is a request of Menard, Inc. to have a mini storage in a B-3 General Business District at 1211 
Clarice Avenue, which requires a Conditional Use Permit. Conditions attached will minimize an 
impact on surrounding properties. 
 
Requirements for B-3 District can be found in Sec. 86-104.  The Conditional Use Permit 
regulations are found in Sec. 86-46 and the Standards for approval are found in Sec. 86-49. 
 
At the Planning Commission meeting on March 9, 2022, after a public hearing, a motion was 
made by Muchlinski, seconded by Deutz, to recommend approval as recommended by city staff 
to City Council.  ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. 

Fiscal Impact: None known. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended. 

Recommendations: Planning Commission recommends that the Council approve a Conditional Use Permit request 
by Menard, Inc. to have a mini storage in a B-3 General Business District at 1211 Clarice 
Avenue with the following conditions: 

1. That the regulations, standards, and requirements as set forth in the City Code and as 
pertains to the class of district in which such premises are located shall be conformed 
with. 

2. That the City reserves the right to revoke the Conditional Use Permit in the event that 
any person has breached the conditions contained in this permit provided that the City 
serve the person with written notice specifying items of any default and allow the 
applicant a reasonable time in which to repair such default. 

3. That the property is maintained to conform to the Zoning Code and not cause or create 
negative impacts to adjacent existing or future properties. 

4. All driveways, approaches, any other non-landscaped areas are paved. 
5. The perimeter of the property is separated from surrounding areas either by storage units 

or a minimum 6-foot high opaque fence. 
6. The landscape ordinance provisions for live vegetation and trees are complied with, both 

at the time of construction for area allocated for mini-storage, and for future subdivided 
parcel as determined at that time. 

7. The number of units is as follows:  558 enclosed units and 78 RV parking stalls. 

 

Page 182Item 17.



Page 183Item 17.



Page 184Item 17.



Page 185Item 17.



Page 186Item 17.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Levee and Flood Control Property Signage Exhibits and Quote. 

Background 

Information: 

Bueltel-Moseng is providing surveying services for determination and location of 
select property points of the Flood Control Project, both levee and diversion channel 
property and easements. The survey includes setting property pins (where 
applicable) and setting stakes at requested locations along the Flood Control Project.  
 
The flood control project is very important to the City of Marshall, and it is imperative 
that all adjacent property owners understand where their properties end. According 
to the US Army Corps of Engineers national levee database, roughly $1.26B dollars of 
property value is protected by our flood control project, including at least 2,101 
buildings. There are numerous locations along the flood control project properties 
where adjacent property owners have planted trees, placed sheds, planted gardens, 
and parked trailers on city property. Any installation on City property shall require 
City permission.  
 
Staff is proposing to install posts at selected points to indicate property boundaries. 
The signs would be installed on U-channel posts, approximately four feet off the 
ground. Signs are proposed to be 4” high by 6” wide with a green background.. Posts 
and signs would be installed by Street Department staff. For visualization, templates 
of the sign are included in the Council packet. 
 
At locations where the City has easement, as opposed to fee estate, staff would not 
recommend posts but rather annual notifications to those property owners about the 
presence of the Flood Control easement.  
 
The City requested layouts and quotes from two companies. The low quote was 
provided from M-R Sign Co., Inc. of Fergus Falls, Minnesota, in the amount 
of $1,931.80. 
 
This item will be presented to the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee at 
their meeting on March 22, 2022. 

Fiscal Impact: The quote as described for signs and posts is for the amount of $1,931.80. The cost 
would be funded through the Surface Water Management Utility. 

Alternative/ Variations: No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendation: that the Council authorize the purchase of the signs and posts associated with the 
Flood Control Project from M-R Sign Co., Inc. of Fergus Falls, Minnesota, in the 
amount of $1,931.80. 

  

Page 187Item 18.



 

Page 188Item 18.



Page 189Item 18.



SEQ Item Number/Cost Code/Description/Note Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

1 SPECIALTRAFFIC  
T-DP006004/2M3A
6X4 .080 STD 1 POST PUNCH/RADIUS W/BORDER HIP 
WHITE/GREEN SEE ATT.
35 EA
CITY 
FLOOD CONTROL
PROPERTY
85 EA
CITY OF
MARSHALL
LEVEE PROPERTY

120.00 9.93 1,191.60

2 T-UCH-6-2#  
U-CHANNEL POST 6 FT 2# GREEN

120.00 13.81 1,657.20

3 FREIGHT-TRAFFIC  
FREIGHT TRAFFIC SALES

1.00 149.63 149.63

Subtotal: 2,998.43

Tax: 0.00

Total: $2,998.43

3/16/2022 9:16:02 AM

asd

Newman Signs Inc.
PO Box 1728
Jamestown, ND 58402
Phone: 800-437-9770

Quote #: TRFQTE052614
Ship Via:  MIDWEST        

Payment Terms:  Net 30               

Quote Date:  3/9/2022
Sales Rep: Marcia Johnson

Customer Number: MAR-03-039

QUOTATION

**Given the current market conditions, after one week, this quote is subject to change at any time at the 
discretion of Newman Traffic Signs.**

Bill To: Ship To:

344 WEST MAIN STREET
MARSHALL MN, 56258-1313

CITY OF MARSHALL                                                 CITY OF MARSHALL                                                 
901 OAK ST
MARSHALL MN, 56258

Header Note: THANK YOU, JESSIE!!! MARCIA/BRIAN

FOB: ORIGIN               

asd

Page 190Item 18.



3/16/2022 9:16:02 AM

asd

Total subject to any applicable tax and freight charges.  Additional freight charges for residential 
delivery, inside delivery, liftgate delivery, limited access delivery, or other charges incurred will be 
invoiced to the customer.

Newman Signs Inc.
PO Box 1728
Jamestown, ND 58402
Phone: 800-437-9770

Quote #: TRFQTE052614
Ship Via:  MIDWEST        

Payment Terms:  Net 30               

Quote Date:  3/9/2022
Sales Rep: Marcia Johnson

Customer Number: MAR-03-039

QUOTATION

**Given the current market conditions, after one week, this quote is subject to change at any time at the 
discretion of Newman Traffic Signs.**

Bill To: Ship To:

344 WEST MAIN STREET
MARSHALL MN, 56258-1313

CITY OF MARSHALL                                                 CITY OF MARSHALL                                                 
901 OAK ST
MARSHALL MN, 56258

Header Note: THANK YOU, JESSIE!!! MARCIA/BRIAN

FOB: ORIGIN               

asd

Page 191Item 18.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Resolution of Support for a RAISE Grant Application for the MnDOT 
2025 College Drive Reconstruction Project. 

Background 

Information: 

MnDOT District 8 is preparing an application for a federal RAISE grant (Rebuilding 
American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity) for the 2025 College Drive 
Reconstruction project through Marshall. To help ensure a complete grant 
application and identify local support, MnDOT D8 has requested that the City of 
Marshall adopt a resolution of support for the 2025 project. The RAISE grant 
application deadline is April 14, 2022.  
 

Fiscal Impact: No impact to the City of Marshall’s project cost. 

Alternative/ Variations: No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendation: that the Council adoption Resolution 22-046, which is a Resolution of Support for a 
RAISE Grant Application for the MnDOT 2025 College Drive Reconstruction Project. 

 

Page 192Item 19.



RESOLUTION NUMBER 22-046

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR A RAISE GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE 
HIGHWAY 19/COLLEGE DRIVE MARSHALL RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity “RAISE” 
Transportation Grants Program provides dedicated, discretionary funding for transportation infrastructure 
projects of local or regional significance; and  

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Transportation is soliciting applications for $1.5 
billion for the FY 2022 RAISE Transportation Grants Program as appropriated through the FY 2022 
Appropriations Act for National Infrastructure Investments; and  

WHEREAS, the FY 2022 Appropriations Act directs funds provided for RAISE Transportation 
Grants be divided not more than 50 percent for rural areas and 50 percent for urbanized areas and requires 
measures to ensure an equitable geographic distribution of grant funds and an appropriate balance in 
addressing the needs of urban and rural areas; and  

WHEREAS, eligible projects for RAISE Transportation Grants include surface transportation 
capital projects including highway, bridge, or other road projects as well as public transportation projects, 
passenger and freight rail transportation projects, port infrastructure investments, and intermodal projects; 
and  

WHEREAS, the maximum award for this round of RAISE Transportation Grants is $25 million; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) is seeking funds to 
reconstruct Highway 19 or College Drive through the City of Marshall and 

WHEREAS, the proposed improvements will bring the corridor back to a state of good repair, make 
it easier for freight to navigate the corridor, make it easier for people to walk and bike along and 
across the corridor, make it safer for all roadway users and will help mitigate flood events; and  

WHEREAS, the project supports the safety of Marshall residents and traveling public, livability, 
economic strength and global competitiveness of Marshall businesses and residents and climate 
resilience along the corridor and improved access to jobs, services, medical care, and daily needs 
by reducing transportation-related disparities, adverse community impacts and health effects; and 

WHEREAS, the project aligns with the City of Marshall’s Capital Improvement Plan and Safe 
Routes to School Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Marshall will provide funding toward the local match for its portion of the 
project and MnDOT will provide funding toward the local match for the trunk highway portion of the 
project to contribute to the overall local match and project funding as identified in the RAISE grant 
application, which includes the use of funding programmed for maintenance, secured funding through other 
grant programs, and additional program funding as applicable; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Marshall City Council supports and approves 
the application towards FY 2022 RAISE Transportation Grant for the Highway 19/College Drive 
reconstruction project. 

Passed and adopted by the Council this  22nd  day of  March , 2022. 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Page 193Item 19.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

Category: COUNCIL REPORTS 

Type: INFO 

Subject: Commission/Board Liaison Reports 

Background 

Information: 

Byrnes - Fire Relief Association and Regional Development Commission, Planning Commission  

Schafer – Airport Commission, Joint LEC Management Committee, MERIT Center Commission, 

SW Amateur Sports Commission 

Meister – Cable Commission, Community Services Advisory Board, Economic Development 

Authority 

DeCramer – Economic Development Authority, Marshall Municipal Utilities Commission, 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Commission, Public Housing Commission 

Labat – Adult Community Center Commission, Convention & Visitors Bureau, Library Board, 

Marshall Area Transit Committee 

Lozinski – Joint LEC Management Committee, Police Advisory Board 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations:  

 

Page 194Item 20.



Page 195Item 25.



Page 196Item 25.



Page 197Item 25.



Marshall-Lyon County Library 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

February 14th, 2022 
  

Board Members Present: Linda Baun, Paula Botsford, Russ Labat, Paul Graupmann, Eric DeGroot, Ruth 
Bot, Michael Murray, Saara Raappana, and Anne Marie Vorbach.  Absent:  none.  Staff Present: Director 
Michele A. Leininger, Christine DeGroot, and Paula Nemes.  Others Present:   
 
Called to order at 4:00 p.m. by L. Baun, President.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Motion made by M. Murray, seconded by P. Graupmann to adopt the agenda as presented.  Roll Call 
Vote:  Yes- L. Baun, P. Botsford, R. Labat, P. Graupmann, E. DeGroot, R. Bot, and M. Murray.  No: None.  
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Welcome & Oath of Office was given to new Board Member Anne Marie Vorbach (City Rep.).  
 
Motion made by M. Murray, seconded by E. DeGroot to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Roll Call Vote:  Yes- 
L. Baun, P. Botsford, R. Labat, P. Graupmann, E. DeGroot, R. Bot, M. Murray, and A. Vorbach.  No: None.  
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Old Business: 

COVID 19 Update:  Since the numbers are going down, the Library is hoping to open up the 
study rooms and return some of the toys to the Children’s Department by the end of the month.  We 
will still wait on going back into daycare homes for programming.  Director Leininger will also not 
require but strongly encourage staff to wear mask when in the public areas.   
 

Strategic Plan Update:  The book bike has been ordered.  We are now planning on how to use 
the bike this summer.  The wellbeing kiosk has also been ordered.  This will be a multi-media display 
that will hold books, brochures, business cards, and a variety of items.  This will enable patrons to 
browse a variety of wellness topics without having to ask staff for assistance.  The reader’s advisory 
now has bitmoji (personal emojis) for each employee to make staff trading cards.   We will be changing 
the current storage room to the left of the Children’s Department entrance into the preservation lab.  
The lab will have a counter top to hold a VHS player, cassette player, and other items to preserve 
patron’s digital recordings onto more current technology.  We are also working with Jennifer Andries 
from the Lyon County Museum to coordinate events for the 150th Anniversary of Marshall this 
summer.           

S. Raappana arrived 
 

2021 Budget Projection:  For the 2021 Budget Projection, the only bill that is remaining is the 
Amazon bill which was added to the enclosed 2021 Budget Projection in the highlighted areas.  In 
March, we should have the final 2021 Budget and Reserve Fund balance for 2021.        

 
Technology Update:  Paul presented the proposal for the bottle filling station to the Lyon 

County Commissioners to see if it would be covered with ARPA funds.  The commissioners agreed to 
pay 1/3 of the bottle filling station.  Director Leininger said the City already gave the Library CARES 
money so they won’t be paying the additional 2/3 of the water bottle filling station.  We already have Page 198Item 25.



one water bottle filling station that works and the water fountains in the Children’s Department work 
well so it will be put on hold for now.   
 
E. DeGroot left  
 
P. Graupmann said he and Loren Stomberg will be presenting at the Lyon County Commissioners 
meeting tomorrow (February 15) on the Library’s technology needs for 2022.  He will be 
recommending that they give a capital expenditure for technology since the City of Marshall is 
handling the Library’s building and GEO thermal issues.     
   
E. DeGroot returned    

Director’s Evaluation:  There were seven board members who completed the director’s 
evaluation form.  L. Baun met with Director Leininger on February 2nd to share with her the responses 
to each question and the comments.  L. Baun said overall Director Leininger is doing an excellent job 
and they appreciate her leadership.  If there are any questions or concerns, to please contact Director 
Leininger directly or let L. Baun know.   
 
New Business:  
 
Reports: 

 
Director’s Report –  The statistics show circulation is slowly rising.  The number of people coming 
into the Library has slowly increased.  We are currently running a “Love Your Library” campaign this 
month.  The campaign involves encouraging patrons to write down why they love their Library.  Their 
comments are being used as part of an advocacy program during the State Legislative term.  Several 
handouts were distributed on advocacy efforts for state funding to libraries.  An additional handout on 
the breakdown of the number of Library employees and brief job descriptions was also distributed.  
Summer hours were presented to the staff.  Of the part time staff, no one was interested in reducing 
their hours or not working this summer.  There will savings with a maternity leave and an employee 
going on a volunteer trip this summer.  The branches have to be open 20 hours a week but can have 
seasonal hours.  There was discussion on tracking data on what hours patrons most frequent the 
Library.          
  
Board President Report: None.         
 
Friends:  They met a few weeks ago.  They are getting ready for their March Book Sale that runs March 
31st thru April 2nd.  They have a new Friends president, Maureen Keimig.        
 
Board Committees:  We have 6 policies up for review in March.  All the board members were given a 
packet of these policies to review for the March Library Board Meeting.  If there is one that requires a 
lot of discussion it will be forwarded to the policy committee.   
 
Plum Creek:  They have a lot of applications right now for Legacy Grants that have to be used by June 
30th of this year.       
 
Motion by R. Labat, seconded by R. Bot to adjourn at 5:25 p.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Christine DeGroot 

Page 199Item 25.



City of Marshall, Minnesota
Cash & Investments

2/28/2022
 

Par Rate
CASH & INVESTMENTS:

Checking -Bremer 1,554,947.99 0.00%
Money Market - Bremer 7,495,190.83 0.02%
Money Market - Bank of the West 3,385,573.76 0.10%
Money Market - US Bank 121,668.88 0.03%
Money Market - US Bank (ARP Funds) 737,052.67 0.03%
Money Market - Wells Fargo 1,026,128.15 0.03%
Certificate of Deposit - Bremer 1,000,000.00 0.40%
Certificate of Deposit - Bremer 1,000,000.00 0.40%
Certificate of Deposit - Bremer 1,000,000.00 0.40%
Certificate of Deposit - Wells Fargo 245,000.00 1.80%
Certificate of Deposit - Wells Fargo 245,000.00 1.70%
Investment Portfolio - General Fund 2,705,872.75
Investment Portfolio - WW/SW Capital Reserve 3,241,078.89
Investment Portfolio - Endowment Fund 2,007,894.13
Municipal - US Bank 4,840,000.00 0.21% Average
Certicate of Deposit - US Bank 245,000.00 0.60%
Certicate of Deposit - US Bank 245,000.00 0.60%
Agency - US Bank 4,250,000.00 0.24% Average

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 35,345,408.05

 Cash
1,554,947.99

4%

Money Market
12,765,614.29

36%

Certificate of Deposit
3,980,000.00

11%
Managed Investments

7,954,845.77
23%

Municipal
4,840,000.00

14%

Agency
4,250,000.00

12%

CASH & INVESTMENTS

Page 200Item 25.



--UNAPPROVED -- 

 

 
Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission – 3-9-22 

MINUTES OF THE  
MARSHALL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2022 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Schroeder, Lee, Deutz, and Muchlinski 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Fox 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Bob Byrnes, Ilya Gutman, and Jason Anderson 
 
1. The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Lee.  She asked for the approval of the minutes of 

the January 12, 2022, regular meeting of the Marshall Planning Commission.  Schroeder MADE A 
MOTION, SECOND BY Muchlinski, to approve the minutes as written. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR 
OF THE MOTION. 

 
2. Gutman explained this is the request by the Owner for an Interim Use Permit for a shipping 

container placement in a B-3 General business district. Last spring the City has amended its 
Ordinance governing placement of shipping containers and semi-trailers on properties within the 
City. The revised Ordinance now allows placing a limited number of containers in a general 
business district by an interim use permit. The above-listed conditions include a reference 
(condition 4) to a particular Ordinance section that itemizes specific conditions for container 
placement. This section is attached to make sure that only its current version is applicable and 
compliance with future amendments, if any, to this section will not be required.  Staff recommends 
approval to the City Council of the request by Shri Gayatri LLC for an Interim Use Permit to have 
a storage container on the Quality Inn premises at 1511 East College Drive with the following 
conditions:  1. That the regulations, standards, and requirements as set forth in the City Code and as 
pertains to the class of district in which such premises are located shall be conformed with.  2. That 
the City reserves the right to revoke the Interim Use Permit in the event that any person has 
breached the conditions contained in this permit provided that the City serve the person with 
written notice specifying items of any default and allow the applicant a reasonable time in which to 
repair such default.  3. That this permit expires when the property changes ownership.  4. That this 
container meets all conditions of Sec. 86-248(f) dated 04-27-2021 (as attached) by June 30, 2022, 
including a fence.  Marcia Friskey, General Manger at the hotel, explained that they will contact 
someone to install a fence around the container. Muchlinski ask what the fence will be made of? 
Friskey said they do not know at this time but possibly the same as the fence they have around their 
dumpsters which is screened chain link. They use the container to store extra stuff for the hotel. 
Lee asked if the Planning Commission approved this container, would the hotel be able to add 
more containers later. Gutman said no that they could only have what is allowed per the ordinance, 
which is basically one large container. Jim Swenson, of Marshall asked if anyone could rent 
containers out by the month. He thinks $600 to get an Interim Use Permit (IUP) is an added 
expense and he doesn’t agree with it. Gutman informed that before the recent ordinance change, 
they were never permitted. Swenson stated that they were used. Anderson advised that containers 
in use were in violation of the ordinance. Schroeder asked how this came up. Anderson explained 
that there were several complaints which resulted in an ordinance change. Brenan Clark of 229 
Rainbow Drive, the owner of the Mattress Barn, said he was in the same situation and 15 years ago 
he was allowed to have it and now he gets letters for each of his locations regarding the storage 
container and needing to remove it or get an IUP. Clark said he must have a lot of storage to have 
inventory and due to COVID it takes so long to get inventory. He feels that the ordinance should 
only apply to the locations where there is a mess or a complaint. Clark read a text from Brandan 
Skewes who was unable to attend the hearing. The text stated that they received a letter about the 
container at their location. It further state that they had the container placed on the property long 
ago after they talked to Ray at the city to receive permission. Muchlinski asked Clark what he 
wants changed. Clark said he would like everything left the way it is if it is cleaned up. He said he 

Page 201Item 25.



--UNAPPROVED -- 

 

 
Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission – 3-9-22 

feels it is funny how the city drives around looking for things to enforce. He said he is looking to 
expand his building as much as he can when he can afford it. Muchlinski said with the one we are 
addressing tonight he likes the idea of the fence as it is a road adjacent to the college. Clark added 
he would be interested to know if the college ever complained. Muchlinski said probably not, but it 
would look better with a screened fence. Deutz said his only comment is that commercial areas 
shouldn’t need the fence, but if it is residential, then maybe a fence is justified. Deutz MADE A 
MOTION, SECOND BY Schroeder to close the public hearing. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF 
THE MOTION. Anderson said we do have notes regarding the statements.  Any changes to City 
Ordinance would need to go to City Council. Currently, we need to address the matter that we are 
dealing with now. Muchlinski MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Deutz to recommend to City 
Council as recommend by staff. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION. Byrnes stated he 
will also take these comments back to council. 
 

3. Gutman said this is a request of Menard, Inc. to have a mini storage in a B-3 General Business 
District at 1211 Clarice Avenue, which requires a Conditional Use Permit in a B-3 District. 
Conditions attached will minimize an impact on surrounding properties. Staff recommend approval 
to the City Council of the request of Menard, Inc. to have mini storage in a B-3 General Business 
District at 1211 Clarice Avenue with the following conditions:  1. All driveways, approaches, any 
other non-landscaped areas are paved.  2. The perimeter of the property is separated from 
surrounding areas either by storage units or a minimum 6-foot high fence.  3. The landscape 
ordinance provisions for live vegetation and trees are complied with, both at the time of 
construction for area allocated for mini-storage, and for future subdivided parcel as determined at 
that time.  4. The number of units is as follows:  558 enclosed units and 78 RV parking stalls. Nick 
Brenner, of Menards, 5101 Menards Drive, Eau Claire, WI, stated this is one of many locations 
that they are looking at putting self-storage on the extra land that is owned by Menards. Schroeder 
MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Muchlinski to close the public hearing.  ALL VOTED IN 
FAVOR OF THE MOTION. Muchlinski said it makes perfect sense. Muchlinski MADE A 
MOTION, SECOND BY Deutz to recommend to City Council as recommend by staff.  
 

4. Gutman explained that the proposed changes are minor and intended to provide it flexibility in 
approving conditions for variances and conditional use permits. For example, allows additional 
storage during major construction projects for owners and contractors. Staff recommends the 
recommendation to the City Council approving the revisions amending Section 86-162 Yard 
Modification and 86-248 Outside Storage. Schroeder MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY 
Muchlinski, to recommend approval as recommended by staff. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE 
MOTION. 

 
5. Lee asked for updates on the comprehensive plan.  Gutman went over some of the survey results. 

He said the next step is a meeting in a month or month and a half with the final results from the 
survey.  Schroeder said in the last meeting we went through all the survey results and had a 
discussion on the findings. There was additional conversation about results of the survey. 

 
6. A conversation was held regarding the container ordinance. Anderson answered commission 

questions and explained how the process works. 
 
7. A MOTION WAS MADE BY Schroeder, SECOND BY Deutz to adjourn the meeting.  ALL 

VOTED IN FAVOR.  Chairperson Lee declared the meeting adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Chris DeVos, Recording Secretary 

Page 202Item 25.



2022 Regular Council Meeting Dates 

2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month (Unless otherwise noted) 

5:30 P.M. 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

 

January 

1. January 11, 2022 
2. January 25, 2022 

February 

1. February 08, 2022 
2. February 22, 2022 

March 

1. March 08, 2022 
2. March 22, 2022 

April 

1. April 12, 2022 
2. April 26, 2022 

May 

1. May 10, 2022 
2. May 24, 2022 

June 

1. June 14, 2022 
2. June 28. 2022 

July 

1. July 12, 2022 
2. July 26, 2022 

August 

1. August 08, 2022 (Monday) 

2. August 23, 2022 

September 

1. September 13, 2022 
2. September 27, 2022 

October 

1. October 11, 2022 
2. October 25, 2022 

November 

1. November 07, 2022 (Monday) 
2. November 22, 2022 

December 

1. December 13, 2022 
2. December 27, 2022

 

2022 Uniform Election Dates 

• February 08, 2022 

• April 12, 2022 

• May 10, 2022 

• August 09, 2022 

• November 08, 2022

204C.03 PUBLIC MEETINGS PROHIBITED ON ELECTION DAY. 

Subdivision 1. School districts; counties; municipalities; special taxing districts. No special taxing district governing 

body, school board, county board of commissioners, city council, or town board of supervisors shall conduct a 

meeting between 6:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. on the day that an election is held within the boundaries of the special 

taxing district, school district, county, city, or town. As used in this subdivision, "special taxing district" has the 

meaning given in section 275.066. 

Page 203Item 26.



 

 

 

 

Upcoming Meetings 

March 
 03/22 Work Session, Pre-LBAE Meeting, 4:30 PM, City Hall 

 03/22 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 

April 
 04/12 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 04/26 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 

May 
 05/10 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 05/24 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 

 

Page 204Item 26.


	Top
	Item 1.	Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on March 8, 2022
	Agenda Memo
	2022_03_08 Regular Meeting

	Item 2.	Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62.11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance) – Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance.
	Driveway Ordinance - Sec 62-11  (CC 03-22-2022)

	Item 3.	Sponsorship Agreements
	Agenda Memo _CVB
	2022_D&G
	Bremer Signed

	Item 4.	Consider Approval of the 2022-23 Annual Refuse Haulers Licenses
	Agenda Memo
	Sec._50_24.___Hauler_s_license_required. (1)

	Item 5.	Wastewater Treatment Facilities Improvement Project – Consider Payment of Invoice 0285412 to Bolton & Menk, Inc.
	Payment of B&M 0285412
	B&M Invoice 0285412

	Item 6.	Consider Approval of a Permit for  Alcoholic Beverages At City-Owned Facilities
	Agenda Memo
	App._HomeShow

	Item 7.	Consider amendments to the Personnel Policy manual
	2022-03-22--Personnel Policy Amendments (Chapter 4)
	2022-03-22 Personnel Policy Ch 4

	Item 8.	Consider Approval Resolution Authorizing Submission of DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant.
	AGENDA MEMO 2022
	City of Marshall RESOLUTION 2022 Outdoor Rec DNR Grant

	Item 9.	Consider approval of the bills/project payments
	Agenda Memo - Bills & Project Payments
	Council Check Report
	Project Summary for Council

	Item 10.	Comprehensive Plan Update by SRF
	Council Memo_Comp Plan Update
	Marshall Community Survey Summary_220318
	Marshall Comprehensive Plan Key Themes

	Item 11.	Authorize Staff to Acquire Proposals for YMCA Financial Feasibility and Future Recreation Feasibility Study
	ITEM-Staff-YMCA Exploration
	YMCA Feasibility Study Letter
	YMCA & City Partnerships Summary Sheet

	Item 12.	Consideration of Renewal Agreement Options with J&M Displays, Inc., for 4th of July Fireworks.
	AGENDA MEMO 
	Fireworks 2020-21-22
	FDA - Marshall MN 2023
	MYA - Marshall MN 2023-24-25
	RFP Marshall 7-4-2023

	Item 13.	Project AP-004: Airport Zoning Update – Consider Resolution Authorizing Execution of Mn/DOT Aeronautics Grant Agreement No. 1049819 (S.P. A4201-104).
	Grant Agreement 1049819 - A4201-104 (Airport Zoning Update)
	SP A4201-104 Grant Resolution 
	Grant Agreement SP A4201-104

	Item 14.	Consider Resolution Authorizing Execution of Mn/DOT-Aeronautics Grant Agreement No. 1049651 (S.P. A4201-C3) for Federal Airport Expenses Reimbursement under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).
	MnDOT Grant Agreement 1049651 ARPA (2022-03-22)
	Resolution Marshall
	ARPA Agreement Marshall MML 1049651
	FAA Dakota-Minnesota Airport District Office Manager Assignments

	Item 15.	Consider Approval of the Resolution providing for the issuance and sale of the 2022A  GO Bonds
	Agenda Item - 3-22-22
	Pre-Sale Summary 2022A
	Marshall GO 2022AB Authorizing Resolution

	Item 16.	Request for Interim Use Permit / Storage Containers in a B-3 General  Business District located at 1511 East College Drive
	1511 East College Drive
	IUP
	IUP Ord
	IUP aerial

	Item 17.	Request for Conditional Use Permit / Mini Storage in a B-3 General Business District located at 1211 Clarice Avenue
	1211 Clarice Avenue
	CUP
	CUP maps

	Item 18.	City Flood Control Property Signage
	Levee Signs Memo (CC 2022-03-22)
	City of Marshall # 12722
	QUOTE #52614 (MARSHALL)

	Item 19.	Consider Resolution of Support for a RAISE Grant Application for the MnDOT 2025 College Drive Reconstruction Project.
	RAISE Data Needs
	2022 RAISE_Marshall City Council Resolution

	Item 20.	Commission/Board Liaison Reports
	Council Reports

	Item 25.	Information Only
	03_22 Permits
	Library Feb_2022_Minutes_Approved
	Portfolio & Council
	3-9-22 Planning

	Item 26.	Upcoming Meetings
	2022 Regular Council Meeting Dates, Times and Location
	Upcoming Meetings

	Bottom

